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reporting company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):
Large accelerated filer Non-accelerated filer o Smaller reporting company
« Accelerated filer o (Do not check if a smaller reporting o

company)
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes
o Nox
233,114,169 shares of the registrant's common stock, $0.01 par value per share, were outstanding at October 31, 2016.

60015
(Zip Code)




Edgar Filing: CF Industries Holdings, Inc. - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents

TABLE OF CONTENTS
PART 1. Financial Information
Item 1. Financial Statements (unaudited)
Consolidated Statements of Operations
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (I.oss)
Consolidated Balance Sheets
Consolidated Statements of Equity
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements
Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Item 4. Controls and Procedures
PART II. Other Information

Item 1. Legal Proceedings
Item 1A. Risk Factors

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds
Item 6. Exhibits

|d |4:1 |ﬁ I [ > 0 o [~

0 o0 |3 [
BRI




Edgar Filing: CF Industries Holdings, Inc. - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents

CF INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS, INC.

PART I—FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Unaudited)

Net sales

Cost of sales

Gross margin

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Transaction costs

Other operating—net

Total other operating costs and expenses

Equity in (losses) earnings of operating affiliates

Operating (loss) earnings

Interest expense

Interest income

Other non-operating—net

(Loss) earnings before income taxes and equity in earnings of non-operating
affiliates

Income tax (benefit) provision

Equity in earnings of non-operating affiliates—net of taxes

Net earnings

Less: Net earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests

Net (loss) earnings attributable to common stockholders

Net (loss) earnings per share attributable to common stockholders:
Basic

Diluted

Weighted-average common shares outstanding:

Basic

Diluted

Dividends declared per common share

See accompanying Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements.

Three months

ended Nine months

September ended

30, September 30,
2016 2015 2016 2015
(in millions, except per share
amounts)

$680 $928 $2,818 $3,193
678 763 2,072 1,926
2 165 746 1,267

44 42 141 120
— 37 179 37
57 33 181 74
101 112 501 231
2 ) 6 ar )20
(101 )59 234 1,056
31 30 130 93

2z H)— ¢ Hada

1 5 ¢! )5
(131 ) 24 109 959
(131 )20 (21 ) 333
— 93 — 72
— 97 130 698
30 7 87 25
$(30 ) $90 $43 $673
$(0.13) $0.39 $0.19 $2.85
$(0.13) $0.39 $0.19 $2.84
233.1 233.1 2332 236.0
233.1 234.0 2335 2369
$0.30 $0.30 $0.90 $0.90

)
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CF INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(Unaudited)

Three )

Nine months
months

ended
ended

September
September
30 30,

2016 2015 2016 2015
(in millions)

Net earnings $— $97 $130 $698
Other comprehensive (loss) income:
Foreign currency translation adjustment—net of taxes (30 ) (50) (20 ) (100)
Unrealized loss on securities—net of taxes — 1 ) — a1 )
Defined benefit plans—net of taxes — 43 3 ) 47
(30 ) (@ )23 )4 )
Comprehensive (loss) income (30 )8 107 o644
Less: Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests 30 7 87 25

Comprehensive (loss) income attributable to common stockholders  $(60) $82 $20 $619

See accompanying Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CF INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Assets

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash

Accounts receivable—net

Inventories

Prepaid income taxes

Other current assets

Total current assets

Property, plant and equipment—net

Investments in affiliates

Goodwill

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and Equity

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Income taxes payable

Customer advances

Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt

Deferred income taxes

Other liabilities

Equity:

Stockholders' equity:

Preferred stock—$0.01 par value, 50,000,000 shares authorized
Common stock—$0.01 par value, 500,000,000 shares authorized, 2016—235,503,291 shares
issued and 2015—235,493,395 shares issued

Paid-in capital

Retained earnings

Treasury stock—at cost, 2016—2,390,122 shares and 2015—2,411,839 shares
Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Total stockholders' equity

Noncontrolling interests

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

See accompanying Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements.

3

(Unaudited)
Septemberl3¢;ember 31,

2016

2015

(in millions, except

share

and per share amounts)

$1,554
7

207
312
830

21
2,931
9,725
287
2,359
330
$15,632

$843
1

86

36
966
5,540
1,642
504

2

1,390
2,892
(151
(273
3,860
3,120
6,980
$15,632

$ 286
23
267
321
185
45
1,127
8,539
298
2,390
329

$ 12,683

$ 918
5

162
130
1,215
5,537
916
628

2

1,378
3,058

) (153 )
) (250 )

4,035
352
4,387

$ 12,683
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CF INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY

(Unaudited)

Balance as of December 31, 2014
Net earnings

Other comprehensive income:
Foreign currency translation
adjustment—net of taxes

Common Stockholders
$0.01

Par
Val

Treasury Paid-In Retained
Capital Earnings

e
tock

Common
Stock

(in millions, except per share amounts)

$2 $(222) $1.414 $3,175 $ (160 )

Unrealized net loss on securities—net of

taxes

Defined benefit plans—net of taxes
Comprehensive income

Purchases of treasury stock
Retirement of treasury stock
Acquisition of treasury stock under
employee stock plans

Issuance of $0.01 par value common
stock under employee stock plans
Stock-based compensation expense
Excess tax benefit from stock-based
compensation

Cash dividends ($0.90 per share)
Distributions declared to
noncontrolling interest

Balance as of September 30, 2015
Balance as of December 31, 2015
Net earnings

Other comprehensive income:
Foreign currency translation
adjustment—net of taxes

Defined benefit plans—net of taxes
Comprehensive income

Acquisition of treasury stock under
employee stock plans

Issuance of $0.01 par value common
stock under employee stock plans
Stock-based compensation expense
Cash dividends ($0.90 per share)

Issuance of noncontrolling interest in

CF Industries Nitrogen, LLC (CFN)
Distributions declared to
noncontrolling interests

$2 $(153 ) $1,375
$2 $(153 ) $1,378

(527 )
597
T )

€
15

673

212 )

$3,101
$3,058
43

nterests

$ 363
25

Accumulated
Other Total
Comprehensi&fockholdersI
Income Equity
(Loss)

$ 4,209
— 673
(100 ) (100
(1 )
47 47

619
— (527
— (1
— 8
— 13
— 2
— (212
$ 214 ) $4.111
$ (250 ) $4,035
— 43
(20 ) (20
3 )

20
— (1
— 15
— (209

2,792

(111

NoncontrolliriBotal

Equity

$4,572
698

(100 )

ax )

47
644
(527 )

ax )

8

13

2

212 )
) 32 )

$4,467
$4,387
130

20 )

G )
107

ax )

15
(209 )

2,792

) (111 )
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Balance as of September 30, 2016 $2 $(151) $1,390 $2.892 $ 273 ) $ 3,860 $ 3,120 $6,980

See accompanying Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CF INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Unaudited)

Operating Activities:
Net earnings

Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization
Deferred income taxes
Stock-based compensation expense

Unrealized (gain) loss on natural gas and foreign currency derivatives

Unrealized loss on embedded derivative

Gain on remeasurement of CF Fertilisers UK investment
Loss on sale of equity method investments

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Undistributed earnings of affiliates—net of taxes
Changes in:

Accounts receivable—net

Inventories

Accrued and prepaid income taxes

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Customer advances

Other—net

Net cash provided by operating activities

Investing Activities:

Additions to property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of equity method investment
Purchase of CF Fertilisers UK, net of cash acquired
Withdrawals from restricted cash funds

Other—net

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing Activities:

Proceeds from long-term borrowings

Proceeds from short-term borrowings

Payments of short-term borrowings

Financing fees

Dividends paid on common stock

Issuance of noncontrolling interest in CFN
Distributions to noncontrolling interests

Purchases of treasury stock

Issuances of common stock under employee stock plans
Shares withheld for taxes

Net cash provided by financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

Nine months
ended
September 30,
2016 2015
(in millions)

$130  $698
475 348
730 (6 )
15 13
(169 ) 70
22 —
— 94 )
— 43
8 18
— 2 )
55 16
@ Ha2)
(665 ) (69 )
T )32
(75 ) 56
76 23
591 1,074

(1,819 ) (1,79)

8 9

— 13

— (554 )
16 60

4 (36 )
(1,791 ) (2,299
— 1,000
150 367
(150 ) (367)
(I ) @8 )

209 ) (212)
2,800 —

11 ) 32 )
— (556 )
— 8

— a )
2469 179
¢ )@ )
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Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,268 (1,053
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 286 1,997
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $1,554 $943

See accompanying Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CF INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS, INC.

NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Background and Basis of Presentation

We are one of the largest manufacturers and distributors of nitrogen fertilizer and other nitrogen products in the world.
Our principal customers are cooperatives, independent fertilizer distributors, farmers and industrial users. Our
principal nitrogen fertilizer products are ammonia, granular urea, urea ammonium nitrate solution (UAN) and
ammonium nitrate (AN). Our other nitrogen products include diesel exhaust fluid (DEF), urea liquor, nitric acid and
aqua ammonia, which are sold primarily to our industrial customers, and compound fertilizer products (NPKs), which
are solid granular fertilizer products for which the nutrient content is a combination of nitrogen, phosphorus, and
potassium. Our manufacturing and distribution facilities are concentrated in the midwestern United States and other
major agricultural areas of the United States, Canada and the United Kingdom. We also export nitrogen fertilizer
products from our Donaldsonville, Louisiana; Yazoo City, Mississippi; and Billingham, United Kingdom
manufacturing facilities.

All references to "the Company," "we," "us" and "our" refer to CF Industries Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiaries. All
references to "CF Holdings" refer to CF Industries Holdings, Inc. itself and not its subsidiaries. All references to "CF
Industries" refer to CF Industries, Inc., a 100% owned subsidiary of CF Industries Holdings, Inc.

The accompanying unaudited interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the same basis as our
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2015, in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for interim financial reporting. In the opinion of management, these
statements reflect all adjustments, consisting only of normal and recurring adjustments, that are necessary for the fair
representation of the information for the periods presented. The accompanying unaudited interim consolidated
financial statements have been prepared pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC). Certain information and disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in
accordance with U.S. GAAP have been condensed or omitted pursuant to such rules and regulations. Operating results
for any period presented apply to that period only and are not necessarily indicative of results for any future period.
The accompanying unaudited interim consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with our audited
consolidated financial statements and related disclosures included in our 2015 Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with
the SEC on February 25, 2016. The preparation of the unaudited interim consolidated financial statements requires us
to make use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent liabilities at the date of the unaudited consolidated financial statements and the reported revenues and
expenses for the periods presented. Significant estimates and assumptions are used for, but are not limited to, net
realizable value of inventories, environmental remediation liabilities, environmental and litigation contingencies, the
cost of customer incentives, useful lives of property and identifiable intangible assets, the assumptions used in the
evaluation of potential impairments of property, investments, identifiable intangible assets and goodwill, income tax
and valuation reserves, allowances for doubtful accounts receivable, the measurement of the fair values of investments
for which markets are not active, assumptions used in the determination of the funded status and annual expense of
defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefit plans and the assumptions used in the valuation of
stock-based compensation awards granted to employees.

During the third quarter of 2016, we adopted Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-09, Compensation-Stock
Compensation (Topic 718): Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting. As a result, we
reclassified certain amounts in our consolidated statement of cash flows for the nine months ended September 30,
2015. See Note 2—New Accounting Standards for additional information.

6
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2. New Accounting Standards

Recently Adopted Pronouncements

In March 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued ASU No. 2016-09, Compensation-Stock
Compensation (Topic 718): Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting. This ASU makes a
number of changes meant to simplify and improve accounting for share-based payments, including amendments to
share-based accounting for income taxes, classifications in the statement of cash flows and share award forfeiture
accounting. We elected to early adopt ASU No. 2016-09 in the third quarter of 2016. As a result, we retrospectively
recast our consolidated statement of cash flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2015 by reclassifying $2
million of excess tax benefit previously reported in financing activities to operating activities and $1 million of cash
outflows related to shares withheld for taxes from operating activities to financing activities. We also elected to
recognize equity award forfeitures as they occur to determine the amount of compensation cost to be recognized in
each period. The update also requires us to recognize excess tax benefits and tax deficiencies in the statement of
operations when awards are settled. The adoption of this ASU did not have a material effect on our consolidated
financial statements.

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-03, Interest—Imputation of Interest (Subtopic 835-30): Simplifying the
Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs. This ASU requires that debt issuance costs related to a recognized debt liability
be presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the carrying amount of the related debt liability instead of
being presented as an asset. The ASU requires retrospective application and represents a change in accounting
principle. In August 2015, the FASB issued the related ASU No. 2015-15, Interest—Imputation of Interest (Subtopic
835-30): Presentation and Subsequent Measurement of Debt Issuance Costs Associated with Line-of-Credit
Arrangements, which clarifies ASU No. 2015-03 and states that the SEC staff would not object to an entity deferring
and presenting debt issuance costs related to a line-of-credit arrangement as an asset and subsequently amortizing the
deferred debt issuance costs ratably over the term of the line-of-credit arrangement, regardless of whether there are
any outstanding borrowings on the line-of-credit arrangement. We adopted ASU No. 2015-03 and ASU No. 2015-15
retrospectively in the first quarter of 2016, which resulted in the reclassification of deferred debt issuance costs of $56
million from other assets to an offset of long-term debt on our consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2015.
Deferred debt issuance costs related to our senior unsecured revolving credit agreement continue to be reflected in
other assets. See Note 12—Financing Agreements for additional information.

Recently Issued Pronouncements

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), which supersedes the lease accounting
requirements in Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 840, Leases. This ASU will require lessees to
recognize the rights and obligations resulting from virtually all leases (other than leases that meet the definition of a
short-term lease) on their balance sheets as right-of-use assets with corresponding lease liabilities. Extensive
quantitative and qualitative disclosures, including significant judgments made by management, will be required to
provide greater insight into the extent of income and expense recognized and expected to be recognized from existing
contracts. This ASU is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after
December 15, 2018, with early adoption permitted, and requires the modified retrospective method of adoption. We
are currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of this ASU on our consolidated financial statements.

In July 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-11, Inventory (Topic 330): Simplifying the Measurement of Inventory,
effective for annual and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2016. ASU No. 2015-11 changes the inventory
measurement principle for entities using the first-in, first out (FIFO) or average cost methods. For entities utilizing one
of these methods, the inventory measurement principle will change from lower of cost or market to the lower of cost
and net realizable value. We follow the FIFO or average cost methods and are currently evaluating the impact of the
adoption of this ASU on our consolidated financial statements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), which
supersedes the revenue recognition requirements in ASC Topic 605, Revenue Recognition. This ASU is based on the
principle that revenue is recognized to depict the transfer of goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. This ASU also
requires additional disclosure about the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising

11
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from customer contracts, including significant judgments. Additionally, the costs to obtain and fulfill a contract,
including assets to be recognized, are to be capitalized and such capitalized costs should be disclosed. In 2016, the
FASB issued additional ASUs that enhance the operability of the principal versus agent guidance in ASU No. 2014-09
by clarifying that an entity should consider the nature of each good or service promised to a customer at the individual
good or service level, clarify that ASU No. 2014-09 should not be applied to immaterial performance obligations, and
enhance the guidance around the treatment of shipping costs incurred to fulfill performance obligations. As modified
by ASU No. 2015-14, Deferral of the Effective Date, the effective date of ASU No. 2014-09 is for interim and annual
periods beginning after December 15, 2017, with early adoption permitted for interim and

7
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annual periods beginning after December 15, 2016. We are currently in the assessment phase of evaluating the impact
of the adoption of ASU No. 2014-09, as amended, on our consolidated financial statements.

3. Acquisitions

CF Fertilisers UK Acquisition

On July 31, 2015, we acquired the remaining 50% equity interest in CF Fertilisers UK Group Limited (formerly
known as GrowHow UK Group Limited) (CF Fertilisers UK) not previously owned by us for total consideration of
$570 million, and CF Fertilisers UK became wholly owned by us. The purchase price was funded with cash on hand.
Prior to July 31, 2015, our initial 50% equity interest in CF Fertilisers UK was accounted for as an equity method
investment, and the financial results of this investment were included in our consolidated statements of operations in
equity in earnings of non-operating affiliates—net of taxes. During the third quarter of 2015, we recorded a gain of
$94 million on the measurement to fair value of our initial 50% equity interest in CF Fertilisers UK that is included in
equity in earnings of non-operating affiliates—net of taxes.

The following table summarizes the allocation of the total fair value of CF Fertilisers UK to the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed in its acquisition on July 31, 2015. The fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed is
based on the estimated net realizable value for inventories, a replacement cost approach for property, plant and
equipment and the income approach for intangible assets.

OriginalAdjustments as of Adjustments Final
Valuatiaw Fair Value December to Fair Value Valuation
in 2015 31,2015 in 2016
(in millions)
Fair value of consideration $570 § — $ 570 $ —$570
transferred
Fair value of 50% of equity
interest already held by the 5710 — 570 — 570
Company
Total fair value $1,140 § — $1,140 $ —$ 1,140
Assets acquired and liabilities
assumed
Current assets $165 $ 1 $ 166 $ —$ 166
Property, plant and equipment 898  — 898 — 898
Goodwill 328 (8 ) 320 4 324
Other assets 140 (1 ) 139 — 139
Total assets acquired 1,531 (8 ) 1,523 4 1,527
Current liabilities 74 1 75 — 75
Deferred income taxes 129 9 ) 120 4 124
Other liabilities 188 — 188 — 188
Total liabilities assumed 391 (8 ) 383 4 387
Total net assets acquired $1,140 § — $1,140 $ —$ 1,140

1y InJuly 2016, final adjustments were made to the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, which
resulted in a corresponding $4 million increase to goodwill.

Current assets acquired included cash of $19 million, accounts receivable of $73 million and inventories of

$67 million. The acquired property, plant and equipment is being depreciated over a period consistent with our

existing fixed assets depreciation policy.

The acquisition resulted in the recognition of $324 million of goodwill, which is not deductible for income tax

purposes. Other assets acquired included intangible assets of $132 million consisting of customer relationships and

13
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trade names which are being amortized over a weighted-average life of approximately 20 years. See Note 7—Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets for additional information.
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Termination of Agreement to Combine with Certain of OCI N.V.’s Businesses
On August 6, 2015, we entered into a definitive agreement (as amended, the Combination Agreement) to combine
with the European, North American and global distribution businesses of OCI N.V. (OCI). On May 22, 2016, CF
Holdings, OCI and the other parties to the Combination Agreement entered into a termination agreement (the
Termination Agreement) under which the parties agreed to terminate the Combination Agreement by mutual written
consent. Pursuant to the Termination Agreement, CF Holdings paid OCI a termination fee of $150 million, which is
included in transaction costs in our consolidated statements of operations. Under the Termination Agreement, the
parties to the Combination Agreement also agreed to release each other from any and all claims, actions, obligations,
liabilities, expenses and fees in connection with, arising out of or related to the Combination Agreement and all
ancillary agreements contemplated thereby (other than the confidentiality agreement between CF Holdings and OCI)
or the transactions contemplated therein or thereby. See Note 12—Financing Agreements—Bridge Credit Agreement for
additional information.
4. Net Earnings Per Share
Net earnings per share were computed as follows:

Three months Nine months

ended ended
September September
30, 30,

2016 2015 2016 2015
(in millions, except per
share amounts)
Net (loss) earnings attributable to common stockholders $(30 ) $90 $43 $673
Basic earnings per common share:
Weighted-average common shares outstanding 233.1 233.1 233.2 236.0
Net (loss) earnings attributable to common stockholders $(0.13) $0.39 $0.19 $2.85
Diluted earnings per common share:

Weighted-average common shares outstanding 233.1 233.1 233.2 236.0
Dilutive common shares—stock options — 09 03 09
Diluted weighted-average shares outstanding 233.1 234.0 233.5 236.9

Net (loss) earnings attributable to common stockholders $(0.13) $0.39 $0.19 $2.84

In the computation of diluted earnings per common share, potentially dilutive stock options are excluded if the effect
of their inclusion is anti-dilutive. Shares for anti-dilutive stock options not included in the computation of diluted
earnings per common share were 5.0 million and 4.3 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016,
respectively, and 0.8 million for both the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015.

5. Inventories

Inventories consist of the following:

Septemteecinber 31,
2016 2015
(in millions)

Finished goods $280 $ 286

Raw materials, spare parts and supplies 32 35

Total inventories $312 $§ 321

9
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6. Property, Plant and Equipment—Net
Property, plant and equipment—net consists of the following:

SeptemHoedéinber 31,

2016 2015

(in millions)
Land $66 $ 68
Machinery and equipment 7,754 1,348
Buildings and improvements 342 271
Construction in progress(!) 4,682 3,626
Property, plant and equipment 12,844 11,313
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization 3,119 2,774
Property, plant and equipment—net $9,725 $ 8,539

As of September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, we had construction in progress that was accrued but unpaid of
(1) $426 million and $543 million, respectively. These amounts included accruals related to our capacity expansion
projects of $384 million and $471 million as of September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively.

Depreciation and amortization related to property, plant and equipment was $139 million and $425 million for the
three and nine months ended September 30, 2016, respectively, and $117 million and $317 million for the three and
nine months ended September 30, 2015, respectively.
Plant turnarounds—Scheduled inspections, replacements and overhauls of plant machinery and equipment at our
continuous process manufacturing facilities during a full plant shutdown are referred to as plant turnarounds. The
expenditures related to turnarounds are capitalized in property, plant and equipment when incurred. The following is a
summary of capitalized plant turnaround costs:

Nine months

ended

September

30,

2016 2015

(in millions)
Net capitalized turnaround costs:

Beginning balance $220 $153
Additions 60 100
Depreciation 66 ) 47 )
Effect of exchange rate changes 2 2 )
Ending balance $216 $204

Scheduled replacements and overhauls of plant machinery and equipment include the dismantling, repair or
replacement and installation of various components including piping, valves, motors, turbines, pumps, compressors,
heat exchangers and the replacement of catalysts when a full plant shutdown occurs. Scheduled inspections are also
conducted during full plant shutdowns, including required safety inspections which entail the disassembly of various
components such as steam boilers, pressure vessels and other equipment requiring safety certifications. Internal
employee costs and overhead amounts are not considered turnaround costs and are not capitalized.

10
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7. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
The following table shows the carrying amount of goodwill by reportable segment as of September 30, 2016 and
December 31, 2015:

Granular
1a

Ammo(ﬁl UAN AN  Other Total
rea

(in millions)
Balance as of December 31,2015 $587 $ 828  $576 $324 $75 $2,390
CF Fertilisers UKD — — — 3 1 4
Effect of exchange rate changes — — — @31 Y@ )35 )
Balance as of September 30, 2016 $587 $ 828 $576 $296 $72 $2,359

In July 2016, final adjustments were made to the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the
(1) acquisition of the remaining 50% equity interest in CF Fertilisers UK not previously owned by us, which resulted
in a corresponding $4 million increase to goodwill. See Note 3—Acquisitions for additional information.
All of our identifiable intangible assets have definite lives and are presented in other assets on our consolidated
balance sheets at gross carrying amount, net of accumulated amortization, as follows:

September 30, 2016 December 31, 2015
GrOSS.Accumulated GrOSS.Accumulated
Carryi .. Net Carryi .

ortization ortization
Amount Amount

(in millions)

Intangible assets:
Customer relationships $129 $ (23 ) $106 $140 $ (18 ) $122
TerraCair brand 10 (10 ) — 10 (10 ) —
Trade names 31 (2 ) 29 35 (1 ) 34
Total intangible assets $170 $ (35 ) $135 $185$ (29 ) $156
Amortization expense of our identifiable intangible assets was $2 million and $6 million for the three and nine months
ended September 30, 2016, respectively, and $2 million and $8 million for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2015, respectively. In early 2015, management approved a plan to discontinue the usage of TerraCair
brand in the sale of DEF. Based on the change in the usage of this brand, the related intangible assets were fully
amortized during the first quarter of 2015.
Total estimated amortization expense for the remainder of 2016 and each of the five succeeding fiscal years is as
follows:

Estimated

Amortization

Expense

(in millions)
Remainder of 2016 $ 2
2017 9
2018
2019
2020
2021

O © O O

11
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8. Equity Method Investments
Operating Equity Method Investment
As of September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, we have a 50% ownership interest in Point Lisas Nitrogen Limited
(PLNL), which operates an ammonia production facility in the Republic of Trinidad and Tobago. We include our
share of the net earnings from this equity method investment as an element of earnings from operations because PLNL
provides additional production to our operations and is integrated with our other supply chain and sales activities in
the ammonia segment.
The total carrying value of our equity method investment in PLNL as of September 30, 2016 was $207 million more
than our share of PLNL's book value. The excess is primarily attributable to the purchase accounting impact of our
acquisition of the investment in PLNL and reflects the revaluation of property, plant and equipment, the value of an
exclusive natural gas contract and goodwill. The increased basis for property, plant and equipment and the gas
contract are being amortized over a remaining period of approximately 17 years and 2 years, respectively. Our equity
in earnings of PLNL is different from our ownership interest in income reported by PLNL due to amortization of these
basis differences. Our equity in losses of PLNL for the nine months ended September 30, 2016 of $11 million includes
the impact of a planned maintenance activity in the second quarter of 2016 that resulted in the shutdown of the PLNL
ammonia plant for approximately 45 days.
We have transactions in the normal course of business with PLNL reflecting our obligation to purchase 50% of the
ammonia produced by PLNL at current market prices. Our ammonia purchases from PLNL totaled $13 million and
$47 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016, respectively, and $27 million and $84 million
for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015, respectively.
In the fourth quarter of 2015, we determined the carrying value of our investment in PLNL exceeded fair value and
recognized an impairment charge of $62 million. See Note 9—Fair Value Measurements for additional information.
Non-Operating Equity Method Investments
We no longer have non-operating equity method investments as a result of the sale of our 50% ownership interest in
KEYTRADE AG during the second quarter of 2015 and our July 31, 2015 acquisition of the remaining 50% equity
interest in CF Fertilisers UK not previously owned by us. See Note 3—Acquisitions for additional information.
Equity in earnings of non-operating affiliates—net of taxes for the three months ended September 30, 2015 of $93
million includes the after-tax gain on remeasurement to fair value of our initial 50% equity interest in CF Fertilisers
UK and our equity in losses of CF Fertilisers UK through the acquisition date.
Equity in earnings of non-operating affiliates—net of taxes for the nine months ended September 30, 2015 of $72
million includes our after-tax gain on remeasurement to fair value of our initial 50% equity interest in CF Fertilisers
UK, the after-tax loss on the sale of our interests in Keytrade, and our equity in earnings (losses) of Keytrade, through
the date of sale, and CF Fertilisers UK, through the acquisition date.
9. Fair Value Measurements
Our cash and cash equivalents and other investments consist of the following:

September 30, 2016

Cost  Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Basis Gains Losses Value
(in millions)
Cash $113  $ —3$ —$113
Cash equivalents:
U.S. and Canadian government obligations 1,417 — — 1,417
Other debt securities 24 — — 24
Total cash and cash equivalents $1,554 $ —3$ —$1,554
Restricted cash 7 — — 7
Nonqualified employee benefit trusts 17 2 — 19
12
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December 31, 2015
Cost Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Basis Gains Losses Value
(in millions)
Cash $71 $ —3 —$71
Cash equivalents:
U.S. and Canadian government obligations 190 — — 190
Other debt securities 25 — — 25
Total cash and cash equivalents $286 $ —3 —$ 286
Restricted cash 23 — — 23
Nonqualified employee benefit trusts 18 1 — 19

Under our short-term investment policy, we may invest our cash balances, either directly or through mutual funds, in
several types of investment-grade securities, including notes and bonds issued by governmental entities or
corporations. Securities issued by governmental entities include those issued directly by the federal government; those
issued by state, local or other governmental entities; and those guaranteed by entities affiliated with governmental
entities.
Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis
The following tables present assets and liabilities included in our consolidated balance sheets as of September 30,
2016 and December 31, 2015 that are recognized at fair value on a recurring basis, and indicate the fair value
hierarchy utilized to determine such fair value:

September 30, 2016

Ql.loted Significant Significant

Total  Prices  Other Unobservable

Fair in Active Observable Inputs

Value Markets Inputs

(Level 1) (Level2) (Leveld)

(in millions)
Cash equivalents $1,441 $1441 $ — S —
Restricted cash 7 7 — —
Derivative assets 5 — 5 —
Nonqualified employee benefit trusts 19 19 — —
Derivative liabilities 48 ) — 48 ) —
Embedded derivative liability 30 ) — 30 ) —

December 31, 2015

quted Significant Significant

Total Prices Other Unobservable

Fair  in Active Observable Tnputs

Value Markets Inputs (Level 3)

(Level 1) (Level 2)

(in millions)
Cash equivalents $215 $ 215 % —  $ —
Restricted cash 23 23 — —
Nonqualified employee benefit trusts 19 19 — —
Derivative liabilities 211 ) — 211 ) —
Cash Equivalents

As of September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, our cash equivalents consisted primarily of U.S. and Canadian
government obligations and money market mutual funds that invest in U.S. government obligations and other
investment-grade securities.

19
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Restricted Cash
We maintain a cash account for which the use of the funds is restricted. The restricted cash was put in place to satisfy
certain requirements included in our engineering and procurement services contract for our capacity expansion
projects. Under the terms of this contract, we granted an affiliate of ThyssenKrupp Industrial Solutions a security
interest in a restricted cash account and maintain a cash balance in that account equal to the cancellation fees for
procurement services and equipment that would arise if we were to cancel the projects.
Derivative Instruments
The derivative instruments that we use are primarily natural gas fixed price swaps, natural gas options and foreign
currency forward contracts traded in the over-the-counter (OTC) markets with multi-national commercial banks, other
major financial institutions and large energy companies. The natural gas derivative contracts represent anticipated
natural gas needs for future periods and settlements are scheduled to coincide with anticipated gas purchases during
those future periods. The foreign currency derivative contracts held are for the exchange of a specified notional
amount of currencies at specified future dates coinciding with anticipated foreign currency cash outflows associated
with our Donaldsonville, Louisiana and Port Neal, lowa capacity expansion projects. The natural gas derivative
contracts settle using primarily NYMEX futures prices. To determine the fair value of these instruments, we use
quoted market prices from NYMEX and standard pricing models with inputs derived from or corroborated by
observable market data such as forward curves supplied by an industry-recognized independent third party. The
foreign currency derivatives are valued based on quoted market prices supplied by an industry-recognized independent
third party. See Note 13—Derivative Financial Instruments for additional information.
Embedded Derivative Liability
Under the terms of our strategic venture with CHS Inc. (CHS), if our credit rating is reduced below certain levels by
two of three specified credit ratings agencies, we are required to make a non-refundable yearly payment of $5 million
to CHS. The payment would continue on a yearly basis until the earlier of the date that our credit rating is upgraded to
or above certain levels by two of the three specified credit ratings agencies or February 1, 2026. On February 1, 2016,
we recognized this term of the strategic venture as an embedded derivative and its value of $8 million was included in
other liabilities on our consolidated balance sheet. See Note 14—Noncontrolling Interests for additional information.
During the three months ended September 30, 2016, we recorded an adjustment to increase the value of the embedded
derivative liability by $22 million to $30 million to reflect our credit evaluation. The inputs into the fair value
measurement include the probability of future upgrades and downgrades of the Company’s credit rating based on
historical credit rating movements of other public companies and the discount rates to be applied to potential annual
payments based on applicable credit spreads of other public companies at different credit rating levels. Based on these
inputs, our fair value measurement is classified as Level 2. The $22 million charge to reflect the change in fair value is
included in other operating—net in our consolidated statement of operations for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2016. The embedded derivative liability of $30 million is included in other liabilities and other current
liabilities on our consolidated balance sheet as of September 30, 2016.
Nonqualified Employee Benefit Trusts
We maintain trusts associated with certain nonqualified supplemental pension plans. The investments are accounted
for as available-for-sale securities. The fair values of the trust assets are based on daily quoted prices in an active
market, which represents the net asset values of the shares held in the trusts. These trusts are included on our
consolidated balance sheets in other assets.
Financial Instruments
The carrying amount and estimated fair value of our long-term debt is as follows:

September 30, December 31,

2016 2015

Carryingfair ~ Carryingrair

AmountValue AmountValue

(in millions)
Long-term debt $5,540 $5,810 $5,537 $5,456
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The fair value of our long-term debt was based on either quoted prices for identical or similar liabilities in markets

that are not active or valuation models in which all significant inputs and value drivers are observable and, as a result,
are classified as Level 2 inputs.
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The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, as well as instruments included in other current assets and other
current liabilities that meet the definition of financial instruments, approximate fair values because of their short-term
maturities.

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis

We also have assets and liabilities that may be measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis; that is, the assets and
liabilities are not measured at fair value on an ongoing basis, but are subject to fair value adjustments in certain
circumstances, such as when there is evidence of impairment, allocation of purchase price in an acquisition or when a
new liability is being established that requires fair value measurement. These include long-lived assets, goodwill and
other intangible assets and investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries which may be written down to fair value as a
result of impairment. The fair value measurements related to each of these rely primarily on Company-specific inputs
and the Company's assumptions about the use of the assets. Since certain of the Company’s assumptions would involve
inputs that are not observable, these fair values would reside within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

We review the carrying value of our goodwill, definite lived intangible assets, and investments in affiliates to assess
recoverability as part of our annual impairment review in the fourth quarter of each year. As part of the assessment
process when performing impairment tests, we estimate many factors including future sales volume, selling prices,
raw materials costs, operating rates, operating expenses, inflation, discount rates, exchange rates, tax rates and capital
spending. The assumptions we make are material estimates that are used in the impairment testing. The current
oversupply in the nitrogen fertilizer markets has led to a decline in selling prices, gross margin and profitability. These
factors, as well as others, may have contributed to a potential decline in value for our reporting units that could result
in an impairment charge.

Our equity method investment in the Republic of Trinidad and Tobago, PLNL, operates an ammonia plant that relies
on natural gas supplied, under a Gas Sales Contract (the NGC Contract), by The National Gas Company of Trinidad
and Tobago Limited (NGC). See Note 8—Equity Method Investments for additional information. PLNL has continued
to experience curtailments in the supply of natural gas from NGC, which has reduced the ammonia production at
PLNL. NGC has communicated to PLNL that it does not recognize PLNL's exercise of its option to renew the NGC
Contract for an additional five-year term beyond its current termination date in September 2018, and that any NGC
commitment to supply gas beyond 2018 will need to be based on new agreements regarding volume and price. PLNL
has initiated arbitration proceedings against NGC and asserted claims in connection with NGC’s failure to supply the
contracted quantities of natural gas, and its refusal to recognize PLNL’s exercise of its option to extend the NGC
Contract. PLNL is seeking declaratory and injunctive relief, as well as damages for past and ongoing curtailments.
Although PLNL believes its claims against NGC to be meritorious, it is not possible to predict the outcome of the
arbitration. The future availability of natural gas and the price of such gas are unclear at the present time. Natural gas
is the principal raw material used to produce nitrogen fertilizers; therefore, a decrease in availability of natural gas
leads to lower revenues and cash flows. In our fourth quarter 2015 impairment analysis, our assumptions included that
similar curtailments were expected to continue into the foreseeable future, as commitments from NGC regarding the
level of future availability and the related cost were not and are still not available. The future availability and cost of
natural gas represents a significant assumption which is included in the projection of future revenue and expenses of
the business used in the discounted cash flow model utilized to estimate fair value for our impairment analysis. In the
fourth quarter of 2015, recognizing that natural gas curtailments were expected to continue into the foreseeable future,
we determined the carrying value of our investment in PLNL exceeded fair value and recognized an impairment
charge of $62 million.

10. Income Taxes

For the three months ended September 30, 2016, we recorded an income tax benefit of $131 million on a pre-tax loss
of $131 million, compared to an income tax provision of $20 million on pre-tax income of $24 million for the three
months ended September 30, 2015.

The income tax benefit of $131 million primarily relates to the fact that we are now projecting that full year 2016
pre-tax earnings, excluding the noncontrolling interests, will be a loss. As of June 30, 2016, we were projecting profit
for the full year. The impact of this change in projected profitability was an income tax benefit of $163 million. In
addition, other items included in our annualized effective tax rate that impacted the income tax benefit recorded in the
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third quarter of 2016 were, as follows:

We recorded income tax expense of $42 million related to the reversal of prior year U.S. manufacturing profits
deductions due to the recapture of these benefits in the third quarter of 2016. The recapture results from our intention
to carry back certain tax losses to prior years that will reduce the amount of the prior year U.S. manufacturing profits
deduction that can be claimed.

We recorded a valuation allowance of $21 million against certain foreign deferred tax assets which increased income
tax expense.
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We recorded an income tax benefit of $9 million related to the impact of certain transaction costs which were
treated as not being deductible for tax purposes in the prior year and are now tax deductible as a result of the
termination of the proposed combination with certain businesses of OCI. See Note 3—Acquisitions for additional
information.

Our effective tax rate is also impacted by earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests in CF Industries Nitrogen
LLC (CFN) and Terra Nitrogen Company L.P. (TNCLP), as our consolidated income tax provision does not include a
tax provision on the earnings attributable to the noncontrolling interest. Earnings attributable to noncontrolling
interests increased in 2016 due to our strategic venture with CHS that commenced on February 1, 2016, at which time
CHS purchased a noncontrolling equity interest in CFN. See Note 14—Noncontrolling Interests for additional
information.

During the third quarter of 2016, one of our Canadian subsidiaries received a Notice of Reassessment from the Canada
Revenue Agency (CRA) for tax years 2006 through 2009 asserting a disallowance of certain patronage allocations.
The tax assessment of $88 million plus interest and penalties of $31 million does not include provincial taxes which
have not yet been reassessed. This audit was initiated by the CRA in January 2010 and involves the sole issue of
whether certain patronage allocations meet the requirements for deductibility under the Income Tax Act of Canada.
We intend to appeal this reassessment and we believe that it is more likely than not that the patronage allocation
deduction will be sustained on audit. In the event that we do not prevail in the appeal, we should be entitled to a U.S.
foreign tax credit against any incremental Canadian tax paid.

During the third quarter of 2015, we completed the acquisition of the remaining 50% equity interest in CF Fertilisers
UK not previously owned by us and recognized a $94 million gain on the remeasurement to fair value of our initial
50% equity interest in CF Fertilisers UK. The earnings of CF Fertilisers UK have been treated as being permanently
reinvested. Therefore, the recognition of the $94 million gain on the remeasurement of the historical equity investment
does not include the recognition of tax expense on the gain.

As of September 30, 2016, we have prepaid income taxes in the amount of $830 million. This includes approximately
$760 million from the carry back of certain U.S. tax losses from the current year to prior tax periods. The amount of
the tax loss carryback could be impacted by the timing of the completion of certain capital projects before the end of
2016, including the completion of the Port Neal capacity expansion project. To the extent these projects are not
completed prior to the end of 2016 our prepaid income tax amount could be reduced.

11. Interest Expense

Details of interest expense are as follows:

Three .

Nine months
months

ended
ended

September
September
30 30,

2016 2015 2016 2015
(in millions)

Interest on borrowings() $76 $65 $227 $192
Fees on financing agreements(D23) 6 8 42 12
Interest on tax liabilities 2 1 3 2
Interest capitalized (53) 44) (142 ) (113)
Total interest expense $31 $30 $130 $93

(1) See Note 12—Financing Agreements for additional information.

(2 Fees on financing agreements for the nine months ended September 30, 2016 includes $28 million of fees related
to the termination of the tranche B commitment under the bridge credit agreement as a result of the termination of
the Combination Agreement. Fees on financing agreements for both the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2015 includes $6 million of accelerated amortization of deferred fees related to the termination in
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September 2015 of the tranche A commitment under the bridge credit agreement. See Note 3—Acquisitions for

additional information.

Fees on financing agreements for both the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016 includes $2 million of
(3) accelerated amortization of deferred fees related to the amendment of our senior unsecured revolving credit

agreement which reduced the revolving credit facility to $1.5 billion from $2.0 billion. See Note 12—Financing

Agreements for additional information.
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12. Financing Agreements

Revolving Credit Agreement

We have a senior unsecured revolving credit agreement (as amended, including by an amendment effective July 29,
2016 that we refer to as the July 2016 Credit Agreement Amendment, the Revolving Credit Agreement) providing for
a revolving credit facility of up to $1.5 billion (reflecting a reduction from $2.0 billion effected by the July 2016
Credit Agreement Amendment) with a maturity of September 18, 2020. The Revolving Credit Agreement includes a
letter of credit sub-limit of $125 million (reflecting a reduction from $175 million effected by the July 2016 Credit
Agreement Amendment).

Borrowings under the Revolving Credit Agreement may be used for working capital and general corporate purposes.
CF Industries is a borrower, and CF Industries and CF Holdings are guarantors, under the Revolving Credit
Agreement. CF Industries may designate as borrowers one or more wholly owned subsidiaries that are organized in
the United States or any state thereof, the District of Columbia, England and Wales or the Netherlands.

Borrowings under the Revolving Credit Agreement may be denominated in dollars, Canadian dollars, euro and
sterling, and bear interest at a per annum rate equal to an applicable eurocurrency rate or base rate plus, in either case,
a specified margin, and the borrowers are required to pay an undrawn commitment fee on the undrawn portion of the
commitments under the Revolving Credit Agreement and customary letter of credit fees. The specified margin and the
amount of the commitment fee depend on CF Holdings’ credit rating at the time.

Certain of CF Holdings” wholly owned U.S. subsidiaries will be required to become guarantors of the obligations
under the Revolving Credit Agreement if (i) such subsidiaries guarantee other debt for borrowed money (subject to
specified exceptions) of CF Holdings or CF Industries in an aggregate principal amount in excess of $500 million or
(ii) such subsidiaries are borrowers under, issuers of, or guarantors of specified debt obligations of CF Holdings or CF
Industries.

The Revolving Credit Agreement contains customary representations and warranties and covenants for a financing of
this type, including two financial maintenance covenants:

arequirement that the interest coverage ratio (as defined in the Revolving Credit Agreement) as of the last day of any
fiscal quarter not be less than 2.75 to 1.00 and

arequirement that the total leverage ratio (as defined in the Revolving Credit Agreement) as of the last day of any
fiscal quarter not be greater than

5.25 to 1.00 for the quarters ending September 30, 2016, December 31, 2016 and March 31, 2017;

5.00 to 1.00 for the quarter ending June 30, 2017;

4.75 to 1.00 for the quarter ending September 30, 2017;

4.00 to 1.00 for the quarter ending December 31, 2017; and

3.75 to 1.00 for the quarters ending after December 31, 2017.

Immediately prior to the July 2016 Credit Agreement Amendment, the Revolving Credit Agreement had required that
the total leverage ratio as of the last day of any fiscal quarter not be greater than 3.75 to 1.00 for all periods. As of
September 30, 2016, we were in compliance with all covenants under the Revolving Credit Agreement.

The Revolving Credit Agreement contains events of default (with notice requirements and cure periods, as applicable)
customary for a financing of this type, including, but not limited to, non-payment of principal, interest or fees;
inaccuracy of representations and warranties in any material respect; and failure to comply with specified covenants.
Upon the occurrence and during the continuance of an event of default under the Revolving Credit Agreement and
after any applicable cure period, subject to specified exceptions, the administrative agent may, and at the request of
the requisite lenders is required to, accelerate the loans under the Revolving Credit Agreement or terminate the lenders’
commitments under the Revolving Credit Agreement.

As of September 30, 2016, we had excess borrowing capacity under the Revolving Credit Agreement of $1,495
million (net of outstanding letters of credit of $5 million). There were no borrowings outstanding under the Revolving
Credit Agreement as of September 30, 2016 or December 31, 2015. Maximum borrowings outstanding under the
Revolving Credit Agreement during the nine months ended September 30, 2016 were $150 million. The
weighted-average annual interest rate of borrowings under the Revolving Credit Agreement during the nine months
ended September 30, 2016 was 1.85%. Maximum borrowings under the Revolving Credit Agreement during the nine
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months ended September 30, 2015, were $367 million with a weighted-average annual interest rate of 1.47%.
See Note 19—Subsequent Events for additional information regarding the Revolving Credit Agreement.
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Public Senior Notes and Private Senior Notes
Long-term debt presented on our consolidated balance sheets as of September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015
consisted of the following unsecured senior notes:
September 30, December 31,
2016 2015
Effective Interest Rate Carrying Carrying
PrincipaAmount PrincipaAmount
@ DO
(in millions)
Public Senior Notes:

6.875% due 2018 7.344% $800 $794 $800 $792
7.125% due 2020 7.529% 800 790 800 788
3.450% due 2023 3.562% 750 745 750 745
5.150% due 2034 5.279% 750 739 750 739
4.950% due 2043 5.031% 750 741 750 741
5.375% due 2044 5.465% 750 740 750 740
Private Senior Notes:

4.490% due 2022 4.664% 250 248 250 248
4.930% due 2025 5.061% 500 495 500 496
5.030% due 2027 5.145% 250 248 250 248
Total long-term debt $5,600 $5,540 $5,600 $ 5,537

Carrying amount is net of unamortized debt discount and deferred debt issuance costs. Total unamortized debt
() discount was $7 million as of both September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, and total deferred debt issuance
costs were $52 million and $56 million as of September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively.
In connection with our adoption of ASU No. 2015-03, Interest—Imputation of Interest (Subtopic 835-30):
Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs, carrying amounts as of December 31, 2015 have been
@) retrospectively adjusted to include a direct deduction of deferred debt issuance costs of $56 million. Prior to the
adoption, these costs were included in other assets on our consolidated balance sheets. See Note 2—New Accounting
Standards for additional information.
Public Senior Notes
Under the indentures (including the applicable supplemental indentures) governing the senior notes due 2018, 2020,
2023, 2034, 2043 and 2044 identified in the table above (the Public Senior Notes), each series of Public Senior Notes
is guaranteed by CF Holdings. Interest on the Public Senior Notes is paid semiannually, and the Public Senior Notes
are redeemable at our option, in whole at any time or in part from time to time, at specified make-whole redemption
prices. The indentures governing the Public Senior Notes contain customary events of default (including cross-default
triggered by acceleration of, or a principal payment default that is not cured within an applicable grace period under,
other debt having a principal amount of $150 million or more) and covenants that limit, among other things, the ability
of CF Holdings and its subsidiaries, including CF Industries, to incur liens on certain properties to secure debt.
If a Change of Control occurs together with a Ratings Downgrade (as both terms are defined under the indentures
governing the Public Senior Notes), CF Industries would be required to offer to repurchase each series of Public
Senior Notes at a price equal to 101% of the principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest. In addition, in
the event that a subsidiary of CF Holdings, other than CF Industries, becomes a borrower or a guarantor under the
Revolving Credit Agreement (or any renewal, replacement or refinancing thereof), such subsidiary would be required
to become a guarantor of the Public Senior Notes, provided that such requirement will no longer apply with respect to
the Public Senior Notes due in 2023, 2034, 2043 and 2044 following the repayment of the Public Senior Notes due in
2018 and 2020 or the subsidiaries of ours, other than CF Industries, otherwise becoming no longer subject to such a
requirement to guarantee the Public Senior Notes due in 2018 and 2020.
Private Senior Notes
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The senior notes due 2022, 2025 and 2027 (the Private Senior Notes), issued by CF Industries on September 24, 2015,
are governed by the terms of a note purchase agreement (as amended, including by an amendment effective September
7, 2016 that we refer to as the September 2016 NPA Amendment, the Note Purchase Agreement). Interest on the
Private Senior Notes is
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payable semiannually on April 15 and October 15. The Private Senior Notes are guaranteed by CF Holdings. All
obligations under the Note Purchase Agreement are unsecured.

Under the terms of the Note Purchase Agreement, CF Industries may prepay at any time all, or from time to time any
part of, any series of the Private Senior Notes, in an amount not less than 5% of the aggregate principal amount of
such series of the Private Senior Notes then outstanding in the case of a partial prepayment, at 100% of the principal
amount so prepaid plus a make-whole amount determined as specified in the Note Purchase Agreement. In the event
of a Change in Control (as defined in the Note Purchase Agreement), each holder of the Private Senior Notes may
require CF Industries to prepay the entire unpaid principal amount of the Private Senior Notes held by such holder at a
price equal to 100% of the principal amount of such Private Senior Notes together with accrued and unpaid interest
thereon, but without any make-whole amount or other premium.

The Note Purchase Agreement contains customary representations and warranties and covenants for a financing of
this type, including two financial maintenance covenants:
arequirement that the interest coverage ratio (as defined in the Note Purchase Agreement) as of the last day of any
fiscal quarter not be less than 2.75 to 1.00 and
arequirement that the total leverage ratio (as defined in the Note Purchase Agreement) as of the last day of any fiscal
quarter not be greater than
5.25 to 1.00 for the quarters ending September 30, 2016, December 31, 2016 and March 31, 2017;

5.00 to 1.00 for the quarter ending June 30, 2017;

4.75 to 1.00 for the quarter ending September 30, 2017;

4.00 to 1.00 for the quarter ending December 31, 2017; and
3.75 to 1.00 for the quarters ending after December 31, 2017.

Immediately prior to the September 2016 NPA Amendment, the Note Purchase Agreement had required that the total
leverage ratio as of the last day of any fiscal quarter not be greater than 3.75 to 1.00 for all periods. As of
September 30, 2016, we were in compliance with all covenants under the Note Purchase Agreement.

The Note Purchase Agreement provides for a fee (the Elevated Leverage Ratio Fee) to be paid by CF Industries to the
holders of the Private Senior Notes with respect to each quarter ending on or prior to December 31, 2017 for which
the total leverage ratio is greater than 3.75 to 1.00 as follows: if the total leverage ratio for the applicable quarter is
greater than 3.75 to 1.00 but less than or equal to 4.50 to 1.00, the Elevated Leverage Ratio Fee for that quarter will be
0.125% of the aggregate outstanding principal amount of the Private Senior Notes; and if the total leverage ratio for
the applicable quarter is greater than 4.50 to 1.00, the Elevated Leverage Ratio Fee will be 0.25% of the aggregate
outstanding principal amount of the Private Senior Notes. For the quarter ended September 30, 2016, we did not incur
this fee as our total leverage ratio was less than 3:75 to 1.00.

The Note Purchase Agreement requires that CF Industries, beginning December 31, 2016, obtain and maintain a credit
rating with respect to the Private Senior Notes. If the rating so requested and obtained by CF Industries is not
investment grade as of any interest payment date with respect to the Private Senior Notes prior to the later of April 15,

2018 or the first interest payment date thereafter on which the rating requested and obtained by CF Industries is
investment grade, CF Industries will be required to pay holders of the Private Senior Notes a fee of 0.75% of the
aggregate outstanding principal amount of the Private Senior Notes.

The Note Purchase Agreement includes a most favored lender provision under which the financial covenants in the
Note Purchase Agreement would generally incorporate automatically any changes to the analogous financial
covenants in the Revolving Credit Agreement (or any amendment or replacement of that agreement) made until the
first date after March 31, 2018 on which the requisite credit rating with respect to the Private Senior Notes is
investment grade and CF Industries is in compliance with the financial covenants in the Note Purchase Agreement, if
those changes as so incorporated would be beneficial to the holders of the Private Senior Notes.

The Note Purchase Agreement contains events of default (with notice requirements and cure periods, as applicable)
customary for a financing of this type, including, but not limited to, non-payment of principal, make-whole amounts,
or interest; inaccuracy of representations and warranties in any material respect; and failure to comply with specified
covenants. Upon the occurrence and during the continuance of an event of default under the Note Purchase Agreement
and after any applicable cure period, subject to specified exceptions, the holder or holders of more than 50% in
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principal amount of the Private Senior Notes outstanding may declare all the Private Senior Notes then outstanding
due and payable.

See Note 19—Subsequent Events for additional information regarding the Private Senior Notes.
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Bridge Credit Agreement

On September 18, 2015, in connection with our proposed combination with certain businesses of OCI (see Note
3—Acquisitions for additional information), CF Holdings and CF Industries entered into a senior unsecured 364-Day
Bridge Credit Agreement (as amended, the Bridge Credit Agreement). Upon the termination of the Combination
Agreement on May 22, 2016, the lenders’ commitments under the Bridge Credit Agreement terminated automatically.
There were no borrowings under the Bridge Credit Agreement. See Note 11—Interest Expense for additional
information.

13. Derivative Financial Instruments

We use derivative financial instruments to reduce our exposure to changes in commodity prices and foreign currency
exchange rates.

Commodity Price Risk Management

Natural gas is the largest and most volatile component of the manufacturing cost for nitrogen-based products. We
manage the risk of changes in natural gas prices primarily through the use of derivative financial instruments. The
derivatives that we use for this purpose are primarily natural gas fixed price swaps and natural gas options traded in
the OTC markets. These natural gas derivatives settle using primarily a NYMEX futures price index, which represents
the basis for fair value at any given time. We enter into natural gas derivative contracts with respect to natural gas to
be consumed by us in the future, and settlements of those derivative contracts are scheduled to coincide with our
anticipated purchases of natural gas used to manufacture nitrogen products during those future periods. We use natural
gas derivatives as an economic hedge of natural gas price risk, but without the application of hedge accounting. As a
result, changes in fair value of these contracts are recognized in earnings. As of September 30, 2016, we have natural
gas derivative contracts covering periods through the end of 2018.

As of September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, we had open natural gas derivative contracts for 247.2 million
MMBtus (millions of British thermal units) and 431.5 million MMBtus, respectively. For the nine months ended
September 30, 2016, we used derivatives to cover approximately 86% of our natural gas consumption.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rates

A portion of the costs for our capacity expansion projects at our Donaldsonville, Louisiana complex and Port Neal,
Iowa complex are euro-denominated. In order to manage our exposure to changes in the euro to U.S. dollar currency
exchange rates, we have hedged our projected euro-denominated payments through the end of 2016 using foreign
currency forward contracts.

As of September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the notional amount of our open foreign currency derivatives was
€50 million and €89 million, respectively. None of these open foreign currency derivatives were designated as hedging
instruments for accounting purposes.

As of September 30, 2016, accumulated other comprehensive income includes $7 million of pre-tax gains related to
foreign currency derivatives that were originally designated as cash flow hedges. The hedges were de-designated as of
December 31, 2013. The remaining balance in accumulated other comprehensive income is being reclassified into
income over the depreciable lives of the property, plant and equipment associated with the capacity expansion
projects. The amounts recognized during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016 were insignificant. We
expect that the amounts to be reclassified within the next twelve months will be insignificant.
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The effect of derivatives in our consolidated statements of operations is shown in the table below.
Unrealized gain (loss) recognized

in income
Three months
ended
September
30,
Location 2016 2015
(in millions)
Natural gas derivatives Cost of sales $(21) $(126)
Foreign currency derivatives Other operating—net— 13
Unrealized losses recognized in income $(21) $(113)
Gain (loss) in
income
Three months
ended
September
30,
All Derivatives 2016 2015

(in millions)
Unrealized net losses $(21) $(113)
Realized net losses (10 ) (16 )
Net derivative losses $(31) $(129)
Unrealized gain (loss)
recognized in income
Nine months
ended
September
30,
Location 2016 2015
(in millions)
Natural gas derivatives Cost of sales $169 $(79)
Foreign currency derivatives Other operating—netl ) 16
Unrealized gains recognized in income (losses) $168 $(63)
Gain (loss) in
income
Nine months
ended
September
30,
All Derivatives 2016 2015
(in millions)
Unrealized net gains (losses) $168 $(63 )
Realized net losses (125) (75 )
Net derivative gains (losses) $43  $(138)
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The fair values of derivatives on our consolidated balance sheets are shown below. As of September 30, 2016 and

December 31, 2015, none of our derivative instruments were designated as hedging instruments. For additional
information on derivative fair values, see Note 9—Fair Value Measurements.

Asset Derivatives Liability Derivatives
Balance Sheet SeptembeilBeember 31, 1831211:;1206 Septemberdber 31,
Location 2016 2015 . 2016 2015
Location
(in millions) (in millions)
Other
Foreign currency derivatives Other current assets $ —  § —current  $(1 ) $ —
liabilities
. . Other
Foreign currency derivatives Other assets — — liabilities —
Other
Natural gas derivatives Other current assets 4 — current (30 ) (130 )
liabilities
Natural gas derivatives Other assets 1 — (.)th.er. .7 ) (81 )
liabilities
Total derivatives $ 5 $ — $48) $ (211 )
Current / Noncurrent totals
Other
Other current assets $ 4 $ —current  $(31) $ (130 )
liabilities
Other
Other assets 1 — liabilities (17 ) (81 )
Total derivatives $ 5 $ — $48) $ (211 )

As of September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the aggregate fair value of the derivative instruments with
credit-risk-related contingent features in net liability positions was $43 million and $211 million, respectively, which
also approximates the fair value of the maximum amount of additional collateral that would need to be posted or
assets needed to settle the obligations if the credit-risk-related contingent features were triggered at the reporting
dates. At both September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, we had no cash collateral on deposit with counterparties
for derivative contracts. The credit support documents executed in connection with certain of our International Swaps
and Derivatives Association (ISDA) agreements generally provide us and our counterparties the right to set off
collateral against amounts owing under the ISDA agreements upon the occurrence of a default or a specified
termination event.
The following table presents amounts relevant to offsetting of our derivative assets and liabilities as of September 30,
2016 and December 31, 2015:
Gross amounts not

Amounteffset in

presentedonsolidated

in balance sheets

consolidated Cash

balance Financialcollateral Net

sheets(instrumentsceived amount

(pledged)

(in millions)
September 30, 2016
Total derivative assets ~ $5 $ 5 % —$—
Total derivative liabilities 48 5 — 43
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Net derivative liabilities $(43 )$ — $ —$43 )
December 31, 2015

Total derivative assets $— $ — $ —$—
Total derivative liabilities 211 — — 211
Net derivative liabilities $(211) $ — $ —$(211)

1y We report the fair values of our derivative assets and liabilities on a gross basis on our consolidated balance sheets.
As a result, the gross amounts recognized and net amounts presented are the same.

We do not believe the contractually allowed netting, close-out netting or setoff of amounts owed to, or due from, the

counterparties to our ISDA agreements would have a material effect on our consolidated financial position.
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14. Noncontrolling Interests
A reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of noncontrolling interests and distributions payable to
noncontrolling interests in our consolidated balance sheets is provided below.
Nine months ended
September 30,
2016 2015
CFN  TNCLP Total TNCLP
(in millions)
Noncontrolling interests:

Beginning balance $— $352  $352  $363
Issuance of noncontrolling interest in CFN 2,792 — 2,792 —
Earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests 67 20 87 25
Declaration of distributions payable 79 H)Y@2 ) a1 )32 )
Ending balance $2,780 $340 $3,120 $356
Distributions payable to noncontrolling interests:

Beginning balance $— $—  $— $—
Declaration of distributions payable 79 32 111 32
Distributions to noncontrolling interests 79 H)Y@2 ) a1 @32 )
Ending balance $— $—  $— $—

CF Industries Nitrogen, LLC (CFN)

Our strategic venture with CHS commenced on February 1, 2016, at which time CHS purchased a minority equity
interest in CFN, a subsidiary of CF Holdings, for $2.8 billion. For financial reporting purposes, the assets, liabilities
and earnings of the strategic venture are consolidated into our financial statements. The outside member's interest in
the strategic venture is recorded in noncontrolling interest in our consolidated financial statements. CHS also began
receiving deliveries pursuant to a supply agreement under which CHS has the right to purchase annually from CFN up
to approximately 1.1 million tons of granular urea and 580,000 tons of UAN at market prices. As a result of its
minority equity interest in CFN, CHS is entitled to semi-annual cash distributions from CFN. We are also entitled to
semi-annual cash distributions from CEN. The amounts of distributions from CFN to us and CHS are based generally
on the profitability of CFN and determined based on the volume of granular urea and UAN sold by CFN to us and
CHS pursuant to supply agreements, less a formula driven amount based primarily on the cost of natural gas used to
produce the granular urea and UAN, and adjusted for the allocation of items such as operational efficiencies and
overhead amounts.

Additionally, under the terms of the strategic venture, if our credit rating is reduced below certain levels by two of
three specified credit ratings agencies, we are required to make a non-refundable yearly payment of $5 million to
CHS. The payment would continue on a yearly basis until the earlier of the date that our credit rating is upgraded to or
above certain levels by two of the three specified credit ratings agencies or February 1, 2026. On February 1, 2016, we
recognized this term of the strategic venture as an embedded derivative and its value of $8 million was included in
other liabilities on our consolidated balance sheet.

During the three months ended September 30, 2016, we recorded an adjustment to the value of the embedded
derivative liability by $22 million to $30 million to reflect our credit evaluation. See Note 9—Fair Value Measurements
for additional information.

Terra Nitrogen Company L.P. (TNCLP)

TNCLP is a master limited partnership (MLP) that owns a nitrogen manufacturing facility in Verdigris, Oklahoma.
We own an aggregate 75.3% of TNCLP through general and limited partnership interests. Outside investors own the
remaining 24.7% of the limited partnership. For financial reporting purposes, the assets, liabilities and earnings of the
partnership are consolidated into our financial statements. The outside investors' limited partnership interests in the
partnership are recorded in noncontrolling interest in our consolidated financial statements. The noncontrolling
interest represents the noncontrolling unitholders' interest in the earnings and equity of TNCLP. Affiliates of

CF Industries are required to purchase all of TNCLP's fertilizer products at market prices as defined in the
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Amendment to the General and Administrative Services and Product Offtake Agreement, dated September 28, 2010.
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TNCLP makes cash distributions to the general and limited partners based on formulas defined within its Agreement
of Limited Partnership. Cash available for distribution is defined in the agreement generally as all cash receipts less all
cash disbursements, less certain reserves (including reserves for future operating and capital needs) established as the
general partner determines in its reasonable discretion to be necessary or appropriate. Changes in working capital
affect available cash, as increases in the amount of cash invested in working capital items (such as increases in
inventory and decreases in accounts payable) reduce available cash, while declines in the amount of cash invested in
working capital items increase available cash. Cash distributions to the limited partners and general partner vary
depending on the extent to which the cumulative distributions exceed certain target threshold levels set forth in the
Agreement of Limited Partnership.

In each of the applicable quarters of 2016 and 2015, the minimum quarterly distributions were satisfied, which entitled
us, as the general partner, to receive increased distributions on our general partner interests as provided for in the
Agreement of Limited Partnership. The earnings attributed to our general partner interest in excess of the threshold
levels for the nine months ended September 30, 2016 and 2015, were $56 million and $83 million, respectively.

As of September 30, 2016, Terra Nitrogen GP Inc. (TNGP), the general partner of TNCLP (and an indirect wholly
owned subsidiary of CF Industries), and its affiliates owned 75.3% of TNCLP's outstanding units. When not more
than 25% of TNCLP's issued and outstanding units are held by non-affiliates of TNGP, TNCLP, at TNGP's sole
discretion, may call, or assign to TNGP or its affiliates, TNCLP's right to acquire all such outstanding units held by
non-affiliated persons. If TNGP elects to acquire all outstanding units, TNCLP is required to give at least 30 but not
more than 60 days' notice of TNCLP's decision to purchase the outstanding units. The purchase price per unit will be
the greater of (1) the average of the previous 20 trading days' closing prices as of the date five days before the
purchase is announced or (2) the highest price paid by TNGP or any of its affiliates for any unit within the 90 days
preceding the date the purchase is announced.

Proposed Internal Revenue Service Regulation Impacting Master Limited Partnerships

Currently, no federal income taxes are paid by TNCLP due to its MLP status. Partnerships are generally not subject to
federal income tax, although publicly traded partnerships (such as TNCLP) are treated as corporations for federal
income tax purposes (and therefore are subject to federal income tax), unless at least 90% of the partnership's gross
income is "qualifying income" as defined in Section 7704 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the
partnership is not required to register as an investment company under the Investment Company Act of 1940. Any
change in the tax treatment of income from fertilizer-related activities as qualifying income could cause TNCLP to be
treated as a corporation for federal income tax purposes. If TNCLP were taxed as a corporation, under current law,
due to its current ownership interest, CF Industries would qualify for a partial dividends received deduction on the
dividends received from TNCLP. Therefore, we would not expect a change in the tax treatment of TNCLP to have a
material impact on the consolidated financial condition or results of operations of CF Holdings.

On May 6, 2015, the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) published proposed regulations on the types of income and
activities that constitute or generate qualifying income of an MLP. The proposed regulations would have the effect of
limiting the types of income and activities that qualify under the MLP rules, subject to certain transition provisions.
The proposed regulations include certain processing or refining and transportation activities with respect to any
mineral or natural resource (including fertilizer) as activities that generate qualifying income, but the proposed
regulations reserve on specific proposals regarding fertilizer-related activities. We continue to monitor these IRS
regulatory activities.
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15. Stockholders' Equity
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Changes to accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) are as follows:

Balance as of December 31, 2014

Unrealized loss

Loss arising during the period

Reclassification to earnings

Impact of CF Fertilisers UK acquisition

Effect of exchange rate changes and deferred taxes
Balance as of September 30, 2015

Balance as of December 31, 2015

Loss arising during the period

Effect of exchange rate changes and deferred taxes
Balance as of September 30, 2016

Unrealized Unrealized

E?lr;;iréGain Gain Defined é:ﬁ:rmulated
¥LOSS) (Loss) Benefit .
Translat})%n on Plans Comprehensive
Adjustm§nt .. . Income (Loss)
ecurities Derivatives

(in millions)

$41)$ 1 $ 5 $(125) $ (160

— (1 ) — — (1

— — — 4 )@«

— — — 5 5

9 — — 38 47
(109 ) — — 8 (101
$(141) $ — $ 5 $(78 ) $ (214
$(198) $ 1 $ 5 $(58 ) $ (250
— — — 3 HaG

20 ) — — — (20

$(218) $ 1 $ 5 $@61 )$ (273

)
)
)
)
)
)

Reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) to earnings during the three and nine months
ended September 30, 2016 and 2015 were as follows:

Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment

CF Fertilisers UK equity method investment remeasurement) $— $9

Total before tax

Tax effect

Net of tax

Defined Benefit Plans

Amortization of prior service (benefit) cost(?

Three Nine
months months
ended ended
September September
30, 30,

2016 2015 2016 2015
(in millions)

CF Fertilisers UK equity method investment remeasurement) — 38 — 38

Amortization of net loss®

Total before tax

Tax effect

Net of tax

Total reclassifications for the period

$— $9
— 9 — 9
$— $9 $— $9
$(1) $— $(1) $(1)
1 2 1 6
— 40 — 43
— 1 )= @)

$— $39 $— $41
$— $48 $— $50

Represents the amount that was reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) into equity in

() earnings of non-operating affiliates—net of taxes as a result of the remeasurement to fair value of our initial 50%

equity interest in CF Fertilisers UK.

(2) These components are included in the computation of net periodic pension cost and were reclassified from

accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) into cost of sales and selling, general and administrative expenses.
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Preferred Stock

CF Holdings is authorized to issue 50 million shares of $0.01 par value preferred stock. Our Second Amended and
Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, authorizes our Board of Directors (the Board), without any further
stockholder action or approval, to issue these shares in one or more classes or series, and (except in the case of our
Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, 500,000 shares of which are authorized and the terms of which were
specified in the original certificate of incorporation of CF Holdings) to fix the rights, preferences and privileges of the
shares of each wholly unissued class or series and any of its qualifications, limitations or restrictions. In connection
with the Plan (as defined below), 500,000 shares of preferred stock have been designated as Series B Junior
Participating Preferred Stock. The Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock had been established in CF Holdings’
original certificate of incorporation in connection with our former stockholder rights plan that expired in 2015.

No shares of preferred stock have been issued.

Tax Benefits Preservation Plan

On September 6, 2016, CF Holdings entered into a Tax Benefits Preservation Plan (the Plan) with Computershare
Trust Company, N.A., as rights agent. The Plan is intended to help protect our tax net operating losses and certain
other tax assets (the Tax Benefits) by deterring any person from becoming a "5-percent shareholder" (as defined in
Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended) (a 5% Shareholder).

Under the Plan, each share of common stock has attached to it one right. Each right entitles the holder to purchase one
one-thousandth of a share of our preferred stock designated as Series B Junior Participating Preferred Stock at a
purchase price of $100, subject to adjustment. Rights will only be exercisable under the limited circumstances
specified in the Plan when there has been a distribution of the rights and such rights are no longer redeemable by CF
Holdings. A distribution of the rights would occur upon the earlier of (i) 10 business days following a public
announcement that a person or group of affiliated or associated persons has become a 5% Shareholder (subject to
certain exceptions described in the Plan) and (ii) 10 business days (or such later date as the Board shall determine)
following the commencement of a tender offer or exchange offer that would result in a person or group of affiliated or
associated persons becoming a 5% Shareholder (subject to certain exceptions described in the Plan).

The rights will expire at the earliest of (i) 5:00 P.M. (New York City time) on September 5, 2017, or such later date
and time (but not later than 5:00 P.M. (New York City time) on September 5, 2019) as may be determined by the
Board and approved by the stockholders of CF Holdings by a vote of the majority of the votes cast by the holders of
shares entitled to vote thereon at a meeting of the stockholders of CF Holdings prior to 5:00 P.M. (New York City
time) on September 5, 2017, (ii) the time at which the rights are redeemed or exchanged as provided in the Plan, (iii)
the time at which the Board determines that the Plan is no longer necessary or desirable for the preservation of Tax
Benefits, and (iv) the close of business on the first day of a taxable year of CF Holdings to which the Board
determines that no Tax Benefits may be carried forward.

In the event that a person or group of affiliated or associated persons becomes a 5% Shareholder (subject to certain
exceptions described in the Plan), each holder of a right, other than such person, any member of such group or related
person, all of whose rights will be null and void, will thereafter have the right to receive, upon exercise, common
stock having a value equal to two times the exercise price of the right.

If we are involved in certain merger or other business combination transactions, each right will entitle its holder to
receive, after exercise, a number of shares of the acquiring or surviving company's common stock having a value
equal to two times the exercise price of the right.

The description and terms of the rights are set forth in the Plan.

Treasury Stock

On August 6, 2014, the Board authorized a program to repurchase up to $1.0 billion of the common stock of CF
Holdings through December 31, 2016. Repurchases under this program may be made from time to time in the open
market, through privately negotiated transactions, through block transactions or otherwise. The manner, timing and
amount of repurchases are determined by our management based on the evaluation of market conditions, stock price
and other factors.

No share repurchases were made during the nine months ended September 30, 2016. During the three and nine months
ended September 30, 2015, we repurchased 0.3 million shares for $22 million and 8.9 million shares for $527 million,
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respectively. To date under this program, 15.9 million shares have been repurchased for an aggregate expenditure of
$900 million. During the nine months ended September 30, 2015, we retired 10.7 million shares of repurchased stock.
No shares of repurchased stock were retired during the nine months ended September 30, 2016.
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16. Contingencies

Litigation

West Fertilizer Co.

On April 17, 2013, there was a fire and explosion at the West Fertilizer Co. fertilizer storage and distribution facility
in West, Texas. According to published reports, 15 people were killed and approximately 200 people were injured in
the incident, and the fire and explosion damaged or destroyed a number of homes and buildings around the facility.
Various subsidiaries of CF Holdings (the CF Entities) have been named as defendants along with other companies in
lawsuits filed in 2013, 2014 and 2015 in the District Court of McLennan County, Texas by the City of West,
individual residents of the County and other parties seeking recovery for damages allegedly sustained as a result of the
explosion. The cases have been consolidated for discovery and pretrial proceedings in the District Court of McLennan
County under the caption "In re: West Explosion Cases." The two-year statute of limitations expired on April 17,
2015. As of that date, over 400 plaintiffs had filed claims, including at least 9 entities, 325 individuals, and 80
insurance companies. Plaintiffs allege various theories of negligence, strict liability, and breach of warranty under
Texas law. Although we do not own or operate the facility or directly sell our products to West Fertilizer Co., products
that the CF Entities have manufactured and sold to others have been delivered to the facility and may have been stored
at the West facility at the time of the incident.

The Court granted in part and denied in part the CF Entities' Motions for Summary Judgment in August 2015.
Thirty-four cases have been resolved pursuant to confidential settlements fully funded by insurance. The remaining
cases are in various stages of discovery and pre-trial proceedings. The next group of cases is set for trial beginning on
January 9, 2017. While we believe we have strong legal and factual defenses and intend to continue defending the CF
Entities vigorously in the pending lawsuits, including in any appeals that may follow, we have concluded based on
continuing developments in the case that some loss is probable for a subset of the outstanding claims. We have made
an accrual for this subset of the outstanding claims, which is not material to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
Beyond the amounts accrued, the Company cannot provide a range of reasonably possible loss due to the lack of
damages discovery for the remaining claims and the uncertain nature of this litigation, including uncertainties around
the potential allocation of responsibility by a jury to other defendants or responsible third parties. The recognition of a
potential loss in the future in the West Fertilizer Co. litigation could negatively affect our results in the period of
recognition. However, based upon currently available information, including available insurance coverage, we do not
believe that this litigation will have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.

Other Litigation

From time to time, we are subject to ordinary, routine legal proceedings related to the usual conduct of our business,
including proceedings regarding public utility and transportation rates, environmental matters, taxes and permits
relating to the operations of our various plants and facilities. Based on the information available as of the date of this
filing, we believe that the ultimate outcome of these routine matters will not have a material adverse effect on our
consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Environmental

Louisiana Environmental Matters

Clean Air Act—Section 185 Fee

Our Donaldsonville nitrogen complex is located in a five-parish region near Baton Rouge, Louisiana that, as of 2005,
was designated as being in "severe" nonattainment with respect to the national ambient air quality standard (NAAQS)
for ozone (the 1-hour ozone standard) pursuant to the Federal Clean Air Act (the Act). Section 185 of the Act requires
states, in their state implementation plans, to levy a fee (Section 185 fee) on major stationary sources (such as the
Donaldsonville complex) located in a severe nonattainment area that did not meet the 1-hour ozone standard by
November 30, 2005. The fee was to be assessed for each calendar year (beginning in 2006) until the area achieved
compliance with the ozone NAAQS.

Prior to the imposition of Section 185 fees, the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) adopted a new ozone
standard (the 8-hour ozone standard) and rescinded the 1-hour ozone standard. The Baton Rouge area was designated
as a "moderate” nonattainment area with respect to the 8-hour ozone standard. However, because Section 185 fees had
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never been assessed prior to the rescission of the 1-hour ozone standard (rescinded prior to the November 30, 2005
ozone attainment deadline), the EPA concluded in a 2004 rulemaking implementing the 8-hour ozone standard that the
Act did not require states to assess Section 185 fees. As a result, Section 185 fees were not assessed against us and
other companies located in the Baton Rouge area.
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In 2006, the federal D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals rejected the EPA's position and held that Section 185 fees were
controls that must be maintained and fees should have been assessed under the Act. In January 2008, the U.S.
Supreme Court declined to accept the case for review, making the appellate court's decision final.

In July 2011, the EPA approved a revision to Louisiana's air pollution program that eliminated the requirement for
Baton Rouge area companies to pay Section 185 fees, based on Baton Rouge's ultimate attainment of the 1-hour
standard through permanent and enforceable emissions reductions. The EPA's approval of the Louisiana air program
revision became effective on August 8, 2011. However, a recent decision by the federal D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals
struck down a similar, but perhaps distinguishable, EPA guidance document regarding alternatives to Section 185
fees. At this time, the viability of the EPA's approval of Louisiana's elimination of Section 185 fees is uncertain.
Regardless of the approach ultimately adopted by the EPA, we expect that it is likely to be challenged by the
environmental community, the states, and/or affected industries. Therefore, the costs associated with compliance with
the Act cannot be determined at this time, and we cannot reasonably estimate the impact on our consolidated financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.

Furthermore, the Baton Rouge area has seen significant reductions in ozone levels, attributable to federal and state
regulations and community involvement. On May 4, 2016, the EPA determined that the Baton Rouge nonattainment
area had complied with the obligation to achieve attainment with the 2008 8-hour ozone standard by the July 20, 2015
deadline. The EPA stated that additional statutory criteria must be met before the area would be redesignated to
attainment. However, even if these additional requirements are satisfied, a more stringent national ambient air quality
standard for ozone published by the EPA on October 1, 2015 could cause Baton Rouge to again be classified as a
nonattainment area.

Clean Air Act Information Request

On February 26, 2009, we received a letter from the EPA under Section 114 of the Act requesting information and
copies of records relating to compliance with New Source Review and New Source Performance Standards at the
Donaldsonville facility. We have completed the submittal of all requested information. There has been no further
contact from the EPA regarding this matter.

Other

CERCLA/Remediation Matters

From time to time, we receive notices from governmental agencies or third parties alleging that we are a potentially
responsible party at certain cleanup sites under CERCLA or other environmental cleanup laws. In 2011, we received a
notice from the Idaho Department of Environmental Quality (IDEQ) that alleged that we were a potentially
responsible party for the cleanup of a former phosphate mine site we owned in the late 1950s and early 1960s located
in Georgetown Canyon, Idaho. The current owner of the property and a former mining contractor received similar
notices for the site. In 2014, we and the current property owner entered into a Consent Order with IDEQ and the U.S.
Forest Service to conduct a remedial investigation and feasibility study of the site. In 2015, we and several other
parties received a notice that the U.S. Department of the Interior and other trustees intend to undertake a natural
resource damage assessment for a group of former phosphate mines in southeast Idaho, including the former
Georgetown Canyon mine. We are not able to estimate at this time our potential liability, if any, with respect to the
cleanup of the former mine site or a possible claim for natural resource damages. However, based on currently
available information, we do not expect the remedial or financial obligations to which we may be subject involving
this or other known cleanup sites will have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.
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17. Segment Disclosures

Our reportable segments consist of ammonia, granular urea, UAN, AN and Other. These segments are differentiated
by products. Our management uses gross margin to evaluate segment performance and allocate resources. Total other
operating costs and expenses (consisting of selling, general and administrative expenses and other operating—net) and
non-operating expenses (interest and income taxes) are centrally managed and are not included in the measurement of

segment profitability reviewed by management.

Our assets, with the exception of goodwill, are not monitored by or reported to our chief operating decision maker by
segment; therefore, we do not present total assets by segment. Goodwill by segment is presented in Note 7—Goodwill

and Other Intangible Assets.

Segment data for sales, cost of sales and gross margin for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016 and

2015 are presented in the tables below.
Granular

Ammo%a UAND AN Other) Consolidated

read)
(in millions)
Three months ended September 30, 2016

Net sales $145 $ 167 $212 $103 $ 53
Cost of sales 149 152 218 114 45
Gross margin $4 ) $ 15 $6 ) S$(11)$ 8
Total other operating costs and expenses
Equity in losses of operating affiliates
Operating loss
Three months ended September 30, 2015
Net sales $261 $ 171 $349 $80 $ 67
Cost of sales 207 132 276 97 51
Gross margin $54 % 39 $73 $(17) $ 16
Total other operating costs and expenses
Equity in earnings of operating affiliates
Operating earnings

AmmonGranular UAN®D AN Other()

Brea®

(in millions)
Nine months ended September 30, 2016
Net sales $770 $ 642 $891 $318 $ 197
Cost of sales 505 445 646 316 160
Gross margin $265 $ 197 $245 $2 $37
Total other operating costs and expenses
Equity in losses of operating affiliates
Operating earnings
Nine months ended September 30, 2015
Net sales $1,148 $ 594 $1,112 $179 $ 160
Cost of sales 635 324 678 179 110
Gross margin $513 $ 270 $434 $— $50
Total other operating costs and expenses
Equity in earnings of operating affiliates
Operating earnings

$ 680

678

2

101

2 )
$ (101 )

$ 928
763
165
112
6

$ 59

Consolidated

$ 2,818
2,072

746

501

(11 )
$ 234

$ 3,193
1,926
1,267
231

20

$ 1,056

(1) The cost of the products that are upgraded into other products is transferred at cost into the upgraded product

results.
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18. Condensed Consolidating Financial Statements

The following condensed consolidating financial statements are presented in accordance with SEC Regulation S-X
Rule 3-10, Financial statements of guarantors and issuers of guaranteed securities registered or being registered, and
relates to the Public Senior Notes issued by CF Industries, a 100% owned subsidiary of CF Industries Holdings, Inc.
(Parent), described in Note 12—Financing Agreements, and the full and unconditional guarantee of such Public Senior
Notes by Parent and to debt securities of CF Industries, and the full and unconditional guarantee thereof by Parent,
that may be offered and sold from time to time under registration statements filed by Parent and CF Industries with the
SEC. In the event that a subsidiary of Parent, other than CF Industries, becomes a borrower or a guarantor under the
Revolving Credit Agreement (or any renewal, replacement or refinancing thereof), such subsidiary would be required
to become a guarantor of the Public Senior Notes, provided that such requirement will no longer apply with respect to
the Public Senior Notes due in 2023, 2034, 2043 and 2044 following the repayment of the Public Senior Notes due in
2018 and 2020 or the subsidiaries of Parent, other than CF Industries, otherwise becoming no longer subject to such a
requirement to guarantee the Public Senior Notes due in 2018 and 2020. As of September 30, 2016, none of such
subsidiaries of Parent was, or was required to be, a guarantor of the Public Senior Notes. See Note 19—Subsequent
Events for additional information regarding the Revolving Credit Agreement.

For purposes of the presentation of condensed consolidating financial information, the subsidiaries of Parent other
than CF Industries are referred to as the Other Subsidiaries.

Presented below are condensed consolidating statements of operations, statements of comprehensive income and
statements of cash flows for Parent, CF Industries and the Other Subsidiaries for the nine months ended September 30,
2016 and 2015, and condensed consolidating balance sheets for Parent, CF Industries and the Other Subsidiaries as of
September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015. The condensed consolidating financial statements presented below are
not necessarily indicative of the financial position, results of operations, comprehensive income or cash flows of
Parent, CF Industries or the Other Subsidiaries on a stand-alone basis.

In these condensed consolidating financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are presented under the equity
method, in which our investments are recorded at cost and adjusted for our ownership share of a subsidiary's
cumulative results of operations, distributions and other equity changes, and the eliminating entries reflect primarily
intercompany transactions such as sales, accounts receivable and accounts payable and the elimination of equity
investments and earnings of subsidiaries.
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations

Net sales

Cost of sales

Gross margin

Selling, general and administrative expenses
Other operating—net

Total other operating costs and expenses
Equity in loss of operating affiliates
Operating (loss) earnings

Interest expense

Interest income

Net loss of wholly owned subsidiaries

Other non-operating—net

Loss before income taxes

Income tax benefit

Net (loss) earnings

Less: Net earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests
Net loss attributable to common stockholders

Three months ended September 30, 2016

Parent

CF Other L .
Industries Subsidiaries T minations Consolidated

(in millions)

$— $ 80 $ 713 $ (113 ) $ 680

— 35 756 (113 ) 678

— 45 (43 ) — 2

1 4 39 — 44

— 5 52 — 57

1 9 91 — 101

- — 2 ) — 2 )
a1 )36 (136 ) — (101 )
— 86 (38 ) (17 ) 31

— (2 ) (7 ) 17 2 )
39 1 — (40 ) —

—_- - 1 — 1

40 ) (39 ) (92 ) 40 (131 )
10 ) — (121 ) — (131 )
30 ) (39 ) 29 40 —

—_- - 30 — 30
$30)$ 39 ) $ (1 ) $ 40 $ (30 )

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Net (loss) earnings
Other comprehensive loss
Comprehensive loss

Less: Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling

interests
Comprehensive loss attributable to common stockholders

31

Three months ended September 30, 2016
Parent CF . Othe.r . . EliminationsConsolidated
Industries Subsidiaries

(in millions)

$30)$ 39 ) $ 29 $ 40 $ —

(30 ) (30 ) (30 ) 60 (30 )
(60 ) (69 ) ) 100 (30 )
- 30 — 30
$©0)$ 69 ) $ 31 ) $ 100 $ 60 )
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations

Net sales

Cost of sales

Gross margin

Selling, general and administrative expenses
Transaction costs

Other operating—net

Total other operating costs and expenses

Equity in loss of operating affiliates

Operating earnings

Interest expense

Interest income

Net earnings of wholly owned subsidiaries

Other non-operating—net

Earnings (loss) before income taxes

Income tax provision (benefit)

Net earnings

Less: Net earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests
Net earnings attributable to common stockholders

Nine months ended September 30, 2016

Parentﬁl Justries S&E: diaries Eliminations Consolidated
(in millions)

$— $ 283 $ 2,942 $ 407 ) $ 2,818

— 161 2,318 407 ) 2,072

— 122 624 — 746

3 8 130 — 141

46 ) — 225 — 179

— 5 176 — 181

43) 13 531 — 501

- — (11 ) — (11 )
43 109 82 — 234

— 248 (59 ) (59 ) 130

— (42 ) (21 ) 59 4 )
(16 ) (76 ) — 92 —

- — (1 ) — (1 )
59 (21 ) 163 92 ) 109

16 (37 ) — — (21 )
43 16 163 92 ) 130

—_ — 87 — 87

$43 $ 16 $ 76 $ (92 ) $ 43

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Net earnings
Other comprehensive loss
Comprehensive income (loss)

Less: Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling

interests
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to common
stockholders

32

Nine months ended September 30, 2016
Paren CF Other

tIndustries Subsidiaries
(in millions)

Eliminations Consolidated

$43 $ 16 $ 163 $ 92 ) $ 130
(23) (23 ) (23 ) 46 23 )
20 (7 ) 140 (46 ) 107

—_ — 87 — 87

$20 $ (7 ) $ 53 $ 46 ) $ 20
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations
Three months ended September 30, 2015

CF Other L. )
ParentIn dustries Subsi diarieSEhmlnatlonsConsohdated

(in millions)

Net sales $— $78 $ 983 $(133 ) $ 928
Cost of sales — 84 812 (133 ) 763
Gross margin — (6 ) 171 — 165
Selling, general and administrative expenses — 3 39 — 42
Transaction costs 30 — 7 — 37
Other operating—net — 4 ) 37 — 33
Total other operating costs and expenses 30 (A ) 83 — 112
Equity in earnings of operating affiliates — - 6 — 6
Operating (loss) earnings 30) (5 ) 94 — 59
Interest expense — 74 (21 ) (23 ) 30
Interest income — (22 ) (1 ) 23 —
Net earnings of wholly owned subsidiaries (109 (143 ) — 252 —
Other non-operating—net — — 5 — 5

Earnings before income taxes and equity in earnings of

. o 79 86 111 (252 ) 24
non-operating affiliates
Income tax (benefit) provision (11) (24 ) 55 — 20
Equity in earnings of non-operating affiliates—net of taxes — — 93 — 93
Net earnings 90 110 149 (252 ) 97
Less: Net earnings attributable to noncontrolling interest — — 7 — 7
Net earnings attributable to common stockholders $90 $ 110 $ 142 $(252 ) $ 9

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Comprehensive Income
Three months ended September 30, 2015
Paren CF Other
tIndustries Subsidiaries
(in millions)

Eliminations Consolidated

Net earnings $90 $ 110 $ 149 $252 )Y $ 97
Other comprehensive loss 7 )@ ) (9 ) 16 (8 )
Comprehensive income 83 102 140 (236 ) 89

Less: Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling o 7 o 7

interest

Comprehensive income attributable to common stockholders $83 $ 102 $ 133 $ 236 ) $ 82

33
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations
Nine months ended September 30, 2015
CF Other . .
Parent Industries Subsi diariesEhmlna'uonsConsohdated

(in millions)

Net sales $— $270  $3,380 $@457 ) $3,193
Cost of sales — 276 2,107 (457 ) 1,926
Gross margin — (6 ) 1,273 — 1,267
Selling, general and administrative expenses 2 4 114 — 120
Transaction costs 30 — 7 — 37
Other operating—net — C ) 83 — 74
Total other operating costs and expenses 32 &) ) 204 — 231
Equity in earnings of operating affiliates — — 20 — 20
Operating (loss) earnings 32 )@ ) 1,089 — 1,056
Interest expense — 205 (74 ) (38 ) 93
Interest income — (37 ) (2 ) 38 (1 )
Net earnings of wholly owned subsidiaries (693 ) (800 ) — 1,493 —
Other non-operating—net — — 5 — 5

Earnings before income taxes and equity in earnings of

. o 661 631 1,160 (1,493 ) 959
non-operating affiliates
Income tax (benefit) provision (12 ) (63 ) 408 — 333
Equity in earnings of non-operating affiliates—net of taxes  — — 72 — 72
Net earnings 673 694 824 (1,493 ) 698
Less: Net earnings attributable to noncontrolling interest — — 25 — 25
Net earnings attributable to common stockholders $673 $ 694 $ 799 $(1,493 ) $ 673

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Comprehensive Income
Nine months ended September 30, 2015
CF Other . .
Parent Industries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

(in millions)

Net earnings $673 $ 694 $ 824 $(1,493 ) $ 698
Other comprehensive loss 53 ) (54 ) (54 ) 107 (54 )
Comprehensive income 620 640 770 (1,386 ) 644

Less: Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling o 75 . 75

interest

Comprehensive income attributable to common stockholders $620 $ 640 $ 745 $(1,386 ) $ 619
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet
September 30, 2016

Eliminations
Parent CF . Other . . and Consolidated
Industries Subsidiaries e L
Reclassifications
(in millions)
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $— $5 $ 1,549 $ — $ 1,554
Restricted cash — — 7 — 7
Accounts and notes receivable—net — 1,316 1,517 (2,626 ) 207
Inventories — — 312 — 312
Prepaid income taxes — — 830 — 830
Other current assets — — 21 — 21
Total current assets — 1,321 4,236 (2,626 ) 2,931
Property, plant and equipment—net — — 9,725 — 9,725
Investments in affiliates 4,156 9,632 287 (13,788 ) 287
Due from affiliates 571 — 2 (573 ) —
Goodwill — — 2,359 — 2,359
Other assets — 18 312 — 330
Total assets $4,727 $10,971 $16,921 $ (16,987 ) $15,632

Liabilities and Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts and notes payable and accrued expenses $867  $556 $ 2,046 $ (2,626 ) $843

Income taxes payable — — 1 — 1
Customer advances — — 86 — 86

Other current liabilities — — 36 — 36

Total current liabilities 867 556 2,169 (2,626 ) 966
Long-term debt — 5,540 — — 5,540
Deferred income taxes — 81 1,561 — 1,642
Due to affiliates — 573 — (573 ) —

Other liabilities — 65 439 — 504
Equity:

Stockholders' equity:

Preferred stock — — 16 (16 ) —
Common stock 2 — 1 (1 ) 2
Paid-in capital 1,390 (13 ) 9,936 (9,923 ) 1,390
Retained earnings 2,892 4,442 (48 ) (4,394 ) 2,892
Treasury stock (151 ) — — — (151 )
Accumulated other comprehensive loss 273 ) (273 ) (273 ) 546 (273 )
Total stockholders' equity 3,860 4,156 9,632 (13,788 ) 3,860
Noncontrolling interests — — 3,120 — 3,120
Total equity 3,860 4,156 12,752 (13,788 ) 6,980
Total liabilities and equity $4,727 $10,971 $16,921 $ (16,987 ) $ 15,632
35
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet
December 31, 2015

Eliminations
Parent CF . Other . . and Consolidated
Industries Subsidiaries e L
Reclassifications
(in millions)
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $1 $— $ 285 $ — $ 286
Restricted cash — — 23 — 23
Accounts and notes receivable—net 1 2,987 1,565 (4,286 ) 267
Inventories — — 321 — 321
Prepaid income taxes — — 185 — 185
Other current assets — 24 21 — 45
Total current assets 2 3,011 2,400 (4,286 ) 1,127
Property, plant and equipment—net — — 8,539 — 8,539
Investments in affiliates 4,303 8,148 298 (12,451 ) 298
Due from affiliates 571 — 2 (573 ) —
Goodwill — — 2,390 — 2,390
Other assets — 19 310 — 329
Total assets $4,876 $11,178 $ 13,939 $ (17,310 ) $ 12,683

Liabilities and Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts and notes payable and accrued expenses $841  $648 $3,715 $ (4,286 ) $918

Income taxes payable — — 5 — 5
Customer advances — — 162 — 162
Other current liabilities — — 130 — 130
Total current liabilities 841 648 4,012 (4,286 ) 1,215
Long-term debt — 5,537 — — 5,537
Deferred income taxes — 52 864 — 916

Due to affiliates — 573 — (573 ) —
Other liabilities — 66 562 — 628
Equity:

Stockholders' equity:

Preferred stock — — 17 (17 ) —
Common stock 2 — 1 (1 ) 2
Paid-in capital 1,378 (13 ) 8,365 (8,352 ) 1,378
Retained earnings 3,058 4,565 16 (4,581 ) 3,058
Treasury stock (153 ) — — — (153 )
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (250 ) (250 ) (250 ) 500 (250 )
Total stockholders' equity 4,035 4,302 8,149 (12,451 ) 4,035
Noncontrolling interest — — 352 — 352
Total equity 4,035 4,302 8,501 (12,451 ) 4,387
Total liabilities and equity $4,876 $11,178 $13,939 $ (17,310 ) $ 12,683
36
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
Nine months ended September 30, 2016
Paren CF Other
tIndustries Subsidiaries
(in millions)

Elimination€Consolidated

Operating Activities:

Net earnings $43 $ 16 $163 $ 92 ) $130
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided by

operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization — 9 466 — 475
Deferred income taxes — 29 701 — 730
Stock-based compensation expense 14 — 1 — 15
Unrealized gain on natural gas and foreign currency derivatives — — (169 ) — (169 )
Unrealized loss on embedded derivative — — 22 — 22

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment — — 8 — 8
Undistributed earnings of affiliates—net (16 ) (76 ) — 92 —
Changes in:

Accounts and notes receivable—net 1 178 (61 ) (63 ) 55
Inventories — — 4 ) — 4 )
Accrued and prepaid income taxes — — (665 ) — (665 )
Accounts and notes payable and accrued expenses O )B4 ) (27 ) 63 (7 )
Customer advances — — (75 ) — (75 )
Other—net — — 76 — 76

Net cash provided by operating activities 33 122 436 — 591
Investing Activities:

Additions to property, plant and equipment — - 1,819 ) — (1,819 )
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment — - 8 — 8
Withdrawals from restricted cash funds — — 16 — 16
Other—net — — 4 — 4

Net cash used in investing activities — — (1,791 ) — (1,791 )
Financing Activities:

Short-term debt—net 35 @112 ) 77 — —
Financing fees — (5 ) (6 ) — (11 )
Dividends paid on common stock (209 (140 ) (140 ) 280 (209 )
Dividends to/from affiliates 140 140 — (280 ) —
Issuance of noncontrolling interest in CFN S — 2,800 — 2,800
Distributions to noncontrolling interests — — (111 ) — (111 )
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities 34) 117 ) 2,620 — 2,469
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents — — (1 ) — (1 )
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (1 )5 1,264 — 1,268

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 1 — 285 — 286

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $— $5 $ 1,549 $ — $ 1,554
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
Nine months ended September 30, 2015
Parent gllzlustries (S);E: diariesEliminationsConsolidated
(in millions)
Operating Activities:
Net earnings $673 $694 $ 824 $(1,493 ) $ 698
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization — 11 337 — 348
Deferred income taxes — 30 (36 ) — (6 )
Stock-based compensation expense 13 — — — 13
Unrealized gain on natural gas and foreign currency derivatives — — 70 — 70

Loss on sale of equity method investments — — 43 — 43

Gain on remeasurement of CF Fertilisers UK investment — — (94 ) — 94 )
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment — — 18 — 18
Undistributed earnings of affiliates—net (693 ) (800 ) (2 ) 1,493 2 )
Due to/from affiliates—net 2 — 2 ) — —
Changes in:

Accounts and notes receivable—net — 18 141 (143 ) 16
Inventories — — (72 ) — (72 )
Accrued and prepaid income taxes 2 (10 ) (61 ) — (69 )
Accounts and notes payable and accrued expenses 6 (79 ) (38 ) 143 32
Customer advances — — 56 — 56
Other—net — — 23 — 23

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 3 (136 ) 1,207 — 1,074
Investing Activities:

Additions to property, plant and equipment — — 1,791 ) — 1,791 )
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment — — 9 — 9
Proceeds from sale of equity method investment — — 13 — 13
Purchase of CF Fertilisers UK, net of cash acquired — — (554 ) — (554 )
Withdrawals from restricted cash funds — — 60 — 60
Other—net — (82 ) (36 ) 82 (36 )
Net cash used in investing activities — (82 ) (2,299 ) 82 2,299 )
Financing Activities:

Proceeds from long-term borrowings — 1,000 — — 1,000
Short-term debt—net 546 (856 ) 310 — —
Financing fees — (28 ) — — (28 )
Dividends paid on common stock 212) 212 ) (212 ) 424 (212 )
Dividends to/from affiliates 212 212 — (424 ) —
Distributions to noncontrolling interest — — (32 ) — (32 )
Purchases of treasury stock (556 ) — — — (556 )
Issuances of common stock under employee stock plans 8 — — — 8

Shares withheld for taxes — — (1 ) — (1 )
Other—net — — 82 (82 ) —

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities 2 ) 116 147 (82 ) 179

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents — — (8 ) — (8 )
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1 (102 ) (953 ) — (1,054 )
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period — 106 1,891 — 1,997
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19. Subsequent Events

Global nitrogen fertilizer supply has increased faster than global nitrogen fertilizer demand, creating the current global
oversupply of nitrogen fertilizer and leading to lower nitrogen fertilizer selling prices. In addition, lower global
production costs driven by lower feedstock costs and foreign exchange rates, and reduced ocean freight costs have
further contributed to the current lower priced environment. We expect the lower priced environment to continue until
global supply and demand become more balanced through a combination of continued demand growth and supply
reductions as producers respond to lower realized margins by taking higher cost production facilities off line.

Due to the uncertainty of the duration of the current lower priced environment and in order to provide liquidity and
covenant flexibility for the future, we have taken and are taking certain additional steps with respect to the Revolving
Credit Agreement and the Private Senior Notes. See Note 12—Financing Agreements for a description of the Revolving
Credit Agreement and the Private Senior Notes. These steps reflect in part our assessment, based on current fertilizer
market conditions, that we may be unable to maintain compliance as of the end of the fourth quarter of 2016 with the
total leverage ratio covenant under the Note Purchase Agreement and, under the current terms of the Revolving Credit
Agreement. The steps we have taken include, subsequent to September 30, 2016, our entering into the Revolver
Amendment described under “—Amendment of Revolving Credit Agreement,” below. The Revolver Amendment provides
for modifications to the Revolving Credit Agreement as described in “—Amendment of Revolving Credit Agreement,”
below, that would become effective upon the satisfaction of specified conditions, including, among other things, the
repayment in full of the $1.0 billion principal amount of the Private Senior Notes prior to or substantially concurrently
with the effectiveness of those modifications. Accordingly, we intend to prepay in full the Private Senior Notes during
the fourth quarter of 2016. We expect to fund that prepayment and the related make-whole amount, which we estimate
(based on market interest rates on October 31, 2016) will be approximately $210 million, with the issuance of new
long-term secured debt, borrowings under the Revolving Credit Agreement, cash on hand or a combination of any of
the foregoing. There can be no assurance that we will be able to complete an issuance of new long-term secured debt
on terms acceptable to us or at all.

Amendment of Revolving Credit Agreement

On October 31, 2016, CF Holdings and CF Industries entered into Amendment No. 3 to the Third Amended and
Restated Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as of October 31, 2016 (the Revolver Amendment), with the
administrative agent and certain of the lenders and issuing banks under the Revolving Credit Agreement in connection
with proposed modifications (the Proposed Modifications) to the Revolving Credit Agreement. The Revolving Credit
Agreement, as amended after giving effect to the Proposed Modifications, is referred to herein as the Amended
Revolving Credit Agreement.

Under the terms of the Revolver Amendment, the effectiveness of the Proposed Modifications and the Amended
Revolving Credit Agreement is subject only to the satisfaction of specified conditions set forth in the Revolver
Amendment (the Modification Effectiveness Conditions). The Modification Effectiveness Conditions include, but are
not limited to, (i) the delivery of specified documents and opinions to the administrative agent, (ii) the payment of
accrued and unpaid interest and specified fees and expenses in connection with the Proposed Modifications, (iii) the
reduction of the lenders’ commitments under the Revolving Credit Agreement from $1.5 billion to $750 million and
(iv) prior to or substantially concurrently with the effectiveness of the Proposed Modifications, the repayment in full
of the Private Senior Notes.

The borrowers and guarantors under the Amended Revolving Credit Agreement, which will initially comprise CF
Holdings, CF Industries and CF Holdings’ wholly owned subsidiaries CF Industries Enterprises, Inc. (CF Enterprises)
and CF Industries Sales, LLC (CF Sales), are referred to together herein as the Loan Parties. Upon the effectiveness of
the Proposed Modifications, CF Enterprises and CF Sales would guarantee the obligations of the Loan Parties under
the Amended Revolving Credit Agreement. CF Holdings and CF Industries guarantee the obligations of the Loan
Parties under the Revolving Credit Agreement and would continue to guarantee the obligations of the Loan Parties
under the Amended Revolving Credit Agreement. Subject to specified exceptions, the Amended Revolving Credit
Agreement would require that each direct or indirect domestic subsidiary of CF Holdings that guarantees debt for
borrowed money of any Loan Party in excess of $150 million become a guarantor under the Amended Revolving
Credit Agreement. Subject to specified exceptions, the Amended Revolving Credit Agreement would require a grant
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of a first priority security interest in substantially all of the assets of the Loan Parties, including a pledge by CF Sales
of its equity interests in CF Industries Nitrogen, LLC and mortgages over certain material fee-owned domestic real
properties, to secure the obligations of the Loan Parties thereunder.

In addition to the obligations under the Amended Revolving Credit Agreement, the Loan Parties would also guarantee
the obligations under any (i) letter of credit facilities, letter of credit reimbursement agreements, letters of credit,
letters of guaranty, surety bonds or similar arrangements in an aggregate amount up to $300 million and (ii) interest
rate or other hedging arrangements, in each case between CF Holdings or any of its subsidiaries, on the one hand, and
any person that is a lender or the administrative agent under the Amended Revolving Credit Agreement or an affiliate
of such person, on the other hand, that are designated by CF Industries as Secured Bilateral LC Facilities or Secured
Swap Agreements (each as defined in the
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Amended Revolving Credit Agreement), as applicable, pursuant to the terms of the Amended Revolving Credit
Agreement (such additional obligations, the Additional Guaranteed Obligations). Obligations under Secured Bilateral
LC Facilities in an aggregate amount up to $300 million and obligations under Secured Swap Agreements would be
secured by the same security interest that secures the obligations under the Amended Revolving Credit Agreement. As
compared to the Revolving Credit Agreement, the Amended Revolving Credit Agreement would include modified
fees on undrawn commitments and an increased margin applicable to borrowings.

In addition to the negative covenants contained in the Revolving Credit Agreement, the Amended Revolving Credit
Agreement would limit the ability of CF Holdings and its subsidiaries to incur debt, grant liens, pay dividends,
voluntarily prepay certain debt, make investments and dispose of assets, in each case, subject to specified exceptions
(such limitations, the Additional Negative Covenants). The Proposed Modifications would replace the financial
covenants applicable to CF Holdings and its subsidiaries in the Revolving Credit Agreement with covenants (the New
Financial Covenants) that (i) would restrict the ratio of total secured debt to EBITDA (as defined in the Amended
Revolving Credit Agreement) for the period of four consecutive fiscal quarters most recently ended to a maximum of
3.75:1.00, (ii) would require the ratio of EBITDA for the period of four consecutive fiscal quarters most recently
ended to consolidated interest expense for the period of four consecutive fiscal quarters most recently ended to be a
minimum of 1.20:1.00 for the fiscal quarters ending on or prior to December 31, 2018, and 1.50:1.00 thereafter, and
(iii) would require the ratio of total debt to total capitalization as of the last day of any fiscal quarter to be less than or
equal to 0.60:1.00.

Under the Amended Revolving Credit Agreement, if on any date certain conditions were met, including (i) an absence
of an event of default under the Amended Revolving Credit Agreement, (ii) the receipt of an investment grade
corporate rating for CF Holdings from two of three selected ratings agencies and (iii) the ratio of CF Holdings’ total
net debt to EBITDA for the period of four consecutive fiscal quarters most recently ended being less than 3.75:1.00,
CF Industries would be able to, at its option, choose to (w) suspend the Additional Negative Covenants, (x) replace
the New Financial Covenants with covenants requiring the ratio of total net debt to EBITDA for the period of four
fiscal consecutive quarters most recently ended to be less than or equal to 3.75:1.00 and the ratio of EBITDA for the
period of four consecutive fiscal quarters most recently ended to consolidated interest expense for the period of four
consecutive fiscal quarters most recently ended to be not less than 2.75:1.00, (y) release the collateral securing the
obligations under the Amended Revolving Credit Agreement and (z) release the guarantees supporting, and the
collateral securing, the Secured Bilateral LC Facilities and the Secured Swap Agreements. Such a choice by CF
Industries would commence a “Covenant Suspension Period" that would expire upon the Company's no longer having
an investment grade corporate rating from two of three selected rating agencies. Upon the expiration of a Covenant
Suspension Period, the Additional Negative Covenants and the New Financial Covenants would be reinstated, and the
Loan Parties party to the Amended Revolving Credit Agreement would be required to guarantee the Additional
Guaranteed Obligations and grant a first priority security interest in substantially all of each Loan Party’s assets,
including a pledge by CF Sales of its equity interests in CF Industries Nitrogen, LLC and mortgages over certain
material fee-owned domestic real properties, subject to certain exceptions, to secure the obligations under the
Amended Revolving Credit Agreement, the Secured Bilateral LC Facilities and the Secured Swap Agreements.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS.

You should read the following discussion and analysis in conjunction with our annual consolidated financial
statements and related notes, which were included in our 2015 Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on
February 25, 2016, as well as Item 1. Financial Statements, in this Form 10-Q. All references to "the Company," "we,’'
"us" and "our" refer to CF Industries Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiaries. All references to "CF Holdings" refer to
CF Industries Holdings, Inc. itself and not its subsidiaries. All references to "CF Industries" refer to CF Industries,
Inc., a 100% owned subsidiary of CF Industries Holdings, Inc. References to tons refer to short tons. Footnotes
referenced in this discussion and analysis refer to the notes to our unaudited interim consolidated financial statements
that are found in the preceding section: Item 1. Financial Statements. The following is an outline of the discussion and
analysis included herein:

Overview of CF Holdings

Our Company

{tems Affecting Comparability of Results

Financial Executive Summary

Results of Consolidated Operations

Third Quarter of 2016 Compared to Third Quarter of 2015

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2016 Compared to Nine Months Ended September 30, 2015

Operating Results by Business Segment

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

¥orward-Looking Statements

Overview of CF Holdings

Our Company

We are one of the largest manufacturers and distributors of nitrogen fertilizer and other nitrogen products in the world.
Our principal customers are cooperatives, independent fertilizer distributors, farmers and industrial users. Our
principal nitrogen fertilizer products are ammonia, granular urea, urea ammonium nitrate solution (UAN) and
ammonium nitrate (AN). Our other nitrogen products include diesel exhaust fluid (DEF), urea liquor, nitric acid and
aqua ammonia, which are sold primarily to our industrial customers, and compound fertilizer products (NPKs), which
are solid granular fertilizer products for which the nutrient content is a combination of nitrogen, phosphorus, and
potassium. Our manufacturing and distribution facilities are concentrated in the midwestern United States and other
major agricultural areas of the United States, Canada and the United Kingdom. We also export nitrogen fertilizer
products from our Donaldsonville, Louisiana; Yazoo City, Mississippi; and Billingham, United Kingdom
manufacturing facilities.

Our principal assets include:

four U.S. nitrogen fertilizer manufacturing facilities located in Donaldsonville, Louisiana (the largest nitrogen
.fertilizer complex in the world); Port Neal, lowa; Yazoo City, Mississippi; and Woodward, Oklahoma. These
facilities are owned by CF Industries Nitrogen, LL.C (CFN), of which we own a majority interest and CHS Inc.
(CHS), owns a minority interest;

a 75.3% interest in Terra Nitrogen Company, L.P. (TNCLP), a publicly traded master limited partnership. We are the
sole general partner and the majority limited partner of TNCLP which, through its subsidiary Terra Nitrogen, Limited
Partnership (TNLP), operates a nitrogen fertilizer manufacturing facility in Verdigris, Oklahoma;

two Canadian nitrogen fertilizer manufacturing facilities located in Medicine Hat, Alberta (the largest nitrogen
fertilizer complex in Canada) and Courtright, Ontario;

¢wo United Kingdom nitrogen manufacturing complexes located in Ince and Billingham;
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an extensive system of terminals and associated transportation equipment located primarily in the midwestern United
States; and

a 50% interest in Point Lisas Nitrogen Limited (PLNL), an ammonia production joint venture located in the Republic
of Trinidad and Tobago that we account for under the equity method.

Items Affecting Comparability of Results

The following section outlines certain items that impact the comparability of our financial results. These items
include:

Nitrogen Fertilizer Market Conditions

Capacity Expansion Projects

CF Fertilisers UK Acquisition

Transaction Costs and Termination of Agreement to Combine with Certain of OCI N.V.’s Businesses

Strategic Venture with CHS

Nitrogen Fertilizer Market Conditions

The third quarter and first nine months of 2016 were impacted by declining selling prices. Pricing for nitrogen
fertilizer products in the U.S. Gulf declined during the third quarter of 2016, often trading below international parity,
as seasonal decreases in agricultural demand combined with delayed customer purchasing activity resulted in
multi-year lows in nitrogen fertilizer selling prices. The average selling price for our products in the third quarter of
2016 was $185 per ton compared to $289 per ton for the third quarter of 2015, a decrease of 36%, resulting in a
decrease in both net sales and gross margin of approximately $333 million between the periods. The average selling
price for our products in the first nine months of 2016 was $230 per ton compared to $328 per ton for the first nine
months of 2015, a decline of 30%, resulting in a decrease in both net sales and gross margin of approximately $995
million. The decline in selling prices has impacted each of our reportable segments. In addition, during periods of
declining prices, customers tend to delay purchasing fertilizer in anticipation of prices in the future being lower than
current prices, which has also impacted our sales volume compared to the prior year periods.

Our products are global commodities and are subject to price competition. The customers for our products make their
purchasing decisions principally on the basis of delivered price and, to a lesser extent, on customer service and
product quality. The selling prices of our products fluctuate in response to global market conditions and changes in
supply and demand. In the current environment, global nitrogen fertilizer supply has increased faster than global
nitrogen fertilizer demand, creating the current global oversupply of nitrogen fertilizer and leading to lower nitrogen
fertilizer selling prices.

Over the past several years, strong demand, high capacity utilization and increasing operating margins as a result of
higher global nitrogen fertilizer prices stimulated global investment in nitrogen production facilities, which resulted in
an increase in global nitrogen fertilizer production capacity and the current surplus of supply in the market. In
addition, lower global production costs driven by lower feedstock costs and foreign exchange rate changes, and
reduced ocean freight costs have further contributed to the lower priced environment.

We expect the lower priced environment to continue until global supply and demand become more balanced through a
combination of continued demand growth and supply reductions as producers respond to lower realized margins by
taking higher cost production facilities off line.

Capacity Expansion Projects

In 2012, we announced that we would construct new ammonia, urea, and UAN plants at our Donaldsonville,
Louisiana complex and new ammonia and urea plants at our Port Neal, lowa complex. These new plants will increase
our product mix flexibility at Donaldsonville, improve our ability to serve upper-Midwest urea customers from our
Port Neal location, and allow us to benefit from the cost advantages of North American natural gas. In combination,
these new facilities will be able to produce 2.1 million tons of gross ammonia per year, upgraded products ranging
from 2.0 million to 2.7 million tons of granular urea per year and up to 1.8 million tons of UAN 32% solution per
year, depending on our choice of product mix.

The new Donaldsonville granular urea and UAN plants came on line in the fourth quarter of 2015 and in the first
quarter of 2016, respectively. These new plants allowed us to upgrade our existing ammonia production, without an
increase in the overall nutrient tons produced. Our segment results for the nine months ended September 30, 2016
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include the impacts of this increase in granular urea and UAN production. The new Donaldsonville ammonia plant
was placed into service after the end of the third quarter of 2016, in October 2016, and the additional ammonia
capacity from this plant will increase our overall nutrient ton production capacity. The Port Neal ammonia and urea
plants are both expected to start production in late 2016. The
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expansion projects, including the start-up of the new Donaldsonville ammonia plant, impacted the third quarter and
first nine months of 2016 as shown in the following table.
Three Months ~ Nine Months

Ended Ended September
September 30, 30,
2016 2016
20162015 . 2016 2015 v.
2015 2015
Expansion Project Amounts in Cost of Sales (in millions) (in millions)
Depreciation $19 $— $19 $57 $— $57
Donaldsonville ammonia start-up costs 18 — 18 18 — 18
Total $37 $— $37 $75 $— $75
Expansion Project Amounts in Other Operating Expense
Expenses that did not qualify for capitalization 24 15 9 59 36 23
Total Expansion Project Amounts $61 $15 $46 $134 $36 $98

CF Fertilisers UK Acquisition

On July 31, 2015, we acquired the remaining 50% equity interest in CF Fertilisers UK Group Limited (formerly
known as GrowHow UK Group Limited) (CF Fertilisers UK) not previously owned by us for total consideration of
$570 million, and CF Fertilisers UK became a wholly owned subsidiary. CF Fertilisers UK Limited (formerly known
as GrowHow UK Limited), a wholly owned subsidiary of CF Fertilisers UK, operates two nitrogen manufacturing
complexes in the United Kingdom, in the cities of Ince and Billingham. This transaction increased our manufacturing
capacity with the acquisition of CF Fertilisers UK’s nitrogen manufacturing complexes. The Ince complex is located in
northwestern England and consists of an ammonia plant, three nitric acid plants, an AN plant and three NPK plants.
The Billingham complex is located in the Teesside chemical area in northeastern England, and consists of an ammonia
plant, three nitric acid plants, a carbon dioxide plant and an AN fertilizer plant. See Note 3—Acquisitions to our
unaudited interim consolidated financial statements included in Part I, Item 1 of this report for additional information
on the allocation of the total purchase price to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the CF Fertilisers UK
acquisition on July 31, 2015.

The financial results of CF Fertilisers UK have been consolidated within our financial results since July 31, 2015.
Prior to July 31, 2015, our initial 50% equity interest in CF Fertilisers UK was accounted for as an equity method
investment, and the financial results of this investment were included in our consolidated statements of operations in
equity in earnings of non-operating affiliates—net of taxes. In the third quarter of 2015, upon the acquisition of the
remaining 50% equity interest in CF Fertilisers UK, we recognized a $94 million gain on the remeasurement to fair
value of our initial 50% equity investment in CF Fertilisers UK which is reported in the line titled equity in earnings
of non-operating affiliates—net of taxes.

As a result of the acquisition, the third quarter of 2016 includes a full quarter of results of CF Fertilisers UK in our
consolidated segment results, while the third quarter of 2015 includes two months of results (August and September
2015). The impact of the acquisition on our consolidated segment results in the third quarter of 2016 is the impact of
the additional month of results (July 2016).

The nine months ended September 30, 2016 includes the results of CF Fertilisers UK in our consolidated segment
results for the full nine months, while the nine months of 2015 includes two months of CF Fertilisers UK results in our
consolidated segment results. The impact of the CF Fertilisers UK acquisition on our consolidated segment results for
the nine months ended September 2016 is the impact of the additional seven months of results (the seven months
ended July 31, 2016).

To quantify and provide comparability of the impact of the acquisition, the following table summarizes the sales
volume, net sales, and gross margin of the CF Fertilisers UK business for the one month of July 2016 and the seven
months ended July 31, 2016.
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CF Holdings
Reportable Segments

CF Fertilisers UK Financial Results AmmonAN Other Consolidated
(in millions, except percentages)

One month ended July 31, 2016

Sales volume by product tons (000s) 17 180 57 254

Net sales $4 $32 $7 $ 43

Cost of sales 3 35 4 42

Gross margin $1 $3 ) $3 $1

Gross margin percentage 25.0% (9.4 Y% 42.9% 2.3 %

Seven months ended July 31, 2016
Sales volume by product tons (000s) 100 737 468 1,305

Net sales $26 $164 $79 $ 269
Cost of sales 22 155 74 251

Gross margin $4 %9 $5 $ 18

Gross margin percentage 154% 5.5 % 6.3 % 6.7 %

Transaction Costs and Termination of Agreement to Combine with Certain of OCI N.V.’s Businesses

On August 6, 2015, we entered into a definitive agreement (as amended, the Combination Agreement) to combine
with the European, North American and global distribution businesses of OCI N.V. (OCI). On May 22, 2016, CF
Holdings, OCI and the other parties to the Combination Agreement entered into a termination agreement (the
Termination Agreement) under which the parties agreed to terminate the Combination Agreement by mutual written
consent. Pursuant to the Termination Agreement, CF Holdings paid OCI a termination fee of $150 million, which is
included in transaction costs in our unaudited interim consolidated statements of operations included in Part I of this
report. Under the Termination Agreement, the parties to the Combination Agreement also agreed to release each other
from any and all claims, actions, obligations, liabilities, expenses and fees in connection with, arising out of or related
to the Combination Agreement and all ancillary agreements contemplated thereby (other than the confidentiality
agreement between CF Holdings and OCI) or the transactions contemplated therein or thereby.

In the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016, we incurred $0 million and $179 million, respectively, of
transaction costs associated with the proposed combination with certain businesses of OCI and our strategic venture
with CHS. This includes the $150 million termination fee paid to OCI in the second quarter of 2016 and costs for
various consulting and legal services. In both the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015, we incurred $37
million of transaction costs associated with the proposed combination with certain businesses of OCI and our strategic
venture with CHS.

Strategic Venture with CHS

Our strategic venture with CHS commenced on February 1, 2016, at which time CHS purchased a minority equity
interest in CFN, a subsidiary of CF Holdings, for $2.8 billion. CHS also began receiving deliveries pursuant to a
supply agreement under which CHS has the right to purchase annually from CFN up to approximately 1.1 million tons
of granular urea and 580,000 tons of UAN at market prices. As a result of its minority equity interest in CFN, CHS is
entitled to semi-annual cash distributions from CEN. We are also entitled to semi-annual cash distributions from CFN.
The amounts of distributions from CFN to us and CHS are based generally on the profitability of CFN and determined
based on the volume of granular urea and UAN sold by CFEN to us and CHS pursuant to supply agreements, less a
formula driven amount based primarily on the cost of natural gas used to produce the granular urea and UAN, and
adjusted for the allocation of items such as operational efficiencies and overhead amounts. We began recognizing the
noncontrolling interest pertaining to CHS’s ownership interest in CFN on February 1, 2016, and during the three and
nine months ended September 30, 2016, we recognized $27 million and $67 million of earnings attributable to the
noncontrolling interest in CFN, respectively. Further information regarding this strategic venture can be found in Note
14—Noncontrolling Interests to our unaudited interim consolidated financial statements included in Part I, Item 1 of this
report.
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Financial Executive Summary

We reported a net loss attributable to common stockholders of $30 million in the third quarter of 2016 compared to
net earnings of $90 million in the same quarter of 2015, a decrease of $120 million.

Diluted net loss per share attributable to common stockholders was $0.13 per share in the third quarter of 2016
compared to diluted net earnings per share of $0.39 in the third quarter of 2015. The net loss is due to lower net
earnings.

During the third quarter of 2016, we experienced lower net earnings compared to the third quarter of 2015 due
primarily to lower gross margin during the third quarter of 2016 and the prior year gain of $94 million on the
remeasurement to fair value of our initial 50% equity interest in CF Fertilisers UK related to the closing of our
acquisition of the remaining 50% equity interest in CF Fertilisers UK. These items were partly offset by decreased
transaction costs and an income tax benefit during the third quarter of 2016 compared to an income tax provision
during the third quarter of 2015.

Our total gross margin declined by $163 million, or 99%, to $2 million in the third quarter of 2016 from $165 million
in the third quarter of 2015. The impact of the CF Fertilisers UK acquisition increased gross margin in the current
guarter by $1 million, or 1%. The remaining decrease in gross margin of $164 million, or 99%, was due primarily to
lower average selling prices and higher expansion project related costs, partially offset by the impact of lower
mark-to-market losses on natural gas derivatives, increased sales volume and lower operating costs:

Average selling prices, primarily UAN, granular urea and ammonia decreased by 35%, which reduced gross margin
by $333 million.

Lower unrealized net mark-to-market losses on natural gas derivatives increased gross margin by $105 million as the
third quarter of 2016 included a $21 million loss and the third quarter of 2015 included a $126 million loss.
Donaldsonville expansion project depreciation for the granular urea and the UAN plants and start-up costs for the new
ammonia plant reduced gross margin by $37 million.

Sales volume, primarily granular urea, increased by 6%, which increased gross margin by $21 million.

Lower physical natural gas costs in the third quarter of 2016, partially offset by the impact of natural gas derivatives
that settled in the period, increased gross margin by $10 million as compared to the third quarter of 2015.

Lower operating costs, including distribution, freight and other production costs, increased gross margin by
approximately $69 million.

During the third quarter of 2016, primarily as a result of lower net earnings, our income tax provision declined by
$151 million to a net benefit of $131 million from an income tax provision of $20 million for the third quarter of
2015. See below and Note 10—Income Taxes to our unaudited interim consolidated financial statements included in
Part I, Item 1 of this report for additional information on our income tax benefit.

Our third quarter 2016 results included $61 million of expenses ($39 million after tax) related to our capacity
expansion projects in Donaldsonville, Louisiana and Port Neal, lowa including costs that did not qualify for
capitalization, start-up costs and incremental depreciation, $22 million of unrealized loss related to a fair value
adjustment to an embedded derivative ($14 million after tax), $21 million of unrealized net mark-to-market losses
($13 million after tax) on natural gas derivatives, $4 million of expenses ($2 million after tax) related to the July 2016
Credit Agreement Amendment (as defined in “—Liquidity and Capital Resources—Debt—Revolving Credit Agreement,”
below) and the September 2016 NPA Amendment (as defined in “—Liquidity and Capital Resources—Debt—Public Senior
Notes and Private Senior Notes—Private Senior Notes,” below), $3 million of losses on foreign currency transactions
primarily related to unrealized losses on foreign currency denominated intercompany debt not permanently invested
($4 million after tax). Net earnings attributable to common stockholders of $90 million for the third quarter of 2015
included a $94 million gain ($94 million after tax) as a result of the remeasurement to fair value of our initial 50%
equity interest in CF Fertilisers UK, $37 million of transaction costs ($25 million after tax), $12 million of losses on
foreign currency transactions primarily related to unrealized losses on foreign currency denominated intercompany
debt not permanently invested ($14 million after tax), $126 million of unrealized net mark-to-market losses

($79 million after tax) on natural gas derivatives, amortization of the financing fees related to the terminated bridge
credit agreement of $6 million ($4 million after
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tax) and $15 million of expenses ($9 million after tax) related to our capacity expansion projects that did not qualify
for capitalization.

Our total net sales decreased $248 million, or 27%, in the third quarter of 2016 compared to the third quarter of 2015
.including the impact of the CF Fertilisers UK acquisition, which increased our net sales by $43 million, or 5%, in the
third quarter of 2016. The remaining decline in our net sales of $291 million, or 31%, was due to a 35% decrease in
average selling prices partially offset by a 6% increase in sales volume.

Net cash provided by operating activities during the first nine months of 2016 was $591 million as compared to
$1.07 billion in the first nine months of 2015. The $483 million decrease resulted from lower net earnings during the
first nine months of 2016 and working capital changes. The working capital changes include lower amounts paid for
income taxes and higher tax refunds received in the first nine months of 2016 compared to the same period of 2015.
Additionally there was a greater reduction in accounts receivable levels and lower amounts spent on inventory during
the first nine months of 2016 as compared to the first nine months of 2015. Unfavorable changes in working capital
also occurred including a lower level of customer advances in 2016 due to customers’ hesitancy to enter into prepaid
contracts in the current fertilizer price environment.

Net cash used in investing activities was $1.79 billion in the first nine months of 2016 as compared to $2.30 billion in
the first nine months of 2015. The $508 million decrease is primarily due to the 2015 acquisition of the remaining
50% equity interest in CF Fertilisers UK not previously owned by us for a net cash payment of $554 million, which
was net of cash acquired of $19 million. This decrease was partly offset by the increase in capital expenditures
primarily related to the capacity expansion projects in Donaldsonville, Louisiana and Port Neal, lowa. During the first
nine months of 2016, capital expenditures totaled $1.82 billion compared to $1.79 billion in the first nine months of
2015.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $2.47 billion in the first nine months of 2016 compared to $179 million
in the same period of 2015. In the first nine months of 2016, CHS purchased a minority equity interest in CFN, a
subsidiary of CF Holdings, for $2.8 billion. No share repurchases were made during the first nine months of 2016
compared to 8.9 million shares repurchased for $556 million in cash during the first nine months of 2015. Dividends
paid on common stock were $209 million and $212 million in the first nine months of 2016 and 2015, respectively. In
the first nine months of 2015, we issued the Private Senior Notes (as defined in “—Liquidity and Capital

Resources—Debt—Public Senior Notes and Private Senior Notes—Private Senior Notes,” below) and received proceeds of

approximately $1.0 billion.
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Results of Consolidated Operations

The following table presents our consolidated results of operations and supplemental data:
Three Months Ended September 30,
2016 v. 2015

$(248)
@85 )
(163 )
(17.5 )%
2

(37 )
24

(I )
@ )
(160 )
a )
“4 )
(155 )
(151 )
©3 )
o7 )
23

$(120)
$(0.52)
09 )
$—

$(0.30)
0.12

$(0.18)
$0.09
$(2.36)

2016 2015

(in millions, except as noted)
Net sales $680 $928
Cost of sales (COS) 678 763
Gross margin 2 165
Gross margin percentage 03 % 178 %
Selling, general and administrative 44 1
expenses
Transaction costs — 37
Other operating—net 57 33
Total other operating costs and 101 12
expenses
Equity in (losses) earnings of operating @ ) 6
affiliates
Operating (loss) earnings (101 ) 59
Interest expense—net 29 30
Other non-operating—net 1 5
(Loss) earnings before income taxes
and equity in earnings of non-operating (131 ) 24
affiliates
Income tax (benefit) provision (131 ) 20
Equity in earnings of non-operating 93
affiliates—net of taxes
Net earnings — 97
Less: Net earnings attributable to 30 7
noncontrolling interests
Net (loss) earnings attributable to
common stockholders $(30 ) $90
Diluted net (loss) earnings per share
attributable to common stockholders $0.13) $039
Diluted weighted-average common
shares outstanding 233.1 234.0
Dividends declared per common share $0.30  $0.30
Supplemental Data:
Natural gas costs in COS (per
MMBtu)() $2.70  $3.00
Realized derivatives loss in COS
(per MMBtu)® 0.17 0.05
Cost of natural gas in COS (per
MMBtu) $2.87  $3.05
Average daily market price of natural
gas (per MMBtu) Henry Hub $2.84  $2.75
(Louisiana)
Average daily market price of natural
gas (per MMBtu) National Balancing $4.08  $6.44

Point (UK)

27 )%
11 Y%
99 )%

5 %

(100)%
73 %

(10 )%

N/M

N/M
B )%
80 )%

N/M

N/M
(100)%
(100)%
N/M

N/M
N/M

%
%

(10 )%
240 %

6 )%

3 %

Nine Months Ended September 30,
2016 v. 2015

$375)
146

(521 )
(132 )%

21

142
107

270

3r )
(822 )
34

(6 )
(850 )

(354 )
72 )
(568 )
62

$(630 )
$(2.65)
34 )
$—
$(0.66)
0.37

$(0.29)

$(0.47)

2016 2015
(in millions, except as noted)
$2.818 $3,193
2,072 1,926
746 1,267
265 % 397 %
141 120
179 37
181 74
501 231
(11 ) 20
234 1,056
126 92
(1 ) 5
109 959
(21 ) 333
— 72
130 698
87 25
$43 $673
$0.19 $2.84
233.5 236.9
$0.90 $0.90
$2.41 $3.07
0.60 0.23
$3.01 $3.30
$2.31 $2.78
$6.85

(37 )% $4.31

$(2.54)

(12 )%
8 %
41 Y%

18 %

N/M
145 %

117 %

N/M

(78 )%
37 %
N/M

(89 )%

N/M

(100)%
81 )%
248 %

94 )%
93 )%

)%
%

(1

21 )%
161 %

O )Y

17 Y%

37 Y%
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Unrealized net mark-to-market loss

(gain) on natural gas derivatives $21 $126  $(105) (83 )% $(169 ) $79 $(248) NM

Capital expenditures $440 $759  $(319) (42 )% $1,819 $1,791 $28 2 %
Production volume by product tons
(000s):
Ammonia® 1,987 1915 72 4 % 5,981 5,575 406 7 %
Granular urea 827 544 283 52 % 2,454 1,762 692 39 %
UAN (32%) 1,614 1,372 242 18 % 4,903 4,286 617 14 %
AN 475 365 110 30 % 1,292 796 496 62 %

N/M—Not Meaningful
(1) Includes the cost of natural gas that is included in cost of sales during the period under the first-in, first-out (FIFO)

inventory cost method.

(2) Includes realized gains and losses on natural gas derivatives settled during the period. Excludes unrealized
mark-to-market gains and losses on natural gas derivatives.

(3) Gross ammonia production, including amounts subsequently upgraded on-site into granular urea, UAN, or AN.

47

74



Edgar Filing: CF Industries Holdings, Inc. - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents

Third Quarter of 2016 Compared to Third Quarter of 2015

Consolidated Operating Results

Our reportable segments consist of ammonia, granular urea, UAN, AN and Other and include the results of CF
Fertilisers UK as a result of our acquisition of the remaining 50% equity interest in CF Fertilisers UK that closed on
July 31, 2015. We reported a net loss attributable to common stockholders of $30 million in the third quarter of 2016
compared to net earnings of $90 million in the same quarter of 2015, a decrease of $120 million. During the third
quarter of 2016, we experienced lower net earnings compared to the third quarter of 2015 due primarily to lower gross
margin during the third quarter of 2016 and the prior year gain of $94 million on the remeasurement to fair value of
our initial 50% equity interest in CF Fertilisers UK related to the closing of our acquisition of the remaining 50%
equity interest in CF Fertilisers UK. These items were partly offset by decreased transaction costs and an income tax
benefit during the third quarter of 2016 compared to an income tax provision during the third quarter of 2015.

Our total gross margin declined by $163 million, or 99%, to $2 million in the third quarter of 2016 from $165 million
in the third quarter of 2015. The impact of the CF Fertilisers UK acquisition increased gross margin in the current
quarter by $1 million, or 1%. The remaining decrease in gross margin of $164 million, or 99%, was due primarily to
lower average selling prices and higher expansion project related costs, partially offset by the impact of lower
mark-to-market losses on natural gas derivatives, increased sales volume and lower operating costs:

Average selling prices, primarily UAN, granular urea and ammonia decreased by 35%, which reduced gross margin
by $333 million.

Lower unrealized net mark-to-market losses on natural gas derivatives increased gross margin by $105 million as the
third quarter of 2016 included a $21 million loss and the third quarter of 2015 included a $126 million loss.
Donaldsonville expansion project depreciation for the granular urea and the UAN plants and start-up costs for the new
ammonia plant reduced gross margin by $37 million.

Sales volume, primarily granular urea, increased by 6%, which increased gross margin by $21 million.

Lower physical natural gas costs in the third quarter of 2016, partially offset by the impact of natural gas derivatives
that settled in the period, increased gross margin by $10 million as compared to the third quarter of 2015.

Lower operating costs, including distribution, freight and other production costs, increased gross margin by
approximately $69 million.

During the third quarter of 2016, our income tax provision was a tax benefit of $131 million on a pre-tax loss of

$131 million. This compares to the third quarter of 2015 when we recognized a tax provision of $20 million on pre-tax
earnings of $24 million. The tax benefit recognized in the third quarter of 2016 includes the recognition that full year
2016 projected pre-tax income less noncontrolling interest will be a loss, where as of the end of the second quarter of
2016 we had projected income. As of result of this projected change, we have recognized in the third quarter of 2016
the reversal of the tax provision that had been recorded earlier in 2016, resulting in a tax benefit in the third quarter of
2016. See Note 10—Income Taxes to our unaudited interim consolidated financial statements included in Part I, Item 1
of this report for additional information on our income tax benefit.

The net loss attributable to common stockholders of $30 million in the third quarter of 2016 included $61 million of
expenses ($39 million after tax) related to our capacity expansion projects in Donaldsonville, Louisiana and Port Neal,
Towa including costs that did not qualify for capitalization, start-up costs and incremental depreciation, $22 million of
unrealized loss related to a fair value adjustment to an embedded derivative ($14 million after tax), $21 million of
unrealized net mark-to-market losses ($13 million after tax) on natural gas derivatives, $4 million of expenses ($2
million after tax) related to the July 2016 Credit Agreement Amendment and the September 2016 NPA Amendment,
$3 million of losses on foreign currency transactions primarily related to unrealized losses on foreign currency
denominated intercompany debt not permanently invested ($4 million after tax). Net earnings attributable to common
stockholders of $90 million for the third quarter of 2015 included a $94 million gain ($94 million after tax) as a result
of the remeasurement to fair value of our initial 50% equity interest in CF Fertilisers UK, $37 million of transaction
costs ($25 million after tax), $12 million of losses on foreign currency transactions primarily related to unrealized
losses on foreign currency denominated intercompany debt not permanently invested ($14 million after tax), $126
million of unrealized net mark-to-market losses ($79 million after tax) on natural gas derivatives, amortization of the
financing fees related to the terminated bridge credit agreement of $6 million ($4 million after tax) and $15 million of
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Net Sales

Our total net sales decreased $248 million, or 27%, to $680 million in the third quarter of 2016 compared to

$928 million in the third quarter of 2015. The impact of the CF Fertilisers UK acquisition increased our net sales by
$43 million, or 5%, in the third quarter of 2016. The remaining decline in our net sales of $291 million, or 31%, was
due to a 35% decrease in average selling prices partially offset by a 6% increase in sales volume.

Average selling prices, excluding the acquisition impact of CF Fertilisers UK, were $187 per ton in the third quarter of
2016 compared to $289 per ton in the third quarter of 2015 due primarily to lower UAN, granular urea and ammonia
selling prices in 2016. Selling prices were negatively impacted by the continued oversupply of nitrogen fertilizer
driven by global capacity additions and weaker global industrial demand. Pricing for nitrogen fertilizer products in the
U.S. Gulf declined during the third quarter of 2016, often trading below international parity, as seasonal decreases in
agricultural demand combined with delayed customer purchasing activity resulted in multi-year lows in nitrogen
fertilizer selling prices. In addition, our selling prices reflect the impact of lower international pricing on our export
sales, which have increased as we expand our global customer base.

Our total sales volume increased by 14% from the third quarter of 2015 to the third quarter of 2016. The impact of the
CF Fertilisers UK acquisition increased our sales volume by 8%. The remaining increase in our sales volume of 6%
was due primarily to higher granular urea sales volume, partly offset by lower UAN and ammonia sales volume.
Granular urea sales volume was higher as a result of our expansion projects coming on line at our Donaldsonville,
Louisiana complex as we upgrade existing ammonia production, which reduces our ammonia available to sell. Our
sales volume, primarily UAN, was negatively impacted by customers delaying fertilizer purchases during periods of
declining prices.

Cost of Sales

Our total cost of sales decreased $85 million, or 11%, from the third quarter of 2015 to the third quarter of 2016. The
impact of the CF Fertilisers UK acquisition increased cost of sales by $42 million, or 6%. The remaining decrease in
our cost of sales was $127 million, or 17%, due primarily to the impact of lower unrealized net mark-to-market losses
on natural gas derivatives and lower operating costs, partly offset by increased sales volume, higher depreciation cost
primarily due to the expansion projects and start-up costs related to the Donaldsonville ammonia plant. The remaining
cost of sales per ton averaged $187 in the third quarter of 2016, a 21% decrease from the $238 per ton in the same
quarter of 2015. The third quarter of 2016 included a $21 million mark-to-market net loss compared to a $126 million
mark-to-market net loss included in the third quarter of 2015. Lower operating costs include lower realized natural
gas, distribution, freight, and other production costs compared to the prior year third quarter.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased $2 million to $44 million in the third quarter of 2016 from

$42 million in the same quarter of 2015. The increase was due primarily to the increased professional services in the
third quarter of 2016 related to the September 2016 NPA Amendment and the inclusion of a full quarter of CF
Fertilisers UK results in our consolidated segment results.

Transaction Costs

In the third quarter of 2016, we did not incur any transaction costs. In the third quarter of 2015, we incurred $37
million of transaction costs associated primarily with the agreements pertaining to the proposed combination with
certain businesses of OCI that was terminated on May 22, 2016 and our strategic venture with CHS.

Other Operating—Net

Other operating—net was $57 million of expense in the third quarter of 2016 compared to $33 million of expense in the
same quarter of 2015. The increased expense was due primarily to the unrealized $22 million loss representing a fair
value adjustment to an embedded derivative related to our strategic venture with CHS. See Note 9—Fair Value
Measurements to our unaudited interim consolidated financial statements included in Part I, Item 1 of this report for
additional information on this adjustment. The increased expense also reflects higher expansion project costs
pertaining to our Donaldsonville, Louisiana and Port Neal, lowa capacity expansion projects that did not qualify for
capitalization.

Equity in (Losses) Earnings of Operating Affiliates
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Equity in losses of operating affiliates, consisting of our 50% share of the operating results of PLNL, decreased
$8 million in the third quarter of 2016 to a loss of $2 million compared to income of $6 million in the third quarter of
2015. The loss at PLNL was primarily attributable to lower ammonia selling prices.
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Interest Expense—Net

Net interest expense was $29 million in the third quarter of 2016 compared to $30 million in the third quarter of 2015.
The third quarter of 2016 includes higher amounts of capitalized interest related to our capacity expansion projects as
we recorded capitalized interest of $53 million and $44 million in the third quarter of 2016 and 2015, respectively.
The third quarter of 2016 also includes higher interest expense associated with the Private Senior Notes and $2 million
of accelerated amortization of deferred fees related to the July 2016 Credit Agreement Amendment which reduced the
revolving credit facility to $1.5 billion from $2.0 billion. The decrease also includes the impact of loan arrangement
fees paid in the third quarter of 2015 related to the bridge credit facility that was terminated.

Income Taxes

For the three months ended September 30, 2016, we recorded an income tax benefit of $131 million on a pre-tax loss
of $131 million, compared to an income tax provision of $20 million on pre-tax income of $24 million for the three
months ended September 30, 2015.

The income tax benefit of $131 million primarily relates to the fact that we are now projecting that full year 2016
pre-tax earnings, excluding the noncontrolling interests, will be a loss. As of June 30, 2016, we were projecting profit
for the full year. The impact of this change in projected profitability was an income tax benefit of $163 million. In
addition, other items included in our annualized effective tax rate that impacted the income tax benefit recorded in the
third quarter of 2016 were, as follows:

We recorded income tax expense of $42 million related to the reversal of prior year U.S. manufacturing profits
deductions due to the recapture of these benefits in the third quarter of 2016. The recapture results from our intention
to carry back certain tax losses to prior years that will reduce the amount of the prior year U.S. manufacturing profits
deduction that can be claimed.

We recorded a valuation allowance of $21 million against certain foreign deferred tax assets which increased income
tax expense.

We recorded an income tax benefit of $9 million related to the impact of certain transaction costs which were treated
as not being deductible for tax purposes in the prior year and are now tax deductible as a result of the termination of
the proposed combination with certain businesses of OCI. See Note 3—Acquisitions to our unaudited interim
consolidated financial statements included in Part I, Item 1 of this report for additional information.

See Note 10—Income Taxes to our unaudited interim consolidated financial statements included in Part I, Item 1 of this
report for additional information.

Our effective tax rate is impacted by earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests in CFN and TNCLP, as our
consolidated income tax provision does not include a tax provision on the earnings attributable to the noncontrolling
interests. Earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests increased in 2016 due to our strategic venture with CHS that
commenced on February 1, 2016, at which time CHS purchased a minority equity interest in CFN. See Note
14—Noncontrolling Interests to our unaudited interim consolidated financial statements included in Part I, Item 1 of this
report for additional information.

Equity in Earnings of Non-Operating Affiliates—Net of Taxes

Equity in earnings of non-operating affiliates—net of taxes in the third quarter of 2015 included the previously owned
50% equity method earnings of CF Fertilisers UK. On July 31, 2015, we acquired the remaining 50% equity interest
in CF Fertilisers UK not previously owned by us for total consideration of $570 million, and CF Fertilisers UK
became wholly owned by us and part of our consolidated financial results. The third quarter of 2015 equity in earnings
of non-operating affiliates—net of taxes included the $94 million gain on the remeasurement to fair value of our initial
50% equity interest in CF Fertilisers UK that was recorded in connection with the closing of the acquisition.

Net Earnings Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests

Net earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests increased $23 million in the third quarter of 2016 compared to the
third quarter of 2015 due primarily to the earnings attributable to the noncontrolling interest in CFN as a result of
CHS's minority equity investment in CFN. This increase is partly offset by lower net earnings attributable to the
24.7% interest of the publicly held common units of TNCLP.
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Diluted Net (Loss) Earnings Per Share Attributable to Common Stockholders

Diluted net (loss) earnings per share attributable to common stockholders decreased $0.52 to diluted net loss per share
of $0.13 in the third quarter of 2016 from diluted net earnings per share of $0.39 in the third quarter of 2015. This
decrease is due to lower net earnings.

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2016 Compared to Nine Months Ended September 30, 2015

Consolidated Operating Results

We reported net earnings attributable to common stockholders of $43 million in the nine months ended September 30,
2016 compared to net earnings of $673 million in the same period of 2015, a decrease of $630 million, or 94%.
During the nine months ended September 30, 2016, we experienced lower net earnings compared to the same period
of 2015 due primarily to a lower gross margin combined with the impact of higher transaction costs, including the
$150 million termination fee paid to OCI in the nine months ended September 30, 2016 and the $94 million prior year
gain on the remeasurement to fair value of our initial 50% equity interest in CF Fertilisers UK related to the closing of
our acquisition of the remaining 50% equity interest in CF Fertilisers UK. These decreases were partly offset by an
income tax benefit during the nine months ended September 30, 2016.

Our total gross margin declined by $521 million, or 41%, to $746 million in the nine months ended September 30,
2016 from $1.27 billion in the same period of 2015. The impact of the CF Fertilisers UK acquisition increased gross
margin in the first nine months of 2016 by $18 million, or 1%. The remaining decrease in gross margin of $539
million, or 43%, was due primarily to lower average selling prices and higher expansion project related costs, partially
offset by the impact of mark-to-market gains on natural gas derivatives, increased sales volume, and lower physical
natural gas costs and operating costs:

Average selling prices, primarily for UAN, ammonia, and granular urea, decreased by 29%, which reduced gross
margin by $995 million.

Unrealized net mark-to-market gains on natural gas derivatives increased gross margin by $248 million as the nine
months ended September 30, 2016 included a $169 million gain and the first nine months of 2015 included a

$79 million loss.

Sales volume, primarily granular urea and UAN, increased by 13%, which increased gross margin by $166 million.
Donaldsonville expansion project depreciation for the granular urea and the UAN plants and start-up costs for the new
ammonia plant reduced gross margin by $75 million.

Lower physical natural gas costs in the nine months ended September 30, 2016, partially offset by the impact of
natural gas derivatives that settled in the period, increased gross margin by $59 million as compared to the first nine
months of 2015.

Lower operating costs, including distribution, freight and other production costs, increased gross margin by
approximately $58 million.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2016, primarily as a result of lower net earnings, our income tax
provision declined by $354 million to a net benefit of $21 million from an income tax provision of $333 million for
the first nine months of 2015. See Note 10—Income Taxes to our unaudited interim consolidated financial statements
included in Part I, Item 1 of this report for additional information on our income tax benefit.

Net earnings attributable to common stockholders of $43 million for the first nine months of 2016 included $86
million of losses on foreign currency transactions primarily related to unrealized losses on foreign currency
denominated intercompany debt not permanently invested ($85 million after tax), $169 million unrealized net
mark-to-market gain ($106 million after tax) on natural gas derivatives, $179 million of transaction costs ($96 million
after tax), $134 million of expenses ($85 million after tax) related to our capacity expansion projects in
Donaldsonville, Louisiana and Port Neal, Iowa including costs that did not qualify for capitalization, start-up costs and
incremental depreciation, amortization of the financing fees related to the terminated bridge credit agreement of $28
million ($18 million after tax), $22 million of unrealized loss related to a fair value adjustment to an embedded
derivative ($14 million after tax), $4 million of expenses ($2 million after tax) related to the July 2016 Credit
Agreement Amendment and the September 2016 NPA Amendment and $2 million of realized and unrealized net
gains ($1 million after tax) on foreign currency derivatives related to our capacity expansion projects. Net earnings
attributable to common stockholders of $673 million for the first nine months of 2015 included a $94 million gain

81



Edgar Filing: CF Industries Holdings, Inc. - Form 10-Q

($94 million after tax) as a result of the remeasurement to fair value of our initial 50% equity interest in CF Fertilisers
UK, $43 million of losses ($31 million after tax) as a result of the sale of equity method investments, $2 million of
gains on foreign currency transactions

51

82



Edgar Filing: CF Industries Holdings, Inc. - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents

($5 million loss after tax), $79 million of pre-tax unrealized net mark-to-market losses ($50 million after tax) on
natural gas derivatives, $37 million of transaction costs ($25 million after tax), amortization of the financing fees
related to the terminated bridge credit agreement of $6 million ($4 million after tax), $19 million of realized and
unrealized net losses ($12 million after tax) on foreign currency derivatives related to our capacity expansion projects
and $36 million of expenses ($23 million after tax) related to our capacity expansion projects that did not qualify for
capitalization.

Net Sales

Our total net sales decreased $375 million, or 12%, to $2.82 billion in the first nine months of 2016 compared to
$3.19 billion in the first nine months of 2015. The impact of the CF Fertilisers UK acquisition increased our net sales
by $269 million, or 8%. The remaining decline in our net sales of $644 million, or 20%, was due to a 29% decrease in
average selling prices partially offset by a 13% increase in sales volume.

Average selling prices, excluding the CF Fertilisers UK acquisition impact, were $232 per ton in the first nine months
of 2016 compared to $328 per ton in the comparable prior year period due primarily to lower UAN, ammonia, and
granular urea selling prices in 2016. Selling prices were negatively impacted by the continued oversupply of nitrogen
fertilizer driven by global capacity additions. Pricing for nitrogen fertilizer products in the U.S. Gulf declined during
the third quarter of 2016, often trading below international parity, as seasonal decreases in agricultural demand
combined with delayed customer purchasing activity resulted in multi-year lows in nitrogen fertilizer selling prices.
Our total sales volume increased by 26% from the first nine months of 2015 to the first nine months of 2016. The
impact of the CF Fertilisers UK acquisition increased our sales volume by 13%. The remaining increase in our sales
volume of 13% was due primarily to higher granular urea and UAN sales volume, partly offset by lower ammonia
sales volume as we upgrade existing ammonia production as a result of our expansion projects coming on line at our
Donaldsonville, Louisiana complex.

Cost of Sales

Our total cost of sales increased $146 million, or 8%, from the first nine months of 2015 to the first nine months of
2016. The impact of the CF Fertilisers UK acquisition increased cost of sales by $251 million, or 13%. The remaining
decrease in our cost of sales of $105 million, or 5%, was due primarily to the impact of higher unrealized net
mark-to-market gains on natural gas derivatives and lower realized natural gas costs partly offset by higher expansion
project related costs. The remaining cost of sales per ton averaged $166 in the first nine months of 2016, a 16%
decrease from the $198 per ton in the same period of 2015 due primarily to higher unrealized net mark-to-market
gains on natural gas derivatives. The first nine months of 2016 included a $169 million mark-to-market net gain
compared to a $79 million mark-to-market net loss included in the first nine months of 2015. The first nine months of
2016 include $75 million of Donaldsonville expansion project related expenses including depreciation for the granular
urea and the UAN plants and start-up costs for the new ammonia plant. These costs were partly offset by lower
operating costs including lower freight and other production costs compared to the first nine months of 2015.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased $21 million to $141 million in the first nine months of 2016
from $120 million in the comparable period of 2015. The increase was due primarily to the impact of the CF
Fertilisers UK acquisition and professional services related to corporate initiatives including third party fees related to
the September 2016 NPA Amendment.

Transaction Costs

In the first nine months of 2016, we incurred $179 million of transaction costs associated primarily with the
agreements pertaining to the proposed combination with certain businesses of OCI that was terminated on May 22,
2016 and our strategic venture with CHS. Transaction costs include the $150 million termination fee paid by CF
Holdings to OCI in the second quarter of 2016 as a result of the termination of the Combination Agreement and costs
for various consulting and legal services. In the first nine months of 2015 we incurred $37 million of transaction costs
associated with the agreements pertaining to the proposed combination with certain businesses of OCI and our
strategic venture with CHS.

Other Operating—Net
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Other operating—net was $181 million of expense in the first nine months of 2016 compared to $74 million of expense
in the comparable period of 2015. The increased expense was due primarily to unrealized losses on foreign currency
transactions primarily related to British pound sterling denominated intercompany debt that has not been permanently
invested. In addition, the increased expense in the first nine months of 2016 includes the unrealized $22 million loss
representing a fair value adjustment to an embedded derivative related to our strategic venture with CHS. See Note
9—Fair Value Measurements to our
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unaudited interim consolidated financial statements included in Part I, Item 1 of this report for additional information
on this adjustment. The increased expense also reflects higher expansion project costs pertaining to our
Donaldsonville, Louisiana and Port Neal, lowa capacity expansion projects that did not qualify for capitalization.
Equity in (Losses) Earnings of Operating Affiliates

Equity in (losses) earnings of operating affiliates consists primarily of our 50% share of the operating results of PLNL.
Equity in (losses) earnings of operating affiliates was a loss of $11 million in the first nine months of 2016 compared
to earnings of $20 million in the first nine months of 2015. The loss at PLNL was primarily attributable to costs of $24
million that were incurred during the second quarter of 2016 related to a planned maintenance activity at the PLNL
ammonia plant that resulted in the shutdown of the plant for approximately 45 days and lower ammonia selling prices
compared to the first nine months of 2015.

Interest Expense—Net

Net interest expense was $126 million in the first nine months of 2016 compared to $92 million in the first nine
months of 2015. The $34 million increase was due primarily to the amortization of capitalized bridge credit agreement
fees of $28 million pertaining to the bridge loan for our proposed combination with certain businesses of OCI. Upon
the termination of the proposed combination with OCI, the unamortized portion of these fees was expensed. The
increase also includes higher interest expense resulting from the issuance of $1.0 billion of aggregate principal amount
of Private Senior Notes in September 2015. These increases were partially offset by higher amounts of capitalized
interest related to our capacity expansion projects as we recorded capitalized interest of $142 million and $113 million
in the first nine months of 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Income Taxes

Our income tax benefit for the first nine months of 2016 was $21 million on pre-tax income of $109 million,
compared to an income tax provision of $333 million on pre-tax income of $959 million for the first nine months of
2015. The income tax benefit of $21 million primarily relates to the fact that we are now projecting that full year 2016
pre-tax earnings, excluding the noncontrolling interests, will be a loss. See Note 10—Income Taxes to our unaudited
interim consolidated financial statements included in Part I, Item 1, of this report for additional information.

In addition, our effective tax rate is impacted by earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests in CFN and TNCLP,
as our consolidated income tax provision does not include a tax provision on the earnings attributable to the
noncontrolling interests. Earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests increased in 2016 due to our strategic
venture with CHS that commenced on February 1, 2016, at which time CHS purchased a minority equity interest in
CFN. See Note 14—Noncontrolling Interests to our unaudited interim consolidated financial statements included in Part
I, Item 1 of this report for additional information.

Equity in Earnings of Non-Operating Affiliates—Net of Taxes

Equity in earnings of non-operating affiliates—net of taxes in the first nine months of 2015 included the previously
owned 50% equity method earnings of CF Fertilisers UK and also included our share of operating losses experienced
at Keytrade. On July 31, 2015, we acquired the remaining 50% equity interest in CF Fertilisers UK not previously
owned by us for total consideration of $570 million, and CF Fertilisers UK became wholly owned by us and part of
our consolidated financial results. We recorded a $94 million gain on the remeasurement to fair value of our initial
50% equity interest in CF Fertilisers UK in connection with the closing of the acquisition. Equity in earnings of
non-operating affiliates—net of taxes for the first nine months of 2015 also included our share of CF Fertilisers UK
operating results up to the date of the acquisition. In addition, during the second quarter of 2015, we sold our interests
in Keytrade and recorded an after-tax loss of $29 million (pre-tax loss of $40 million).

Net Earnings Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests

Net earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests increased $62 million in the first nine months of 2016 compared
to the comparable period in 2015 due primarily to the earnings attributable to the noncontrolling interest in CFN as a
result of CHS's minority equity investment in CFN. This increase is partly offset by lower net earnings attributable to
the 24.7% interest of the publicly held common units of TNCLP.

Diluted Net Earnings Per Share Attributable to Common Stockholders

Diluted net earnings per share attributable to common stockholders decreased $2.65, or 93%, to $0.19 per share in the
first nine months of 2016 from $2.84 per share in the first nine months of 2015. This decrease is due to lower net

85



earnings.

53

Edgar Filing: CF Industries Holdings, Inc. - Form 10-Q

86



Table of Contents

Operating Results by Business Segment
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Our reportable segments consist of ammonia, granular urea, UAN, AN and Other. These segments are differentiated
by products. Our management uses gross margin to evaluate segment performance and allocate resources. Total other
operating costs and expenses (consisting of selling, general and administrative expenses and other operating—net) and
non-operating expenses (interest and income taxes), are centrally managed and are not included in the measurement of
segment profitability reviewed by management.
The following table presents summary operating results by business segment including the impact of our acquisition
of the remaining 50% equity interest in CF Fertilisers UK:

Three months ended September 30, 2016

Net sales
Cost of sales
Gross margin

Gross margin percentage
Three months ended September 30, 2015

Net sales
Cost of sales
Gross margin

Gross margin percentage
Nine months ended September 30, 2016

Net sales
Cost of sales
Gross margin

Gross margin percentage
Nine months ended September 30, 2015

Net sales
Cost of sales
Gross margin

Gross margin percentage

Ammonia

Granular
Urea®)

UAN®D

AN®D

(in millions, except percentages)

$145

149

$¢4 )
28 )%

$261

207

$54

208 %

$770

505

$265
344 %

$1,148
635

$513
447 %

$167
152

$15

90 %

$171
132
$39
228 %

$642
445
$197
30.7 %

$594
324
$270
454 %

$212
218

$6 )
28 )

$349
276
$73
20.8

$891
646
$245
27.5

$1,112
678
$434
39.0

$103

114

$11)
% (10.7)%

$80

97

$(17)
% (21.6)%

$318
316
$2

% 0.6 %

$179
179
$—

Do — %

OtherD Consolidated

$53

45

$8
151 %

$67

51

$16
243 %

$197
160
$37
18.8 %

$160
110
$50
314 %

$ 680

678

$2

0.3 %

$ 928

763

$ 165

17.8 %

$ 2,818
2,072

$ 746

26.5 %

$ 3,193
1,926

$ 1,267
39.7 %

() The cost of products that are upgraded into other products is transferred at cost into the upgraded product results.

54

87



Edgar Filing: CF Industries Holdings, Inc. - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents

Ammonia Segment
Our ammonia segment produces anhydrous ammonia (ammonia), which is our most concentrated nitrogen fertilizer as
it contains 82% nitrogen. The results of our ammonia segment consist of sales of ammonia to external customers. In
addition, ammonia is the "basic" nitrogen product that we upgrade into other nitrogen products such as granular urea,
UAN and AN. We produce ammonia at all of our nitrogen manufacturing complexes.
The following table presents summary operating data for our ammonia segment, including the impact of our
acquisition of the remaining 50% equity interest in CF Fertilisers UK:
Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
2016 2015 2016 v.2015 2016 2015 2016 v. 2015

(in millions, except as noted) (in millions, except as noted)
Net sales $145  $261 $(116) (44 Y% $770 $1,148 $3B78) (B3)%
Cost of sales 149 207 58 ) (28 )% 505 635 (130 ) (20)%
Gross margin $4 ) $54 $(58 ) (107)% $265 $513 $(248) (48)%
Gross margin percentage (2.8 )% 20.8 % (23.6 )% 344 % 447 % (10.3 Y%
Sales volume by product tons (000s) 505 585 @& ) 14 % 2,112 2,176 o4 ) 3
Sales volume by nutrient tons (000s)(D) 414 480 66 ) (14 )% 1,732 1,785 B33 ) B )%
Average selling price per product ton $287  $446 $(159) (36 Y% $365 $527 $(162) (B1)%
Average selling price per nutrient ton(! $350  $544 $(194) (36 Y% $445 $643 $(198) @B1)%
Gross margin per product ton $8 ) $93 $(101) N/M  $125 $236 $111) A%
Gross margin per nutrient ton(!) $(10) $113 $(123) N/M  $153 $287 $(134) @41H%
Depreciation and amortization $19 $32 $(13 ) (41 Y% $59 $75 $16 ) 2%

Unrealized net mark-to-market loss (gain) on

natural gas derivatives $7 $29 $(22) (76 )% $(55) $18 $(73 ) NM

N/M—Not Meaningful
(1) Ammonia represents 82% nitrogen content. Nutrient tons represent the equivalent tons of nitrogen within the
product tons.
Third Quarter of 2016 Compared to Third Quarter of 2015
Net Sales. Total net sales in the ammonia segment decreased by $116 million, or 44%, in the third quarter of 2016
from the third quarter of 2015 due primarily to a 36% decrease in average selling prices and a 14% decrease in sales
volume. These results include the impact of the CF Fertilisers UK acquisition, which increased net sales by $4 million,
or 2%. The remaining decrease in our ammonia net sales of $120 million, or 46%, was primarily due to lower average
selling prices and sales volume. Selling prices are lower due to the increased global supply of nitrogen driven by
global capacity additions, weaker global industrial demand and lower feedstock costs. In addition, our selling prices
reflect the impact of lower international pricing on our export sales, which have increased as we expand our global
customer base. Our sales volume in the third quarter of 2016 was lower primarily due to the impact of upgrading
existing ammonia production at our Donaldsonville facility into granular urea and UAN as a result of our expansion
projects coming on line at our Donaldsonville, Louisiana complex.
Cost of Sales. Cost of sales per ton in our ammonia segment averaged $295 in the third quarter of 2016, including
the impact of the CF Fertilisers UK acquisition, which averaged $176 per ton. The remaining cost of sales per ton
averaged $299 in the third quarter of 2016, a 15% decrease from the $353 per ton in the same quarter of 2015. The
decrease was due primarily to the impact of lower unrealized net mark-to-market losses on natural gas derivatives in
the third quarter of 2016 compared to the third quarter of 2015 and the impact of lower realized natural gas cost. This
was partly offset by the start-up costs for the new expansion ammonia plant at our Donaldsonville facility that was
placed into service after the end of the third quarter of 2016, in October 2016.
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Nine Months Ended September 30, 2016 Compared to Nine Months Ended September 30, 2015

Net Sales. Total net sales in the ammonia segment decreased by $378 million, or 33%, in the nine months ended
September 30, 2016 from the nine months ended September 30, 2015 due primarily to a 31% decrease in average
selling prices and a 3% decrease in sales volume. These results include the impact of the CF Fertilisers UK
acquisition, which increased net sales by $26 million, or 2%. The remaining decrease in our ammonia net sales of
$404 million, or 35%, was due primarily to lower average selling prices compared to the nine months ended
September 30, 2015 and lower sales volume. Average selling prices were lower due to the continued oversupply of
nitrogen driven by global capacity additions, weaker global industrial demand and lower feedstock costs. In addition,
our selling prices reflect the impact of lower international pricing on our export sales, which have increased as we
expand our global customer base. Our sales volume in 2016 includes the impact of the CF Fertilisers UK acquisition
which increased sales volume by 5% in the nine months ended September 30, 2016. The remaining sales volume
decreased due primarily to weaker global industrial demand.

Cost of Sales. Cost of sales per ton in our ammonia segment averaged $240 in the first nine months of 2016,
including the impact of the CF Fertilisers UK acquisition, which averaged $220 per ton. The remaining cost of sales
per ton remained unchanged at an average of $240 in the nine months ended September 30, 2016, an 18% decrease
from the $291 per ton in the comparable period of 2015. The decrease was due primarily to the impact of unrealized
net mark-to-market gains on natural gas derivatives in the first nine months of 2016 compared to losses in the
comparable period of 2015.
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Granular Urea Segment
Our granular urea segment produces granular urea, which contains 46% nitrogen. Produced from ammonia and carbon
dioxide, it has the highest nitrogen content of any of our solid nitrogen fertilizers. Granular urea is produced at our
Courtright, Ontario; Donaldsonville, Louisiana; and Medicine Hat, Alberta nitrogen complexes.
The following table presents summary operating data for our granular urea segment:

Three Months Ended September ~ Nine Months Ended September

30, 30,

2016 2015 2016v.2015 2016 2015 2016v.2015

(in millions, except as noted) (in millions, except as noted)
Net sales $167 $171 $@ ) (2 )% $642 $594 $48 8 %
Cost of sales 152 132 20 15 % 445 324 121 37 %
Gross margin $15 $39 $24 ) (62)% $197 $270 $(73 ) (27)%
Gross margin percentage 9.0 % 22.8 % (13.8 )% 30.7 % 45.4 % (14.7 Y%
Sales volume by product tons (000s) 823 539 284 53 % 2,714 1,755 959 55 %
Sales volume by nutrient tons (000s)(D) 378 248 130 52 % 1,248 807 441 55 %
Average selling price per product ton $203  $317 $(114) (36)% $237 $338 $(101) (30)%
Average selling price per nutrient ton(! $442 $688 $(246) (36)% $514 $736 $(222) (30)%
Gross margin per product ton $18 $72 $54 ) (75)% $73 $154 $(81 ) ((B3)%
Gross margin per nutrient ton(! $40 $157  $(117) (75)% $158 $334 $(176) (53)%
Depreciation and amortization $25  $11 $14 127 % $75  $31  $44 142 %

Unrealized net mark-to-market loss (gain) on

natural gas derivatives $5 $33 $(28 ) (85)% $(a4) $21 $65) NM

N/M—Not Meaningful

(1) Granular urea represents 46% nitrogen content. Nutrient tons represent the tons of nitrogen within the product tons.
Third Quarter of 2016 Compared to Third Quarter of 2015

Net Sales. Net sales in the granular urea segment decreased $4 million, or 2%, in the third quarter of 2016 from the
third quarter of 2015 due primarily to a 36% decrease in average selling prices partially offset by a 53% increase in
sales volume. Average selling prices decreased to $203 per ton in the third quarter of 2016 compared to $317 per ton
in the third quarter of 2015 due primarily to the continued oversupply of nitrogen fertilizer and lower feedstock costs.
Sales volume was higher due primarily to increased supply availability as a result of our expanded urea capacity at our
Donaldsonville, Louisiana complex.

Cost of Sales. Cost of sales per ton in our granular urea segment averaged $185 in the third quarter of 2016, a 24%
decrease from $245 per ton in the same quarter of 2015. The decrease was due primarily to the impact of lower
unrealized net mark-to-market losses on natural gas derivatives in the third quarter of 2016 compared to the loss in the
third quarter of 2015. This decrease was partly offset by increased depreciation expense related to our expanded urea
production coming on line at our Donaldsonville, Louisiana complex in November 2015.

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2016 Compared to Nine Months Ended September 30, 2015

Net Sales. Net sales in the granular urea segment increased $48 million, or 8%, in the nine months ended September
30, 2016 from the nine months ended September 30, 2015 due primarily to a 55% increase in volume partly offset by
a 30% decrease in average selling prices. Sales volume was higher due to increased production as a result of our
expanded urea capacity at our Donaldsonville, Louisiana complex. Average selling prices decreased to $237 per ton in
the first nine months of 2016 compared to $338 per ton in the comparable period of 2015 due primarily to the
continued oversupply of nitrogen fertilizer and lower feedstock costs.

Cost of Sales. Cost of sales per ton in our granular urea segment averaged $164 in the first nine months of 2016, an
11% decrease from the $184 per ton in the comparable period of 2015. The decrease was due primarily to the impact
of unrealized net mark-to-market gains on natural gas derivatives in the first nine months of 2016 compared to losses
in the comparable period of 2015. This was partly offset by increased depreciation expense related to our expanded
urea production at our Donaldsonville, Louisiana complex.
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UAN Segment

Our UAN segment produces urea ammonium nitrate solution (UAN). UAN, a liquid fertilizer product with a nitrogen
content that typically ranges from 28% to 32%, is produced by combining urea and ammonium nitrate. UAN is
produced at our nitrogen complexes in Courtright, Ontario; Donaldsonville, Louisiana; Port Neal, lowa; Verdigris,
Oklahoma; Woodward, Oklahoma; and Yazoo City, Mississippi.

The following table presents summary operating data for our UAN segment:

Three Months Ended September Nine Months Ended September 30,

30,

2016 2015 2016v.2015 2016 2015 2016 v. 2015

(in millions, except as noted) (in millions, except as noted)
Net sales $212 $349  $(137) (39% $891 $1,112 $(221) (20)%
Cost of sales 218 276 58 ) (21)% 646 678 B2 ) B
Gross margin $6 ) $73 $(79 ) N/M $245 $434 $(189) (44)%
Gross margin percentage 2.8 Y% 20.8 % (23.6 )% 275 % 390 % (11.5 )%
Sales volume by product tons (000s) 1,350 1445 (95 ) (7 )% 4,634 4,266 368 9 %
Sales volume by nutrient tons (000s)(D) 427 458 Bl ) (7 )% 1,461 1,347 114 8 %
Average selling price per product ton $157 $242 $B85 ) (B5% $192 $261 $69 ) (26)%
Average selling price per nutrient ton(! $496  $763 $(267) (35)% $610 $826 $(216) (26)%
Gross margin per product ton $4 ) $50 $(54 ) N/M $53 $102 $49 ) A%
Gross margin per nutrient ton(!) $(14) $159 $(173) N/M $168 $322 $(154) (48)%
Depreciation and amortization $58 $43 $15 35 % $175 $140 $35 25 %

Unrealized net mark-to-market loss (gain) on

natural gas derivatives $7 $33 $46 ) (BN% $(52) $33 $85) NM

N/M—Not Meaningful
1y UAN represents between 28% and 32% of nitrogen content, depending on the concentration specified by the
customer. Nutrient tons represent the tons of nitrogen within the product tons.
Third Quarter of 2016 Compared to Third Quarter of 2015
Net Sales. Net sales in the UAN segment decreased $137 million, or 39%, in the third quarter of 2016 from the third
quarter of 2015 due primarily to a 35% decrease in average selling prices and a 7% decrease in sales volume. Average
selling prices decreased to $157 per ton in the third quarter of 2016 compared to $242 per ton in the third quarter of
2015. UAN selling prices were lower due to the continued oversupply of nitrogen fertilizer and lower feedstock costs.
Increases in UAN exports at lower selling prices also impacted our average selling prices. Our sales volume was lower
due primarily to customers' hesitancy to take inventory positions in a declining price environment.
Cost of Sales. Cost of sales per ton in our UAN segment averaged $161 in the third quarter of 2016, a 16% decrease
from the $192 per ton in the third quarter of 2015. The decrease was due primarily to the impact of lower unrealized
net mark-to-market losses on natural gas derivatives in the third quarter of 2016 compared to the third quarter of 2015.
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2016 Compared to Nine Months Ended September 30, 2015
Net Sales. Net sales in the UAN segment decreased $221 million, or 20%, in the nine months ended September 30,
2016 from the nine months ended September 30, 2015 due primarily to a 26% decrease in average selling prices,
partially offset by a 9% increase in sales volume. Average selling prices decreased to $192 per ton in the first nine
months of 2016 compared to $261 per ton in the comparable period of 2015. UAN selling prices were lower due to the
continued oversupply of nitrogen fertilizer and lower feedstock costs. Increases in UAN exports at lower selling prices
also impacted our average selling prices. Our sales volume was higher due primarily to increased supply from the
expanded UAN capacity at our Donaldsonville, Louisiana complex that began in the first quarter of 2016.
Cost of Sales. Cost of sales per ton in our UAN segment averaged $139 in the first nine months of 2016, a 13%
decrease from the $159 per ton in the comparable period of 2015. The decrease was due primarily to the impact of
unrealized net mark-to-market gains on natural gas derivatives in the first nine months of 2016 compared to losses in
the comparable period of 2015 and the impact of lower realized natural gas cost in the first nine months of 2016.
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AN Segment

Our AN segment produces ammonium nitrate (AN). AN is a nitrogen-based product with a nitrogen content between
29% and 35%. AN is used as nitrogen fertilizer and is also used by industrial customers for commercial explosives
and blasting systems. AN is produced at our nitrogen complexes in Yazoo City, Mississippi and Ince and Billingham,
United Kingdom.

The following table presents summary operating data for our AN segment, including the impact of our acquisition of
the remaining 50% equity interest in CF Fertilisers UK:

Three Months Ended September
30,

Nine Months Ended September
30,

2016 2015 2016 v.2015 2016 2015 2016v.2015

(in millions, except as noted) (in millions, except as noted)
Net sales $103  $80 $23 29 % $318 $179 $139 78 %
Cost of sales 114 97 17 18 % 316 179 137 77 %
Gross margin $(a1) $17 ) $6 (35)% $2 $— %2 N/M
Gross margin percentage (10.7)% (21.6 Y% 109 % 06 % — % 06 %
Sales volume by product tons (000s) 599 347 252 73 % 1,610 795 815 103 %
Sales volume by nutrient tons (000s)(D) 203 117 86 74 % 545 271 274 101 %
Average selling price per product ton $172  $229 $G57 ) (25)% $198 $225 $(27) (12)%
Average selling price per nutrient ton(! $507 $679 $(172) (25)% $583 $660 $(77) (12)%
Gross margin per product ton $(18) $(50 ) $32 64 % $1 $— $1 — %
Gross margin per nutrient ton(!) $(54) $3147) $93 63 % $4 $(1 ) $5 N/M
Depreciation and amortization $22 $20 $2 10 % $72 $44 $28 64 %

Unrealized net mark-to-market loss (gain) on
natural gas derivatives

$1 $11 $(10 ) OD% $(7 ) $7 $(14) NM

N/M—Not Meaningful

(1) Nutrient tons represent the tons of nitrogen within the product tons.

Third Quarter of 2016 Compared to Third Quarter of 2015

Net Sales. Total net sales in our AN segment increased by $23 million, or 29%, in the third quarter of 2016 from the
third quarter of 2015 due primarily to a 73% increase in sales volume partially offset by a 25% decrease in average
selling prices. These results include the impact of the CF Fertilisers UK acquisition, which increased net sales by $32
million, or 40%. The remaining decrease in our AN net sales of $9 million, or 11%, was due primarily to lower
average selling prices from the continued oversupply of nitrogen and the impact of lower-gas plus formula prices on
certain industrial contracts.

Cost of Sales. Total cost of sales per ton in our AN segment averaged $190 in the third quarter of 2016, including
the impact of the CF Fertilisers UK acquisition, which averaged $195 per ton. The remaining cost of sales per ton
averaged $188 in the third quarter of 2016, a 33% decrease from the $279 per ton in the third quarter of 2015, due
primarily to the impact of lower unrealized net mark-to-market losses on natural gas derivatives in the third quarter of
2016 compared to the third quarter of 2015. This decrease also includes the prior year impact of the purchase
accounting inventory step-up included from the CF Fertilisers UK acquisition.

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2016 Compared to Nine Months Ended September 30, 2015

Net Sales. Total net sales in our AN segment increased $139 million, or 78%, in the nine months ended September
30, 2016 from the nine months ended September 30, 2015 due primarily to a 103% increase in sales volume partially
offset by a 12% decrease in average selling prices. These results include the impact of the CF Fertilisers UK
acquisition, which increased net sales by $164 million, or 92%. The remaining decrease in our AN net sales of $25
million, or 14%, was due primarily to lower average selling prices from the continued oversupply of nitrogen.

Cost of Sales.  Total cost of sales per ton in our AN segment averaged $197 in the first nine months of 2016,
including the impact of the CF Fertilisers UK acquisition, which averaged $211 per ton. The remaining cost of sales
per ton averaged $184 in the first nine months of 2016, an 18% decrease from the $225 per ton in the comparable
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period of 2015 due primarily to net mark-to-market gains on natural gas derivatives in the first nine months of 2016
compared to losses in the comparable period of 2015 and the impact of lower realized natural gas costs. This decrease

also includes the prior year impact of the purchase accounting inventory step-up included from the CF Fertilisers UK
acquisition.
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Other Segment

Our Other segment primarily includes the following products:

Diesel exhaust fluid (DEF) is an aqueous urea solution typically made with 32.5% high-purity urea and 67.5%
deionized water.

Urea liquor is a liquid product that we sell in concentrations of 40%, 50% and 70% urea as a chemical intermediate.
Nitric acid is a nitrogen-based product with a nitrogen content of 22.2%.

Compound fertilizer products (NPKs) are solid granular fertilizer products for which the nutrient content is a
combination of nitrogen, phosphorus and potassium.

The following table presents summary operating data for our Other segment, including the impact of our acquisition
of the remaining 50% equity interest in CF Fertilisers UK:

Three Months Ended September Nine Months Ended September 30,

30,

2016 2015 2016 v. 2015 2016 2015 2016 v. 2015

(in millions, except as noted) (in millions, except as noted)
Net sales $53 $67 $(14 ) @2DH% $197 $160 $37 23 %
Cost of sales 45 51 (6 ) (12)% 160 110 50 45 %
Gross margin $8 $16 $8 ) (B50)% $37 $50 $(13 ) (26)%
Gross margin percentage 151 % 243 % (9.2 Y% 188 % 314 % (12.6 Y%
Sales volume by product tons (000s) 389 297 92 31 % 1,204 744 460 62 %
Sales volume by nutrient tons (000s)(D) 73 56 17 30 % 230 144 86 60 %
Average selling price per product ton $136 $226 $(90 ) “40)% $164 $215 $G51 ) 2%
Average selling price per nutrient ton(! $726  $1,196  $(470) (39% $857 $1,109 $(252) (23)%
Gross margin per product ton $21 $55 $334 ) (62)% $31 $67 $36 ) (BH%
Gross margin per nutrient ton(!) $110 $291 $(181) (62)% $161 $348 $(187) (B4)%
Depreciation and amortization $12  $11 $1 9 % $34  $26 $8 31 %

Unrealized net mark-to-market loss (gain) on
natural gas derivatives

$1 $— $1 — % $(11) $— $(11 ) — %

(1) Nutrient tons represent the tons of nitrogen within the product tons.

Third Quarter of 2016 Compared to Third Quarter of 2015

Net Sales. Total net sales in our Other segment decreased by $14 million, or 21%, in the third quarter of 2016 from
the third quarter of 2015 due primarily to a 40% decrease in average selling prices partially offset by a 31% increase
in sales volume. These results include the impact of the CF Fertilisers UK acquisition, which increased net sales by $7
million, or 10%. The remaining decrease in our Other segment net sales of $21 million, or 31%, was due primarily to
lower average selling prices due to the continued oversupply of nitrogen.

Cost of Sales. Cost of sales per ton in our Other segment averaged $115 in the third quarter of 2016, including the
impact of the CF Fertilisers UK acquisition which averaged $70 per ton. The remaining cost of sales per ton averaged
$124 in the third quarter of 2016, a 28% decrease from the $172 per ton in the third quarter of 2015 due primarily to
the prior year impact of the purchase accounting inventory step-up included from the CF Fertilisers UK acquisition.
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2016 Compared to Nine Months Ended September 30, 2015

Net Sales. Total net sales in our Other segment decreased by $37 million, or 23%, in the nine months ended
September 30, 2016 from the nine months ended September 30, 2015 due to a 62% increase in sales volume partially
offset by a 24% decrease in average selling prices. These results include the impact of the CF Fertilisers UK
acquisition, which increased net sales by $79 million, or 49%. The remaining decrease in our Other segment net sales
of $42 million, or 26%, was due primarily to lower average selling prices due to the continued oversupply of nitrogen.
Cost of Sales. Cost of sales per ton in our Other segment averaged $133 in the first nine months of 2016, including
the impact of the CF Fertilisers UK acquisition, which averaged $158 per ton. The remaining cost of sales per ton
averaged $117 in the first nine months of 2016, a 21% decrease from the $148 per ton in the comparable period of
2015 due to the net mark-to-market gains on natural gas derivatives in the first nine months of 2016 and the impact of
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the prior year inventory step-up included in CF Fertilisers cost of sales.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary uses of cash are generally for operating costs, working capital, capital expenditures, debt service,
investments, taxes, share repurchases and dividends. Our working capital requirements are affected by several factors,
including demand for our products, selling prices, raw material costs, freight costs and seasonal factors inherent in the
business. Generally, our primary source of cash is cash from operations, which includes cash generated by customer
advances. We may also from time to time access the capital markets or engage in borrowings under our credit
agreements.

Lower selling prices due to a global oversupply of nitrogen fertilizer has affected our financial performance. Global
nitrogen fertilizer supply has increased faster than global nitrogen fertilizer demand, creating the current global
oversupply of nitrogen fertilizer and leading to lower nitrogen fertilizer selling prices. In addition, lower global
production costs driven by lower feedstock costs and foreign exchange rates, and reduced ocean freight costs have
further contributed to the current lower priced environment. We expect the lower priced environment to continue until
global supply and demand become more balanced through a combination of continued demand growth and supply
reductions as producers respond to lower realized margins by taking higher cost production facilities off line.

In response to these circumstances, in July 2016, we entered into the July 2016 Credit Agreement Amendment and, in
September 2016, we entered into the September 2016 NPA Amendment. The amendments, as described in further
detail below under “—Debt—Revolving Credit Agreement” and “—Debt—Public Senior Notes and Private Senior Notes—Pri
Senior Notes,” respectively, increased, through the end of 2017, the maximum total leverage ratio permitted under the
Revolving Credit Agreement (as defined in “—Debt—Revolving Credit Agreement,” below) and the Note Purchase
Agreement (as defined in “—Debt—Public Senior Notes and Private Senior Notes—Private Senior Notes,” below) and reduce
the size of our revolving credit facility under the Revolving Credit Agreement.

Due to the uncertainty of the duration of the current low price environment and in order to provide liquidity and
covenant flexibility for the future, we have taken and are taking certain additional steps with respect to the Revolving
Credit Agreement and the Private Senior Notes. These steps reflect in part our assessment, based on current fertilizer
market conditions, that we may be unable to maintain compliance as of the end of the fourth quarter of 2016 with the
total leverage ratio covenant under the Note Purchase Agreement and under the current terms of the Revolving Credit
Agreement. The steps we have taken include, subsequent to September 30, 2016, our entering into the Revolver
Amendment described under "—Debt—Revolving Credit Agreement," below. The Revolver Amendment provides for
modifications to the Revolving Credit Agreement as described in "—Debt—Revolving Credit Agreement," below, that
would become effective upon the satisfaction of specified conditions, including, among other things, the repayment in
full of the $1.0 billion principal amount of Private Senior Notes prior to or substantially concurrently with the
effectiveness of those modifications. Accordingly, we intend to prepay in full the Private Senior Notes during the
fourth quarter of 2016. We expect to fund that prepayment and the related make-whole amount, which we estimate
(based on market interest rates on October 31, 2016) will be approximately $210 million, with the issuance of new
long-term secured debt, borrowings under the Revolving Credit Agreement, cash on hand or a combination of any of
the foregoing. There can be no assurance that we will be able to complete an issuance of new long-term secured debt
on terms acceptable to us or at all. In the event that we use borrowings under the Revolving Credit Agreement and/or
cash on hand to prepay in full the Private Senior Notes during the fourth quarter of 2016, we believe that our cash on
hand (and any unused borrowing capacity under the Revolving Credit Agreement) would continue to be adequate to
fund our anticipated commitments and capital expenditures, and otherwise to meet our liquidity requirements.

We expect that the completion of our capacity expansion projects will reduce what had been a substantial use of
liquidity in recent years and will affect our liquidity during the balance of 2016 and during 2017. We have completed
our Donaldsonville, Louisiana capacity expansion project and expect to complete our Port Neal, lowa capacity
expansion project in late 2016 when the ammonia and granular urea plants come on line. See “—Capacity Expansion
Projects and Restricted Cash,” below. We expect that a significant portion of our expansion project assets will be
eligible for bonus depreciation under federal income tax rules and will generate a substantial tax loss in 2016 that can
be carried back to prior tax years to generate a refund of federal income taxes previously paid. See “—Realization of
Current Year Tax Assets Resulting From Bonus Depreciation,” below.
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Subsequent to the end of the third quarter of 2016 and in response to fertilizer market conditions, each of the three
credit rating agencies reviewed our corporate credit rating as follows. S&P Global Ratings reduced its corporate credit
rating to BB+ from BBB- and indicated the outlook was negative. Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. reduced its
corporate credit rating to Baa3 from Baa2 and indicated the rating was under further review. Fitch Ratings, Inc.
reduced its corporate credit rating to BB+ from BBB and indicated the outlook was stable.

At September 30, 2016, our balance of cash and cash equivalents was $1.55 billion and we were in compliance with
all applicable covenant requirements under the Revolving Credit Agreement and the company’s senior notes.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

We had cash and cash equivalents of $1.55 billion and $0.29 billion as of September 30, 2016 and December 31,
2015, respectively.

Share Repurchase Program

On August 6, 2014, our Board of Directors authorized a program to repurchase up to $1.0 billion of the common stock
of CF Holdings through December 31, 2016. Repurchases under this program may be made from time to time in the
open market, through privately negotiated transactions, through block transactions or otherwise. The manner, timing
and amount of repurchases are determined by our management based on the evaluation of market conditions, stock
price and other factors.

No share repurchases were made during the nine months ended September 30, 2016. During the nine months ended
September 30, 2015, we repurchased 8.9 million shares for $527 million. To date under this program, 15.9 million
shares have been repurchased for an aggregate expenditure of $900 million. We have suspended share repurchases and
will allow the remaining $100 million of share repurchases that remains under the program to expire in December
2016.

Capacity Expansion Projects and Restricted Cash

In 2012, we announced that we would construct new ammonia, urea, and UAN plants at our Donaldsonville,
Louisiana complex and new ammonia and urea plants at our Port Neal, lowa complex. These new plants will increase
our product mix flexibility at Donaldsonville, improve our ability to serve upper-Midwest urea customers from our
Port Neal location, and allow us to benefit from the cost advantages of North American natural gas. In combination,
these new facilities will be able to produce 2.1 million tons of gross ammonia per year, upgraded products ranging
from 2.0 million to 2.7 million tons of granular urea per year and up to 1.8 million tons of UAN 32% solution per
year, depending on our choice of product mix.

The new Donaldsonville granular urea and UAN plants came on line in the fourth quarter of 2015 and in the first
quarter of 2016, respectively. These new plants allow us to upgrade our existing ammonia production, without an
increase in the overall nutrient tons produced. The new Donaldsonville ammonia plant was placed in service after the
end of the third quarter, in October 2016, and the additional ammonia capacity from this plant will increase our overall
nutrient ton production capacity. The first nine months of 2016 includes $57 million of depreciation related to the new
Donaldsonville granular urea and UAN plants that have recently been commissioned, start-up costs relating to the
Donaldsonville ammonia plant of $18 million and $59 million of expenses that did not qualify for capitalization. The
Port Neal ammonia and urea plants are both expected to start production in late 2016.

The total cash spent to date on capital expenditures for the capacity expansion projects through the third quarter of
2016 was $4.8 billion, including $290 million during the third quarter of 2016. We estimate that the total remaining
cash spending for the capital component of the expansion projects will occur in 2016 and early 2017 and will bring the
total cash spending for the expansion projects to approximately $5.2 billion. In addition, the remaining start-up costs
and other expenditures to complete the projects that do not meet the requirements for capitalization are estimated to be
in the range of $50 million and $75 million.

We retained engineering and procurement services from an affiliate of ThyssenKrupp Industrial Solutions
(ThyssenKrupp) for both capacity expansion projects. Under the terms of the engineering and procurement services
contract, we granted ThyssenKrupp a security interest in a restricted cash account and maintain a cash balance in that
account equal to the cancellation fees for procurement services and equipment that would arise if we were to cancel
the projects. The amount in the account changes over time based on procurement costs. As of September 30, 2016,
there was $7 million held in this account. This restricted cash is excluded from our cash and cash equivalents and
reported separately on our consolidated balance sheets and statements of cash flows.
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Capital Spending

We make capital expenditures to sustain our asset base, increase our capacity, improve plant efficiency and to comply
with various environmental, health and safety requirements. Capital expenditures totaled $1.82 billion in the first nine
months of 2016 compared to $1.79 billion in the first nine months of 2015. The increase in capital expenditures is
primarily the result of the increase in cash spent on the capacity expansion projects in the first nine months of 2016
compared to the prior year comparable period.

Projected Capital Spending

We expect capital expenditures in 2016 to be approximately $2.3 billion, including approximately $1.8 billion for the
capacity expansion projects and $450 million to $475 million of sustaining and other capital expenditures. Planned
capital expenditures are subject to change due to delays in regulatory approvals or permitting, unanticipated increases
in cost, changes in scope and completion time, performance of third parties, adverse weather, defects in materials and
workmanship, labor or material shortages, transportation constraints, acceleration or delays in the timing of the work
and other unforeseen difficulties.

Realization of Current Year Tax Assets Resulting From Bonus Depreciation

The passage of the Protecting Americans from Tax Hikes (PATH) Act of 2015 permits bonus depreciation on certain
eligible capital additions in the year the assets are placed in service. Under the provisions of the act, eligible capital
additions will be subject to 50% bonus depreciation in the year the asset is placed in service. A significant portion of
the capital assets that are being constructed as part of the Donaldsonville, Louisiana and Port Neal, lowa expansion
projects are expected to qualify for 50% bonus depreciation. Given the size of the bonus depreciation tax deduction,
we expect to generate a substantial federal tax loss in 2016. We intend to file a claim to carry back the current year
federal tax loss to prior income tax years and receive a refund of federal taxes paid in those prior years. As of
September 30, 2016, we have prepaid income taxes in the amount of $830 million. This includes approximately $760
million from the carry back of certain U.S. tax losses from the current year to prior tax periods. The amount of the tax
loss carryback could be impacted by the timing of the completion of certain capital projects before the end of 2016,
including the completion of the Port Neal capacity expansion project. To the extent these projects are not completed
prior to the end of 2016 our prepaid income tax amount could be reduced.

Debt

Revolving Credit Agreement

We have a senior unsecured revolving credit agreement (as amended, including by an amendment effective July 29,
2016 that we refer to as the July 2016 Credit Agreement Amendment, the Revolving Credit Agreement) providing for
a revolving credit facility of up to $1.5 billion (reflecting a reduction from $2.0 billion effected by the July 2016
Credit Agreement Amendment) with a maturity of September 18, 2020. The Revolving Credit Agreement includes a
letter of credit sub-limit of $125 million (reflecting a reduction from $175 million effected by the July 2016 Credit
Agreement Amendment).

Borrowings under the Revolving Credit Agreement may be used for working capital and general corporate purposes.
CF Industries is a borrower, and CF Industries and CF Holdings are guarantors, under the Revolving Credit
Agreement. CF Industries may designate as borrowers one or more wholly owned subsidiaries that are organized in
the United States or any state thereof, the District of Columbia, England and Wales or the Netherlands.

Borrowings under the Revolving Credit Agreement may be denominated in dollars, Canadian dollars, euro and
sterling, and bear interest at a per annum rate equal to an applicable eurocurrency rate or base rate plus, in either case,
a specified margin, and the borrowers are required to pay an undrawn commitment fee on the undrawn portion of the
commitments under the Revolving Credit Agreement and customary letter of credit fees. The specified margin and the
amount of the commitment fee depend on CF Holdings’ credit rating at the time.

Certain of CF Holdings” wholly owned U.S. subsidiaries will be required to become guarantors of the obligations
under the Revolving Credit Agreement if (i) such subsidiaries guarantee other debt for borrowed money (subject to
specified exceptions) of CF Holdings or CF Industries in an aggregate principal amount in excess of $500 million or
(ii) such subsidiaries are borrowers under, issuers of, or guarantors of specified debt obligations of CF Holdings or CF
Industries.
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The Revolving Credit Agreement contains customary representations and warranties and covenants for a financing of
this type, including two financial maintenance covenants:

arequirement that the interest coverage ratio (as defined in the Revolving Credit Agreement) as of the last day of any
fiscal quarter not be less than 2.75 to 1.00 and
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a requirement that the total leverage ratio (as defined in the Revolving Credit Agreement) as of the last day of any
fiscal quarter not be greater than:

5.25 to 1.00 for the quarters ending September 30, 2016, December 31, 2016 and March 31, 2017;

5.00 to 1.00 for the quarter ending June 30, 2017;

4.75 to 1.00 for the quarter ending September 30, 2017;

4.00 to 1.00 for the quarter ending December 31, 2017; and

3.75 to 1.00 for the quarters ending after December 31, 2017.

Immediately prior to the July 2016 Credit Agreement Amendment, the Revolving Credit Agreement had required that
the total leverage ratio as of the last day of any fiscal quarter not be greater than 3.75 to 1.00 for all periods. As of
September 30, 2016, we were in compliance with all covenants under the Revolving Credit Agreement.

The Revolving Credit Agreement contains events of default (with notice requirements and cure periods, as applicable)
customary for a financing of this type, including, but not limited to, non-payment of principal, interest or fees;
inaccuracy of representations and warranties in any material respect; and failure to comply with specified covenants.
Upon the occurrence and during the continuance of an event of default under the Revolving Credit Agreement and
after any applicable cure period, subject to specified exceptions, the administrative agent may, and at the request of
the requisite lenders is required to, accelerate the loans under the Revolving Credit Agreement or terminate the lenders’
commitments under the Revolving Credit Agreement.

As of September 30, 2016, we had excess borrowing capacity under the Revolving Credit Agreement of $1,495
million (net of outstanding letters of credit of $5 million). There were no borrowings outstanding under the Revolving
Credit Agreement as of September 30, 2016 or December 31, 2015. Maximum borrowings outstanding under the
Revolving Credit Agreement during the nine months ended September 30, 2016 were $150 million. The
weighted-average annual interest rate of borrowings under the Revolving Credit Agreement during the nine months
ended September 30, 2016 was 1.85%. Maximum borrowings under the Revolving Credit Agreement during the nine
months ended September 30, 2015, were $367 million with a weighted-average annual interest rate of 1.47%.

On October 31, 2016, CF Holdings and CF Industries entered into Amendment No. 3 to the Third Amended and
Restated Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as of October 31, 2016 (the Revolver Amendment), with the
administrative agent and certain of the lenders and issuing banks under the Revolving Credit Agreement in connection
with proposed modifications (the Proposed Modifications) to the Revolving Credit Agreement. The Revolving Credit
Agreement, as amended after giving effect to the Proposed Modifications, is referred to herein as the Amended
Revolving Credit Agreement.

Under the terms of the Revolver Amendment, the effectiveness of the Proposed Modifications and the Amended
Revolving Credit Agreement is subject only to the satisfaction of specified conditions set forth in the Revolver
Amendment (the Modification Effectiveness Conditions). The Modification Effectiveness Conditions include, but are
not limited to, (i) the delivery of specified documents and opinions to the administrative agent, (ii) the payment of
accrued and unpaid interest and specified fees and expenses in connection with the Proposed Modifications, (iii) the
reduction of the lenders’ commitments under the Revolving Credit Agreement from $1.5 billion to $750 million and
(iv) prior to or substantially concurrently with the effectiveness of the Proposed Modifications, the repayment in full
of the Private Senior Notes.

The borrowers and guarantors under the Amended Revolving Credit Agreement, which will initially comprise CF
Holdings, CF Industries and CF Holdings’” wholly owned subsidiaries CF Industries Enterprises, Inc. (CF Enterprises)
and CF Industries Sales, LLC (CF Sales), are referred to together herein as the Loan Parties. Upon the effectiveness of
the Proposed Modifications, CF Enterprises and CF Sales would guarantee the obligations of the Loan Parties under
the Amended Revolving Credit Agreement. CF Holdings and CF Industries guarantee the obligations of the Loan
Parties under the Revolving Credit Agreement and would continue to guarantee the obligations of the Loan Parties
under the Amended Revolving Credit Agreement. Subject to specified exceptions, the Amended Revolving Credit
Agreement would require that each direct or indirect domestic subsidiary of CF Holdings that guarantees debt for
borrowed money of any Loan Party in excess of $150 million become a guarantor under the Amended Revolving
Credit Agreement. Subject to specified exceptions, the Amended Revolving Credit Agreement would require a grant
of a first priority security interest in substantially all of the assets of the Loan Parties, including a pledge by CF Sales
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of its equity interests in CF Industries Nitrogen, LLC and mortgages over certain material fee-owned domestic real
properties, to secure the obligations of the Loan Parties thereunder.

In addition to the obligations under the Amended Revolving Credit Agreement, the Loan Parties would also guarantee
the obligations under any (i) letter of credit facilities, letter of credit reimbursement agreements, letters of credit,
letters of guaranty, surety bonds or similar arrangements in an aggregate amount up to $300 million and (ii) interest
rate or other hedging
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arrangements, in each case between CF Holdings or any of its subsidiaries, on the one hand, and any person that is a
lender or the administrative agent under the Amended Revolving Credit Agreement or an affiliate of such person, on
the other hand, that are designated by CF Industries as Secured Bilateral LC Facilities or Secured Swap Agreements
(each as defined in the Amended Revolving Credit Agreement), as applicable, pursuant to the terms of the Amended
Revolving Credit Agreement (such additional obligations, the Additional Guaranteed Obligations). Obligations under
Secured Bilateral LC Facilities in an aggregate amount up to $300 million and obligations under Secured Swap
Agreements would be secured by the same security interest that secures the obligations under the Amended Revolving
Credit Agreement. As compared to the Revolving Credit Agreement, the Amended Revolving Credit Agreement
would include modified fees on undrawn commitments and an increased margin applicable to borrowings.

In addition to the negative covenants contained in the Revolving Credit Agreement, the Amended Revolving Credit
Agreement would limit the ability of CF Holdings and its subsidiaries to incur debt, grant liens, pay dividends,
voluntarily prepay certain debt, make investments and dispose of assets, in each case, subject to specified exceptions
(such limitations, the Additional Negative Covenants). The Proposed Modifications would replace the financial
covenants applicable to CF Holdings and its subsidiaries in the Revolving Credit Agreement with covenants (the New
Financial Covenants) that (i) would restrict the ratio of total secured debt to EBITDA (as defined in the Amended
Revolving Credit Agreement) for the period of four consecutive fiscal quarters most recently ended to a maximum of
3.75:1.00, (ii) would require the ratio of EBITDA for the period of four consecutive fiscal quarters most recently
ended to consolidated interest expense for the period of four consecutive fiscal quarters most recently ended to be a
minimum of 1.20:1.00 for the fiscal quarters ending on or prior to December 31, 2018, and 1.50:1.00 thereafter, and
(iii) would require the ratio of total debt to total capitalization as of the last day of any fiscal quarter to be less than or
equal to 0.60:1.00.

Under the Amended Revolving Credit Agreement, if on any date certain conditions were met, including (i) an absence
of an event of default under the Amended Revolving Credit Agreement, (ii) the receipt of an investment grade
corporate rating for CF Holdings from two of three selected ratings agencies and (iii) the ratio of CF Holdings’ total
net debt to EBITDA for the period of four consecutive fiscal quarters most recently ended being less than 3.75:1.00,
CF Industries would be able to, at its option, choose to (w) suspend the Additional Negative Covenants, (x) replace
the New Financial Covenants with covenants requiring the ratio of total net debt to EBITDA for the period of four
fiscal consecutive quarters most recently ended to be less than or equal to 3.75:1.00 and the ratio of EBITDA for the
period of four consecutive fiscal quarters most recently ended to consolidated interest expense for the period of four
consecutive fiscal quarters most recently ended to be not less than 2.75:1.00, (y) release the collateral securing the
obligations under the Amended Revolving Credit Agreement and (z) release the guarantees supporting, and the
collateral securing, the Secured Bilateral LC Facilities and the Secured Swap Agreements. Such a choice by CF
Industries would commence a “Covenant Suspension Period” that would expire upon the Company’s no longer having an
investment grade corporate rating from two of three selected rating agencies. Upon the expiration of a Covenant
Suspension Period, the Additional Negative Covenants and the New Financial Covenants would be reinstated and the
Loan Parties party to the Amended Revolving Credit Agreement would be required to guarantee the Additional
Guaranteed Obligations and grant a first priority security interest in substantially all of each Loan Party’s assets,
including a pledge by CF Sales of its equity interests in CF Industries Nitrogen, LLC and mortgages over certain
material fee-owned domestic real properties, subject to certain exceptions, to secure the obligations under the
Amended Revolving Credit Agreement, the Secured Bilateral LC Facilities and the Secured Swap Agreements.
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Public Senior Notes and Private Senior Notes
Long-term debt presented on our consolidated balance sheets as of September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015
consisted of the following unsecured senior notes:

September 30, December 31,
2016 2015

Effective Interest Rate PrincipaCarrying  Principa irli)};lrr:tg
Outstandimgount () Outstanglfjg

(in millions)
Public Senior Notes:

6.875% due 2018 7.344% $800 $ 794 $800 $792
7.125% due 2020 7.529% 800 790 800 788
3.450% due 2023 3.562% 750 745 750 745
5.150% due 2034 5.279% 750 739 750 739
4.950% due 2043 5.031% 750 741 750 741
5.375% due 2044 5.465% 750 740 750 740
Private Senior Notes:

4.490% due 2022 4.664% 250 248 250 248
4.930% due 2025 5.061% 500 495 500 496
5.030% due 2027 5.145% 250 248 250 248
Total long-term debt $5,600 $ 5,540 $5,600 $ 5,537

Carrying amount is net of unamortized debt discount and deferred debt issuance costs. Total unamortized debt
() discount was $7 million as of both September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, and total deferred debt issuance
costs were $52 million and $56 million as of September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively.
In connection with our adoption of ASU No. 2015-03, Interest—Imputation of Interest (Subtopic 835-30):
Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs, carrying amounts as of December 31, 2015 have been
(2) retrospectively adjusted to include a direct deduction of deferred debt issuance costs of $56 million. Prior to the
adoption, these costs were included in other assets on our consolidated balance sheets. See Note 2—New Accounting
Standards to our unaudited interim consolidated financial statements included in Part I, Item 1 of this report for
additional information.
Public Senior Notes
Under the indentures (including the applicable supplemental indentures) governing the senior notes due 2018, 2020,
2023, 2034, 2043 and 2044 identified in the table above (the Public Senior Notes), each series of Public Senior Notes
is guaranteed by CF Holdings. Interest on the Public Senior Notes is paid semiannually, and the Public Senior Notes
are redeemable at our option, in whole at any time or in part from time to time, at specified make-whole redemption
prices. The indentures governing the Public Senior Notes contain customary events of default (including cross-default
triggered by acceleration of, or a principal payment default that is not cured within an applicable grace period under,
other debt having a principal amount of $150 million or more) and covenants that limit, among other things, the ability
of CF Holdings and its subsidiaries, including CF Industries, to incur liens on certain properties to secure debt.
If a Change of Control occurs together with a Ratings Downgrade (as both terms are defined under the indentures
governing the Public Senior Notes), CF Industries would be required to offer to repurchase each series of Public
Senior Notes at a price equal to 101% of the principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest. In addition, in
the event that a subsidiary of CF Holdings, other than CF Industries, becomes a borrower or a guarantor under the
Revolving Credit Agreement (or any renewal, replacement or refinancing thereof), such subsidiary would be required
to become a guarantor of the Public Senior Notes, provided that such requirement will no longer apply with respect to
the Public Senior Notes due in 2023, 2034, 2043 and 2044 following the repayment of the Public Senior Notes due in
2018 and 2020 or the subsidiaries of ours, other than CF Industries, otherwise becoming no longer subject to such a
requirement to guarantee the Public Senior Notes due in 2018 and 2020.
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Private Senior Notes
The senior notes due 2022, 2025 and 2027 (the Private Senior Notes), issued by CF Industries on September 24, 2015,

are governed by the terms of a note purchase agreement (as amended, including by an amendment effective September
7,2016 that
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we refer to as the September 2016 NPA Amendment, the Note Purchase Agreement). Interest on the Private Senior
Notes is payable semiannually on April 15 and October 15. The Private Senior Notes are guaranteed by CF Holdings.
All obligations under the Note Purchase Agreement are unsecured.

Under the terms of the Note Purchase Agreement, CF Industries may prepay at any time all, or from time to time any
part of, any series of the Private Senior Notes, in an amount not less than 5% of the aggregate principal amount of
such series of the Private Senior Notes then outstanding in the case of a partial prepayment, at 100% of the principal
amount so prepaid plus a make-whole amount determined as specified in the Note Purchase Agreement. In the event
of a Change in Control (as defined in the Note Purchase Agreement), each holder of the Private Senior Notes may
require CF Industries to prepay the entire unpaid principal amount of the Private Senior Notes held by such holder at a
price equal to 100% of the principal amount of such Private Senior Notes together with accrued and unpaid interest
thereon, but without any make-whole amount or other premium.

The Note Purchase Agreement contains customary representations and warranties and covenants for a financing of
this type, including two financial maintenance covenants:

arequirement that the interest coverage ratio (as defined in the Note Purchase Agreement) as of the last day of any
fiscal quarter not be less than 2.75 to 1.00 and

arequirement that the total leverage ratio (as defined in the Note Purchase Agreement) as of the last day of any fiscal
quarter not be greater than:

5.25 to 1.00 for the quarters ending September 30, 2016, December 31, 2016 and March 31, 2017;

5.00 to 1.00 for the quarter ending June 30, 2017;

4.75 to 1.00 for the quarter ending September 30, 2017;

4.00 to 1.00 for the quarter ending December 31, 2017; and

3.75 to 1.00 for the quarters ending after December 31, 2017.

Immediately prior to the September 2016 NPA Amendment, the Note Purchase Agreement had required that the total
leverage ratio as of the last day of any fiscal quarter not be greater than 3.75 to 1.00 for all periods. As of

September 30, 2016, we were in compliance with all covenants under the Note Purchase Agreement.

The Note Purchase Agreement provides for a fee (the Elevated Leverage Ratio Fee) to be paid by CF Industries to the
holders of the Private Senior Notes with respect to each quarter ending on or prior to December 31, 2017 for which
the total leverage ratio is greater than 3.75 to 1.00 as follows: if the total leverage ratio for the applicable quarter is
greater than 3.75 to 1.00 but less than or equal to 4.50 to 1.00, the Elevated Leverage Ratio Fee for that quarter will be
0.125% of the aggregate outstanding principal amount of the Private Senior Notes; and if the total leverage ratio for
the applicable quarter is greater than 4.50 to 1.00, the Elevated Leverage Ratio Fee will be 0.25% of the aggregate
outstanding principal amount of the Private Senior Notes. For the quarter ended September 30, 2016, we did not incur
this fee as our total leverage ratio was less than 3:75 to 1.00.

The Note Purchase Agreement requires that CF Industries, beginning December 31, 2016, obtain and maintain a credit
rating with respect to the Private Senior Notes. If the rating so requested and obtained by CF Industries is not
investment grade as of any interest payment date with respect to the Private Senior Notes prior to the later of April 15,
2018 or the first interest payment date thereafter on which the rating requested and obtained by CF Industries is
investment grade, CF Industries will be required to pay holders of the Private Senior Notes a fee of 0.75% of the
aggregate outstanding principal amount of the Private Senior Notes.

The Note Purchase Agreement includes a most favored lender provision under which the financial covenants in the
Note Purchase Agreement would generally incorporate automatically any changes to the analogous financial
covenants in the Revolving Credit Agreement (or any amendment or replacement of that agreement) made until the
first date after March 31, 2018 on which the requisite credit rating with respect to the Private Senior Notes is
investment grade and CF Industries is in compliance with the financial covenants in the Note Purchase Agreement, if
those changes as so incorporated would be beneficial to the holders of the Private Senior Notes.
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The Note Purchase Agreement contains events of default (with notice requirements and cure periods, as applicable)
customary for a financing of this type, including, but not limited to, non-payment of principal, make-whole amounts,
or interest; inaccuracy of representations and warranties in any material respect; and failure to comply with specified
covenants. Upon the occurrence and during the continuance of an event of default under the Note Purchase Agreement
and after any applicable cure period, subject to specified exceptions, the holder or holders of more than 50% in
principal amount of the Private Senior Notes outstanding may declare all the Private Senior Notes then outstanding
due and payable.

We intend to prepay in full the Private Senior Notes during the fourth quarter of 2016.

Bridge Credit Agreement

On September 18, 2015, in connection with our proposed combination with certain businesses of OCI, CF Holdings
and CF Industries entered into a senior unsecured 364-Day Bridge Credit Agreement (as amended, the Bridge Credit
Agreement). Upon the termination of the Combination Agreement on May 22, 2016, the lenders’ commitments under
the Bridge Credit Agreement terminated automatically. There were no borrowings under the Bridge Credit
Agreement. See Note 3—Acquisitions and Note 11—Interest Expense to our unaudited interim consolidated financial
statements included in Part I, Item 1 of this report for additional information.

Forward Sales and Customer Advances

We offer our customers the opportunity to purchase products from us on a forward basis at prices and on delivery
dates we propose. Therefore, our reported fertilizer selling prices and margins may differ from market spot prices and
margins available at the time of shipment.

Customer advances, which typically represent a portion of the contract's sales value, are received shortly after the
contract is executed, with any remaining unpaid amount generally being collected by the time the product is shipped,
thereby reducing or eliminating the accounts receivable related to such sales. Any cash payments received in advance
from customers in connection with forward sales contracts are reflected on our consolidated balance sheets as a
current liability until related orders are shipped and revenue is recognized. As of September 30, 2016 and

December 31, 2015, we had $86 million and $162 million, respectively, in customer advances on our consolidated
balance sheets.

While customer advances are generally a significant source of liquidity, the level of forward sales contracts is affected
by many factors including current market conditions and our customers' outlook on future market fundamentals.
During periods of declining prices, such as the current environment, customers tend to delay purchasing fertilizer in
anticipation that prices in the future will be lower than current prices. If the level of sales under our forward sales
programs were to decrease in the future, our cash received from customer advances would likely decrease and our
accounts receivable balances would likely increase. Additionally, borrowing under our Revolving Credit Agreement
could become necessary. Due to the volatility inherent in our business and changing customer expectations, we cannot
estimate the amount of future forward sales activity.

Under our forward sales programs, a customer may delay delivery of an order due to weather conditions or other
factors. These delays generally subject the customer to potential charges for storage or may be grounds for termination
of the contract by us. Such a delay in scheduled shipment or termination of a forward sales contract due to a
customer's inability or unwillingness to perform may negatively impact our reported sales.

Derivative Financial Instruments

We use derivative financial instruments to reduce our exposure to changes in prices for natural gas that will be
purchased in the future. Natural gas is the largest and most volatile component of our manufacturing cost for
nitrogen-based fertilizers. We also use derivative financial instruments to reduce our exposure to changes in foreign
currency exchange rates. Because we use derivative instruments, volatility in reported quarterly earnings can result
from the unrealized mark-to-market adjustments in the value of the derivatives.

Derivatives expose us to counterparties and the risks associated with their ability to meet the terms of the contracts.
For derivatives that are in net asset positions, we are exposed to credit loss from nonperformance by the
counterparties. We control our credit risk through the use of multiple counterparties that are multinational commercial
banks, other major financial institutions or large energy companies, and, in most cases, the use of International Swaps
and Derivative Association (ISDA) master netting arrangements.
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The ISDA master netting arrangements for most of our derivative instruments contain credit-risk-related contingent
features, such as cross default provisions and credit support requirements. In the event of certain defaults or a credit
ratings downgrade, our counterparty may request early termination and net settlement of certain derivative trades or
may require us to collateralize derivatives in a net liability position.

As of September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the aggregate fair value of the derivative instruments with
credit-risk-related contingent features in net liability positions was $43 million and $211 million, respectively, which
also approximates the fair value of the maximum amount of additional collateral that would need to be posted or
assets needed to settle the obligations if the credit-risk-related contingent features were triggered at the reporting
dates. As of September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, we had open natural gas derivative contracts for

247.2 million MMBtus and 431.5 million MMBtus, respectively. At both September 30, 2016 and December 31,
2015, we had no cash collateral on deposit with counterparties for derivative contracts.

As of September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the notional amount of our open foreign currency derivatives was
€50 million and €89 million, respectively. None of these open foreign currency derivatives were designated as hedging
instruments for accounting purposes.

Embedded Derivative Liability

Under the terms of our strategic venture with CHS, if our credit rating is reduced below certain levels by two of three
specified credit ratings agencies, we are required to make a non-refundable yearly payment of $5 million to CHS. The
payment would continue on a yearly basis until the earlier of the date that our credit rating is upgraded to or above
certain levels by two of the three specified credit ratings agencies or February 1, 2026. On February 1, 2016, we
recognized this term of the strategic venture as an embedded derivative and its value of $8 million was included in
other liabilities on our consolidated balance sheet. See Note 14—Noncontrolling Interests to our unaudited interim
consolidated financial statements included in Part I, Item 1 of this report for additional information.

During the three months ended September 30, 2016, we recorded an adjustment to increase the value of the embedded
derivative liability by $22 million to $30 million to reflect our credit evaluation. The inputs into the fair value
measurement include the probability of future upgrades and downgrades of the Company’s credit rating based on
historical credit rate movements of other public companies and the discount rates to be applied to potential annual
payments based on applicable credit spreads of other public companies at different credit rating levels. The $22
million charge to reflect the change in fair value is included in other operating—net in our consolidated statements of
operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016.

Magellan Ammonia Pipeline Outage

We utilize an ammonia pipeline owned and operated by Magellan Midstream Partners L.P. (Magellan) to transport
ammonia from our Verdigris, Oklahoma, production complex to certain of our distribution facilities and customers. In
October 2016, an ammonia release from the Magellan pipeline was discovered that resulted in the complete shutdown
of the pipeline until such repairs can be made as are required by regulators. We have alternative barge, rail and truck
shipping options available to us to ship ammonia, but each option will result in increased shipping costs as compared
to utilization of the Magellan pipeline. We cannot estimate at this time the duration of the pipeline shutdown or its
potential financial impact on us.

Defined Benefit Pension Plans

We contributed $17 million to our pension plans during the nine months ended September 30, 2016. We expect to
contribute approximately $6 million to our pension plans over the remainder of 2016.

Distribution on Noncontrolling Interest in CFN

In the third quarter of 2016, the CFN Board of Managers approved semi-annual distribution payments in accordance
with the Second Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of CEN. In August 2016, CFN
distributed a total of $79 million to CHS for the distribution period ended June 30, 2016.
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Cash Flows

Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities during the first nine months of 2016 was $591 million as compared to
$1.07 billion in the first nine months of 2015. The $483 million decrease resulted from lower net earnings during the
first nine months of 2016 and working capital changes. The working capital changes include lower amounts paid for
income taxes and higher tax refunds received in the first nine months of 2016 compared to the same period of 2015.
Additionally there was a greater reduction in accounts receivable levels and lower amounts spent on inventory during
the first nine months of 2016 as compared to the first nine months of 2015. Unfavorable changes in working capital
also occurred including a lower level of customer advances in 2016 due to customers’ hesitancy to enter into prepaid
contracts in the current fertilizer price environment.

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities was $1.79 billion in the first nine months of 2016 as compared to $2.30 billion in
the first nine months of 2015. The $508 million decrease is primarily due to the 2015 acquisition of the remaining
50% equity interest in CF Fertilisers UK not previously owned by us for a net cash payment of $554 million, which
was net of cash acquired of $19 million. This decrease was partly offset by the increase in capital expenditures
primarily related to the capacity expansion projects in Donaldsonville, Louisiana and Port Neal, lowa. During the first
nine months of 2016, capital expenditures totaled $1.82 billion compared to $1.79 billion in the first nine months of
2015.

Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities was $2.47 billion in the first nine months of 2016 compared to $179 million
in the same period of 2015. In the first nine months of 2016, CHS purchased a minority equity interest in CFN for
$2.8 billion. No share repurchases were made during the first nine months of 2016 compared to 8.9 million shares
repurchased for $556 million in cash during the first nine months of 2015. Dividends paid on common stock were
$209 million and $212 million in the first nine months of 2016 and 2015, respectively. In the first nine months of
2015, we issued the Private Senior Notes and received proceeds of approximately $1.0 billion.

Contractual Obligations

The following is a summary of our contractual obligations as of September 30, 2016:

Remainder After

of 2017 2018 2019 2020 2020 Total

2016

(in millions)
Debt
Long-term debt(!) $— $— $800 $— $800 $4,000 $5,600
Interest payments on long-term debt() 112 305 277 250 221 2,603 3,768
Other Obligations
Operating leases 21 94 77 62 49 127 430
Equipment purchases and plant improvements 93 64 6 5 — — 168
Capacity expansion projects? 348 — — — - — 348
Transportation® 16 11 8 7 3 — 45
Purchase obligations®) 271 537 274 217 218 242 1,759
Contributions to pension plans® 6 — — — - — 6
Net operating loss settlement(”) 111 — — - — 22
Total®©) $878 $1,022 $1,442 $541 $1,291 $6,972 $12,146

(1) Based on debt balances, before discounts and offering expenses, and on interest rates as of September 30, 2016.
Represents contractual obligations related to the Donaldsonville, Louisiana and Port Neal, Iowa capacity expansion

«2) projects. Contractual commitments do not include any amounts related to our foreign currency derivatives. For
further information, see our previous discussion under Capacity Expansion Projects and Restricted Cash in the
Liquidity and Capital Resources section.
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Includes anticipated expenditures under certain contracts to transport finished products to and from our facilities.

3y The majority of these arrangements allow for reductions in usage based on our actual operating rates. Amounts are
based on projected normal operating rates and contracted or current spot prices, where applicable, as of
September 30, 2016, and actual operating rates and prices may differ.

@ Includes minimum commitments to purchase natural gas based on prevailing market-based forward prices at
September 30, 2016. Purchase obligations do not include any amounts related to our natural gas derivatives.
Includes a commitment to purchase ammonia from PLNL at market-based prices under an agreement that expires

() in 2018. The annual commitment based on market prices at September 30, 2016 is $54 million with a total
remaining commitment of $109 million.

Represents the contributions we expect to make to our pension plans during the remainder of 2016. Our pension
©) funding policy is to contribute amounts sufficient to meet minimum legal funding requirements plus discretionary
amounts that we may deem to be appropriate.

(7y Represents the amounts we expect to pay to our pre-IPO owners in conjunction with the amended Net Operating
Loss Agreement and the 2013 settlement with the Internal Revenue Service.

®) Excludes $165 million of unrecognized tax benefits due to the uncertainty in the timing of potential tax payments.

©® Excludes $11 million of environmental remediation liabilities.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have operating leases for certain property and equipment under various noncancelable agreements, the most
significant of which are rail car leases and barge tow charters for the transportation of fertilizer. The rail car leases
currently have minimum terms ranging from one to eleven years and the barge charter commitments currently have
terms ranging from two to seven years. We also have terminal and warehouse storage agreements for our distribution
system, some of which contain minimum throughput requirements. The storage agreements contain minimum terms
ranging from one to five years and commonly contain automatic annual renewal provisions thereafter unless canceled
by either party. See Note 23—Leases in the notes to our consolidated financial statements included in our 2015 Annual
Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on February 25, 2016 for additional information concerning leases.

We do not have any other off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a material current
or future effect on our financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations,
liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our products are global commodities and are subject to price competition. The customers for our products make their
purchasing decisions principally on the basis of delivered price and, to a lesser extent, on customer service and
product quality. The selling prices of our products fluctuate in response to global market conditions and changes in
supply and demand. In the current environment, global nitrogen fertilizer supply has increased faster than global
nitrogen fertilizer demand, creating the current global oversupply of nitrogen fertilizer and leading to lower nitrogen
fertilizer selling prices. In addition, lower global production costs, driven by lower feedstock costs and foreign
exchange rates, and reduced ocean freight costs have further contributed to the lower priced environment. We expect
the lower priced environment to continue until global supply and demand become more balanced through a
combination of continued demand growth and supply reductions as producers respond to lower realized margins by
taking higher cost production facilities off line.

We review the carrying value of our goodwill, definite lived intangible assets, and investments in affiliates to assess
recoverability as part of our annual impairment review in the fourth quarter of each year. As part of the assessment
process when performing impairment tests, we estimate many factors including future sales volume, selling prices,
raw materials costs, operating rates, operating expenses, inflation, discount rates, exchange rates, tax rates and capital
spending. The assumptions we make are material estimates that are used in the impairment testing. The current
oversupply in the nitrogen fertilizer markets has led to a decline in selling prices, gross margin and profitability. These
factors, as well as others, may have contributed to a potential decline in value for our reporting units that could result
in an impairment charge.

Point Lisas Nitrogen Limited (PLNL) is our joint venture investment in the Republic of Trinidad and Tobago and
operates an ammonia plant that relies on natural gas supplied, under a Gas Sales Contract (the NGC Contract), by The
National Gas Company of Trinidad and Tobago Limited (NGC). The joint venture is accounted for under the equity
method. The financial results are included in the information in Note 8—Equity Method Investments to our unaudited
interim consolidated financial statements included in Part I, Item 1 of this report. The joint venture has experienced
curtailments in the supply of natural gas from NGC, which has reduced the ammonia production at PLNL. NGC has
communicated to PLNL that it does not recognize the joint venture’s exercise of its option to renew the NGC Contract
for an additional five-year term beyond its current termination date in September 2018, and that any NGC
commitment to supply gas beyond 2018 will need to be based on new agreements regarding volume and price. PLNL
has initiated arbitration proceedings against NGC and asserted claims in connection with NGC’s failure to supply the
contracted quantities of natural gas, and its refusal to recognize the joint venture’s exercise of its option to extend the
NGC Contract. PLNL is seeking declaratory and injunctive relief, as well as damages for past and ongoing
curtailments. Although the joint venture believes its claims against NGC to be meritorious, it is not possible to predict
the outcome of the arbitration. The future availability of natural gas and the price of such gas are unclear at the present
time and represent significant assumptions in the operations of the joint venture, including the estimates that are used
to determine the useful lives of fixed assets and the assumptions in the discounted cash flow models utilized for
recoverability and impairment testing. The current carrying value of the equity method investment in PLNL at
September 30, 2016 is approximately $287 million.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements
See Note 2—New Accounting Standards to our unaudited interim consolidated financial statements included in Part I,
Item 1 of this report for a discussion of recent accounting pronouncements.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

From time to time, in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q as well as in other written reports and oral statements, we
make forward-looking statements that are not statements of historical fact and may involve a number of risks and
uncertainties. These statements relate to analyses and other information that are based on forecasts of future results
and estimates of amounts not yet determinable. These statements may also relate to our prospects, future
developments and business strategies. We have used the words "anticipate,” "believe," "could," "estimate," "expect,"
"intend," "may," "plan," "predict," "project," "will," or "would" and similar terms and phrases, including references to
assumptions, to identify forward-looking statements in this document. These forward-looking statements are made
based on currently available competitive, financial and economic data, our current expectations, estimates, forecasts
and projections about the industries and markets in which we operate and management's beliefs and assumptions
concerning future events affecting us. These statements are not guarantees of future performance and are subject to
risks, uncertainties and factors relating to our operations and business environment, all of which are difficult to predict
and many of which are beyond our control. Therefore, our actual results may differ materially from what is expressed
in or implied by any forward-looking statements. We do not undertake any responsibility to release publicly any
revisions to these forward-looking statements to take into account events or circumstances that occur after the date of
this document. Additionally, we do not undertake any responsibility to provide updates regarding the occurrence of
any unanticipated events which may cause actual results to differ from those expressed or implied by the
forward-looking statements contained in this document.

Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements are
disclosed under "Risk Factors" in Item 1A in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. Such factors include, among others:
the cyclical nature of our business and the agricultural sector;

the global commodity nature of our fertilizer products, the impact of global supply and demand on our selling prices,
and the intense global competition from other fertilizer producers;

conditions in the U.S. and European agricultural industry;

the volatility of natural gas prices in North America and Europe;

difficulties in securing the supply and delivery of raw materials, increases in their costs or delays or interruptions in
their delivery;

reliance on third party providers of transportation services and equipment;

the significant risks and hazards involved in producing and handling our products against which we may not be fully
insured;

our ability to manage our indebtedness;

risks associated with our incurrence of additional indebtedness;

our ability to complete an issuance of new long-term debt on terms acceptable to us or at all;

our ability to maintain compliance with covenants under the agreements governing our indebtedness;

downgrades of our credit ratings;

risks associated with cyber security;

sveather conditions;

our ability to complete our production capacity expansion projects on schedule as planned, on budget or at all;

risks associated with our ability to utilize our tax net operating losses and other tax assets, including the risk that the
use of such tax benefits is limited by an "ownership change;"

risks associated with expansions of our business, including unanticipated adverse consequences and the significant
resources that could be required;

potential liabilities and expenditures related to environmental, health and safety laws and regulations and permitting
requirements;

future regulatory restrictions and requirements related to greenhouse gas emissions;

the seasonality of the fertilizer business;

the impact of changing market conditions on our forward sales programs;

risks involving derivatives and the effectiveness of our risk measurement and hedging activities;

our reliance on a limited number of key facilities;

non non

nn nn nan
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risks associated with the operation or management of the CHS strategic venture, risks and uncertainties
relating to the market prices of the fertilizer products that are the subject of our supply agreement with CHS
over the life of the supply agreement, and the risk that any challenges related to the CHS strategic venture will
harm our other business relationships;

risks associated with our PLNL joint venture;

acts of terrorism and regulations to combat terrorism;

risks associated with international operations; and

deterioration of global market and economic conditions.
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

We are exposed to the impact of changes in commodity prices, interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates.
Commodity Prices

Our net sales, cash flows and estimates of future cash flows related to nitrogen-based fertilizers are sensitive to
changes in fertilizer prices as well as changes in the prices of natural gas and other raw materials unless these costs
have been fixed or hedged. A $1.00 per MMBtu change in the price of natural gas would change the cost to produce a
ton of ammonia, granular urea, UAN (32%), and AN by approximately $32, $22, $14 and $15, respectively.

Natural gas is the largest and most volatile component of the manufacturing cost for nitrogen-based fertilizers. We
manage the risk of changes in natural gas prices primarily with the use of derivative financial instruments. The
derivative instruments that we use for this purpose are primarily natural gas fixed price swaps and natural gas options.
These derivatives settle using primarily NYMEX futures price indexes, which represent the basis for fair value at any
given time. The contracts represent anticipated natural gas needs for future periods and settlements are scheduled to
coincide with anticipated natural gas purchases during those future periods. As of September 30, 2016, we have
natural gas derivative contracts covering periods through the end of 2018.

As of September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, we had open natural gas derivative contracts for 247.2 million
MMBtus and 431.5 million MMBtus, respectively. A $1.00 per MMBtu increase in the forward curve prices of natural
gas at September 30, 2016 would result in a favorable change in the fair value of these derivative positions of
approximately $222 million, and a $1.00 per MMBtu decrease in the forward curve prices of natural gas would
change their fair value unfavorably by approximately $222 million.

From time to time we may purchase nitrogen products on the open market to augment or replace production at our
facilities.

Interest Rate Fluctuations

As of September 30, 2016, we had nine series of senior notes totaling $5.54 billion outstanding with maturity dates of
May 1, 2018, May 1, 2020, October 15, 2022, June 1, 2023, October 15, 2025, October 15, 2027, March 15, 2034,
June 1, 2043 and March 15, 2044. The senior notes have fixed interest rates. The fair value of our senior notes
outstanding as of September 30, 2016 was approximately $5.81 billion.

Borrowings under the Revolving Credit Agreement bear a current market rate of interest and we are subject to interest
rate risk on such borrowings. Maximum borrowings outstanding under the Revolving Credit Agreement during the
nine months ended September 30, 2016 were $150 million. There were no borrowings under the Revolving Credit
Agreement during the nine months ended September 30, 2015 and no outstanding balances as of September 30, 2016
or December 31, 2015.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rates

We are directly exposed to changes in the value of the Canadian dollar, the British pound and the euro. Outside of the
transactions described below, we do not maintain any exchange rate derivatives or hedges related to these currencies.
Since the fourth quarter of 2012, we have entered into euro/U.S. dollar derivative hedging transactions related to the
euro-denominated construction costs associated with our capacity expansion projects at our Donaldsonville, Louisiana
and Port Neal, Iowa facilities. As of September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the notional amount of our open
foreign currency forward contracts was €50 million and €89 million, respectively. The fair value was a net unrealized
loss of $1 million as of September 30, 2016 and a net unrealized loss of less than $1 million as of December 31, 2015.
As of September 30, 2016, a 10% change in U.S. dollar/euro forward exchange rates would change the fair value of
these positions by $6 million.
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ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

(a) Disclosure Controls and Procedures. The Company's management, with the participation of the Company's
principal executive officer and principal financial officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of the Company's disclosure
controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act)) as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on such evaluation,
the Company's principal executive officer and principal financial officer have concluded that, as of the end of such
period, the Company's disclosure controls and procedures are effective in (i) ensuring that information required to be
disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms and (ii) ensuring that
information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is
accumulated and communicated to the Company's management, including the Company's principal executive officer
and principal financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

(b) Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. During the quarter ended September 30, 2016, we
implemented changes to the Company's internal control over financial reporting related to the implementation of a
new consolidations platform. There have been no other changes in the Company's internal control over financial
reporting (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) during the quarter ended
September 30, 2016 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company's internal
control over financial reporting.

PART II—OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

West Fertilizer Co.

On April 17, 2013, there was a fire and explosion at the West Fertilizer Co. fertilizer storage and distribution facility
in West, Texas. According to published reports, 15 people were killed and approximately 200 people were injured in
the incident, and the fire and explosion damaged or destroyed a number of homes and buildings around the facility.
Various subsidiaries of CF Holdings (the CF Entities) have been named as defendants along with other companies in
lawsuits filed in 2013, 2014 and 2015 in the District Court of McLennan County, Texas by the City of West,
individual residents of the County and other parties seeking recovery for damages allegedly sustained as a result of the
explosion. The cases have been consolidated for discovery and pretrial proceedings in the District Court of McLennan
County under the caption "In re: West Explosion Cases." The two-year statute of limitations expired on April 17,
2015. As of that date, over 400 plaintiffs had filed claims, including at least 9 entities, 325 individuals, and 80
insurance companies. Plaintiffs allege various theories of negligence, strict liability, and breach of warranty under
Texas law. Although we do not own or operate the facility or directly sell our products to West Fertilizer Co., products
that the CF Entities have manufactured and sold to others have been delivered to the facility and may have been stored
at the West facility at the time of the incident.

The Court granted in part and denied in part the CF Entities' Motions for Summary Judgment in August 2015.
Thirty-four cases have been resolved pursuant to confidential settlements fully funded by insurance. The remaining
cases are in various stages of discovery and pre-trial proceedings. The next group of cases is set for trial beginning on
January 9, 2017. While we believe we have strong legal and factual defenses and intend to continue defending the CF
Entities vigorously in the pending lawsuits, including in any appeals that may follow, we have concluded based on
continuing developments in the case that some loss is probable for a subset of the outstanding claims. We have made
an accrual for this subset of the outstanding claims, which is not material to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
Beyond the amounts accrued, the Company cannot provide a range of reasonably possible loss due to the lack of
damages discovery for the remaining claims and the uncertain nature of this litigation, including uncertainties around
the potential allocation of responsibility by a jury to other defendants or responsible third parties. The recognition of a
potential loss in the future in the West Fertilizer Co. litigation could negatively affect our results in the period of
recognition. However, based upon currently available information, including available insurance coverage, we do not
believe that this litigation will have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.

Yazoo City Clean Air Act
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On February 10, 2016, CF Industries Nitrogen, LLC (CFN), a subsidiary of CF Holdings, was orally informed by
representatives of the Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) of MDEQ’s intent to impose a civil
penalty of an amount exceeding $100,000 for alleged violations of certain fuel firing rate limits in the Company’s
Clean Air Act Title V Permit for the Yazoo City, Mississippi facility. Representatives of the Company attended an
administrative conference with MDEQ in early July 2016 to discuss MDEQ’s findings and calculation of the proposed
penalty. On September 23, 2016, the Company agreed to a settlement that will require it to pay $95,625 to resolve the
alleged violations. The Company expects to promptly finalize the terms of an Agreed Order with MDEQ that will
fully and finally resolve the alleged permit limit exceedances at issue in this matter.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS.

In addition to the other information contained herein and in our most recent periodic reports filed with the SEC,
including our Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on February 25, 2016, you should carefully consider the factors
discussed below before deciding to invest in any of our securities. These risks and uncertainties could materially and
adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Our business is cyclical, resulting in periods of industry oversupply during which our financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows tend to be negatively affected.

Historically, selling prices for our products have fluctuated in response to periodic changes in supply and demand
conditions. Demand is affected by planted acreage and application rates, driven by population growth, changes in
dietary habits and non-food usage of crops, such as the production of ethanol and other biofuels, among other things.
Supply is affected by available capacity and operating rates, raw material costs and availability, government policies
and global trade.

Periods of strong demand, high capacity utilization and increasing operating margins tend to stimulate global
investment in production capacity. The construction of new nitrogen fertilizer manufacturing capacity in the industry,
plus improvements to increase output from the existing production assets, increase nitrogen supply and affect the
supply demand balance. In recent years, fertilizer producers, including us, have built new production facilities or
expanded capacity of existing production assets, or announced plans to do so. In the current environment, global
nitrogen fertilizer supply has increased faster than global nitrogen fertilizer demand, creating a global nitrogen
fertilizer oversupply leading to lower nitrogen fertilizer selling prices. Lower global production costs driven by lower
feedstock costs and foreign exchange rate changes, and reduced ocean freight costs, have further contributed to the
lower priced environment.

Selling prices reached multi-year lows in the third quarter and first nine months of 2016. The average selling price for
our products in the third quarter of 2016 was $185 per ton compared to $289 per ton for the third quarter of 2015, a
decrease of 36%. The average selling price for our products in the first nine months of 2016 was $230 per ton
compared to $328 per ton for the first nine months of 2015, a decline of 30%.

Additional production capacity is expected to come on line over the next twelve months, including capacity from our
expansion projects which is expected to come fully on line by the end of 2016. We cannot predict the extent to which
the current oversupply environment, global or local economic and financial conditions or changes in such conditions,
or other factors may cause delays, cancellation or acceleration of other announced and/or ongoing projects.

We expect the lower priced environment to continue until global supply and demand become more balanced through a
combination of continued demand growth and supply reductions as producers respond to lower realized margins by
taking higher cost production facilities off line.

During periods of industry oversupply, our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows tend to be affected
negatively as the price at which we sell our products typically declines, resulting in possible reduced profit margins,
write-downs in the value of our inventory and temporary or permanent curtailments of production. Our financial
performance, credit ratings and the trading price for our common stock have been negatively impacted by the lower
selling prices resulting from the current global oversupply of nitrogen fertilizer. The period of time that these
conditions will persist and the degree to which they will impact our business, financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows is uncertain.

Our products are global commodities, and we face intense global competition from other fertilizer producers.

We are subject to intense price competition from our competitors. Most fertilizers are global commodities, with little
or no product differentiation, and customers make their purchasing decisions principally on the basis of delivered
price and to a lesser extent on customer service and product quality.

We compete with many producers, including state-owned and government-subsidized entities. Consolidation in the
industry has increased, and future consolidation is expected to further increase, the resources of several of our
competitors. For example, in September 2016, our competitors Agrium Inc. and Potash Corporation of Saskatchewan
Inc. announced plans to merge. Some of our competitors have greater total resources and are less dependent on
earnings from fertilizer sales, which make them less vulnerable to industry downturns and better positioned to pursue
new expansion and development opportunities. Furthermore, certain governments as owners of some of our
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competitors may be willing to accept lower prices and profitability on their products in order to support domestic
employment or other political or social goals. Our competitive position could suffer to the extent we are not able to
expand our own resources, either through investments in new or existing operations or through acquisitions, joint
ventures or partnerships.
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China, the world’s largest producer and consumer of nitrogen fertilizers, currently has significant capacity surplus and
many high cost plants. As a result, the domestic nitrogen industry in China is operating at low rates. If Chinese
government policy, devaluation of the Chinese renminbi or decreases in Chinese producers’ underlying costs such as
the price of Chinese coal encourage increased production capacity utilization, the resulting export volume could
adversely affect the balance between global supply and demand and may put downward pressure on global fertilizer
prices, which could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash

flows.

Our competitors in Russia and Ukraine have significant nitrogen fertilizer export capacity and continue to benefit
from non-market pricing of natural gas, which allows them to increase exports at aggressive prices, depending on
market conditions. U.S. antidumping measures on solid urea from Russia and Ukraine are due to be reviewed by
government agencies in the coming year and any revocation of such measures could lead to significant increases in
imports from these countries. The August 2016 revocation of U.S. antidumping measures on fertilizer grade
ammonium nitrate from Russia could also lead to increased Russian imports.

We also face competition from other fertilizer producers in the Middle East, Europe and Latin America, who,
depending on market conditions, fluctuating input prices, geographic location and freight economics, may take actions
at times with respect to price or selling volumes that adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows.

A decline in agricultural production or limitations on the use of our products for agricultural purposes could materially
adversely affect the market for our products.

Conditions in the U.S. agricultural industry significantly impact our operating results. Our operating results are also
affected by conditions in the European agricultural industry. The agricultural industries in the United States and
Europe can be affected by a number of factors, including weather patterns and field conditions, current and projected
grain inventories and prices, demand for agricultural products and governmental policies regarding trade in
agricultural products. These factors are outside of our control.

Governmental policies, including farm and biofuel subsidies and commodity support programs, as well as the prices
of fertilizer products, may also directly or indirectly influence the number of acres planted, the mix of crops planted
and the use of fertilizers for particular agricultural applications. Ethanol production in the United States contributes
significantly to corn demand, due in part to federal legislation mandating use of renewable fuels. An increase in
ethanol production has led to an increase in the amount of corn grown in the United States and to increased fertilizer
usage on both corn and other crops that have also benefited from improved farm economics. While the current
Renewable Fuel Standard (RFS) encourages continued high levels of corn-based ethanol production, a continuing
“food versus fuel” debate and other factors have resulted in calls to eliminate or reduce the renewable fuel mandate, or
to eliminate or reduce corn-based ethanol as part of the renewable fuel mandate. This could have an adverse effect on
corn-based ethanol production, planted corn acreage and fertilizer demand.

Developments in crop technology, such as nitrogen fixation, the conversion of atmospheric nitrogen into compounds
that plants can assimilate, could also reduce the use of chemical fertilizers and adversely affect the demand for our
products. In addition, from time to time various state legislatures have considered limitations on the use and
application of chemical fertilizers due to concerns about the impact of these products on the environment. Any
reduction in the demand for chemical fertilizer products, including any limitation on the use and application of
chemical fertilizer, could affect the demand for our products, which could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Our business is dependent on natural gas, the prices of which are subject to volatility.

Natural gas is the principal raw material used to produce nitrogen fertilizers. We use natural gas both as a chemical
feedstock and as a fuel to produce ammonia, granular urea, urea ammonium nitrate solution (UAN), ammonium
nitrate (AN) and other nitrogen products.

Because most of our nitrogen fertilizer manufacturing facilities are located in the United States and Canada, North
American natural gas comprises a significant portion of the total production cost of our products. The price of natural
gas in North America has been volatile in recent years. During the first nine months of 2016, the daily closing price at
the Henry Hub, the most heavily-traded natural gas pricing point in North America, reached a low of $1.49 per
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MMBtu on three consecutive days in March 2016 and a high of $3.14 per MMBtu on September 23, 2016. During the
three year period ended September 30, 2016, the daily closing price at the Henry Hub reached a low of $1.49 per
MMBtu on three consecutive days in March 2016 and a high of $7.94 per MMBtu on March 5, 2014.

We also have manufacturing facilities located in the United Kingdom. These facilities are subject to fluctuations
associated with the price of natural gas in Europe. The major natural gas trading point for the United Kingdom is the
National Balancing Point (NBP). During the first nine months of 2016, the daily closing price at NBP reached a low
of $2.80 per MMBtu on September 1, September 12 and September 14, 2016 and a high of $5.20 per MMBtu on June
6 and June 20, 2016.
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During the three year period ended September 30, 2016, the daily closing price at NBP reached a low of $2.80 per
MMBtu on September 1, September 12 and September 14, 2016 and a high of $11.90 per MMBtu on December 3,
2013.

Changes in the supply of and demand for natural gas can lead to periods of volatile natural gas prices. If high prices
were to occur during a period of low fertilizer selling prices, it could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

The price of natural gas in North America and worldwide has been volatile in recent years and has declined on
average due in part to the development of significant natural gas reserves, including shale gas, and the rapid
improvement in shale gas extraction techniques, such as hydraulic fracturing and horizontal drilling. Future
production of natural gas from shale formations could be reduced by regulatory changes that restrict drilling or
hydraulic fracturing or increase its cost or by reduction in oil exploration and development prompted by lower oil
prices and resulting in production of less associated gas. Additionally, increased demand for natural gas, particularly
in the Gulf Coast Region, due to increased industrial demand and increased natural gas exports could result in
increased natural gas prices. If such reduced production or increased demand were to occur, or if other developments
adversely impact the supply/demand balance for natural gas in the United States or elsewhere, natural gas prices could
rise, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows.

Our operations and those of our joint venture are dependent upon raw materials provided by third parties, and any
delay or interruption in the delivery of raw materials may adversely affect our business.

We and our joint venture use natural gas and other raw materials in the manufacture of fertilizers. We purchase the
natural gas and other raw materials from third party suppliers. Our natural gas is transported by pipeline to our
facilities and those of our joint venture by third party transportation providers or through the use of facilities owned by
third parties. Delays or interruptions in the delivery of natural gas or other raw materials may be caused by, among
other things, severe weather or natural disasters, unscheduled downtime, labor difficulties, insolvency of our suppliers
or their inability to meet existing contractual arrangements, deliberate sabotage and terrorist incidents, or mechanical
failures. Our joint venture, Point Lisas Nitrogen Limited (PLNL), has experienced numerous natural gas curtailments
as discussed in the risk factor below titled “We are exposed to risks associated with our joint venture.” In addition, the
transport of natural gas by pipeline is subject to additional risks, including delays or interruptions caused by capacity
constraints, leaks or ruptures. Any delay or interruption in the delivery of natural gas or other raw materials, even for a
limited period, could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows.

Our transportation and distribution activities rely on third party providers and are subject to environmental, safety and
regulatory oversight. This exposes us to risks and uncertainties beyond our control that may adversely affect our
operations and exposes us to additional liability.

We rely on railroad, truck, pipeline, river barge and ocean vessel companies to transport raw materials to our
manufacturing facilities, to coordinate and deliver finished products to our distribution system and to ship finished
products to our customers. We also lease rail cars in order to ship raw materials and finished products. These
transportation operations, equipment and services are subject to various hazards, including adverse operating
conditions on the inland waterway system, extreme weather conditions, system failures, work stoppages, delays,
accidents such as spills and derailments and other accidents and operating hazards. Additionally, due to the aging
infrastructure of certain bridges, roadways, rail lines, river locks, and equipment that our third party service providers
utilize, we may experience delays in both the receipt of raw materials or the shipment of finished product while
repairs, maintenance or replacement activities are conducted. Also, certain third party service providers, particularly
railroads, have experienced periodic service slowdowns due to capacity constraints in their systems which impact the
shipping times of our products.

These transportation operations, equipment and services are also subject to environmental, safety, and regulatory
oversight. Due to concerns related to accidents, discharges or other releases of hazardous substances, terrorism or the
potential use of fertilizers as explosives, governmental entities could implement new regulations affecting the
transportation of raw materials or finished products.
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If shipping of our products is delayed or we are unable to obtain raw materials as a result of these transportation
companies’ failure to operate properly, or if new and more stringent regulatory requirements are implemented affecting
transportation operations or equipment, or if there are significant increases in the cost of these services or equipment,
our revenues and cost of operations could be adversely affected. In addition, increases in our transportation costs, or
changes in such costs relative to transportation costs incurred by our competitors, could have a material adverse effect
on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.
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In the United States and Canada, the railroad industry continues various efforts to limit the railroads’ potential liability
stemming from the transportation of Toxic Inhalation Hazard materials, such as the anhydrous ammonia we transport
to and from our manufacturing and distribution facilities. For example, various railroads have implemented tariffs that
include provisions that purport to shift liability to shippers to the extent that liabilities arise from third parties with
insufficient resources. These initiatives could materially and adversely affect our operating expenses and potentially
our ability to transport anhydrous ammonia and increase our liability for releases of our anhydrous ammonia while in
the care, custody and control of the railroads, for which our insurance may be insufficient or unavailable. New
regulations also could be implemented affecting the equipment used to ship our raw materials or finished products.
Increases in transportation costs, or changes in such costs relative to transportation costs incurred by our competitors,
and any railroad industry initiatives that may impact our ability to transport our products, could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Our operations and the production and handling of our products involve significant risks and hazards. We are not fully
insured against all potential hazards and risks incident to our business. Therefore, our insurance coverage may not
adequately cover our losses.

Our operations are subject to hazards inherent in the manufacture, transportation, storage and distribution of chemical
products, including ammonia, which is highly toxic and corrosive. These hazards include: explosions; fires; severe
weather and natural disasters; train derailments, collisions, vessel groundings and other transportation and maritime
incidents; leaks and ruptures involving storage tanks, pipelines and rail cars; spills, discharges and releases of toxic or
hazardous substances or gases; deliberate sabotage and terrorist incidents; mechanical failures; unscheduled plant
downtime; labor difficulties and other risks. Some of these hazards can cause bodily injury and loss of life, severe
damage to or destruction of property and equipment and environmental damage, and may result in suspension of
operations and the imposition of civil or criminal penalties and liabilities.

We maintain property, business interruption, casualty and liability insurance policies, but we are not fully insured
against all potential hazards and risks incident to our business. If we were to incur significant liability for which we
were not fully insured, it could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows. We are subject to various self-retentions, deductibles and limits under these insurance
policies. The policies also contain exclusions and conditions that could have a material adverse impact on our ability
to receive indemnification thereunder. Our policies are generally renewed annually. As a result of market conditions,
our premiums, self-retentions and deductibles for certain insurance policies can increase substantially and, in some
instances, certain insurance may become unavailable or available only for reduced amounts of coverage. In addition,
significantly increased costs could lead us to decide to reduce, or possibly eliminate, coverage. There can be no
assurance that we will be able to buy and maintain insurance with adequate limits and reasonable pricing terms and
conditions.

In April 2013, there was a fire and explosion at the West Fertilizer Co. fertilizer storage and distribution facility in
West, Texas. According to published reports, 15 people were killed and approximately 200 people were injured in the
incident, and the fire and explosion damaged or destroyed a number of homes and buildings around the facility.
Various subsidiaries of CF Holdings, (the CF Entities) have been named as defendants along with other companies in
lawsuits filed in 2013, 2014 and 2015 in the District Court of McLennan County, Texas by the City of West,
individual residents of the County and other parties seeking recovery for damages allegedly sustained as a result of the
explosion. The cases have been consolidated for discovery and pretrial proceedings in the District Court of McLennan
County under the caption “In re: West Explosion Cases.” The two-year statute of limitations expired on April 17, 2015.
As of that date, over 400 plaintiffs had filed claims, including at least 9 entities, 325 individuals, and 80 insurance
companies. Plaintiffs allege various theories of negligence, strict liability, and breach of warranty under Texas law.
Although we do not own or operate the facility or directly sell our products to West Fertilizer Co., products that the
CF Entities have manufactured and sold to others have been delivered to the facility and may have been stored at the
West facility at the time of the incident. The Court granted in part and denied in part the CF Entities’ Motions for
Summary Judgment in August 2015. Thirty-four cases have been resolved pursuant to confidential settlements fully
funded by insurance. The remaining cases are in various stages of discovery and pre-trial proceedings. The next group
of cases is set for trial beginning on January 9, 2017. We believe we have strong legal and factual defenses and intend

129



Edgar Filing: CF Industries Holdings, Inc. - Form 10-Q

to continue defending the CF Entities vigorously in the pending lawsuits. The increased focus on the risks associated
with fertilizers as a result of the incident could impact the regulatory environment and requirements applicable to
fertilizer manufacturing and storage facilities.
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Our substantial indebtedness could adversely affect our cash flow, prevent us from fulfilling our obligations and
impair our ability to pursue or achieve other business objectives.
As of September 30, 2016, we had approximately $5.6 billion of total funded indebtedness, consisting primarily of
senior notes with varying maturity dates between 2018 and 2044, or approximately 45% of our total capitalization.
Our substantial debt service obligations will have an impact on our earnings and cash flow for so long as the
indebtedness is outstanding.
Our substantial indebtedness could, through the operation of the financial and other restrictive covenants to which we
are subject under the agreements and instruments governing that indebtedness and otherwise, have important
consequences. For example, it could:
make it more difficult for us to pay or refinance our debts as they become due during adverse economic and industry
conditions because any related decrease in revenues could cause us not to have sufficient cash flows from operations
to make our scheduled debt payments;
cause us to be less able to take advantage of significant business opportunities, such as acquisition opportunities, and
to react to changes in market or industry conditions;

cause us to use a portion of our cash flow from operations for debt service, reducing the availability of cash to

fund working capital and capital expenditures, and other business activities;
cause us to be more vulnerable to general adverse economic and industry conditions;
expose us to the risk of increased interest rates because certain of our borrowings, including borrowings under our
senior unsecured revolving credit agreement (as amended, the Revolving Credit Agreement), could be at variable
rates of interest;
make us more leveraged than some of our competitors, which could place us at a competitive disadvantage;
limit our ability to borrow additional monies in the future to fund working capital, capital expenditures and other
general corporate purposes; and
result in a downgrade in the credit rating of our indebtedness which could increase the cost of further borrowings.
We expect to consider options to refinance our outstanding indebtedness from time to time. Our ability to obtain any
financing, whether through the issuance of new debt securities or otherwise, and the terms of any such financing are
dependent on, among other things, our financial condition, financial market conditions within our industry and
generally, credit ratings and numerous other factors, including factors beyond our control. Consequently, in the event
that we need to access the credit markets, including to refinance our debt, there can be no assurance that we will be
able to obtain financing on acceptable terms or within an acceptable timeframe, if at all. An inability to obtain
financing with acceptable terms when needed could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows.
We may incur additional indebtedness in the future.
The terms of our existing indebtedness allow us to incur significant additional debt. Although the terms of our
Revolving Credit Agreement restrict our ability to incur additional indebtedness, these restrictions are subject to
important exceptions and qualifications. If we incur additional indebtedness, the risks that we face as a result of our
leverage could intensify. If our financial condition or operating results deteriorate, our relations with our creditors,
including the holders of our outstanding debt securities, the lenders under our Revolving Credit Agreement and our
suppliers, may be materially and adversely affected.
A breach of the covenants under the any of the agreements governing our indebtedness could result in an event of
default under such agreements.
Our ability to comply with the covenants in the agreements and instruments governing our indebtedness will depend
upon our future performance and various other factors, such as market prices for our fertilizer products, natural gas
prices and other business, competitive and regulatory factors, many of which are beyond our control. We may not be
able to maintain compliance with all of these covenants. In that event, we would need to seek an amendment to our
debt agreements or would need to refinance our indebtedness. There can be no assurance that we can obtain future
amendments or waivers of our debt agreements and instruments, or refinance our debt, and, even if we were able to do
s0, such relief might only last for a limited period, potentially necessitating additional amendments, waivers or
refinancings. Any noncompliance by us with the covenants under our debt agreements and instruments could result in
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an event of default under those debt agreements and instruments. An event of default under an agreement or
instrument governing any of our indebtedness may allow our creditors to accelerate the related debt and may result in
the acceleration of any other debt to which a cross-acceleration or cross-default provision applies. If our lenders or
holders of our debt securities accelerate the repayment of borrowings, we may be forced to liquidate certain assets to
repay all or part of our indebtedness, which could materially and adversely impair our business operations. An event
of default under our Revolving Credit Agreement would permit the lenders thereunder to terminate all commitments
to extend further credit under our Revolving Credit Agreement. Furthermore, following effectiveness of the
contemplated amendment of our Revolving Credit Agreement to provide for liens on specified collateral to secure our
obligations thereunder, and in the
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event that we incur other secured indebtedness, if we were unable to repay amounts due and payable under our
Revolving Credit Agreement or such other indebtedness, our Revolving Credit Agreement lenders or holders of such
other indebtedness, as applicable, could proceed against the collateral granted to them, which could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. In the event our creditors accelerate the
repayment of our indebtedness, we cannot assure that we would have sufficient assets to make such repayment.
Potential future downgrades of our credit ratings could adversely affect our access to capital and could otherwise have
a material adverse effect on us.

In October 2016, in response to current fertilizer market conditions, each of the three credit rating agencies reviewed
our corporate credit rating as follows. S&P Global Ratings reduced its corporate credit rating to BB+ from BBB- and
indicated the outlook was negative. Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. reduced its corporate credit rating to Baa3 from
Baa2 and indicated the rating was under further review. Fitch Ratings, Inc. reduced its corporate credit rating to BB+
from BBB and indicated the outlook was stable. These ratings and our current credit condition affect, among other
things, our ability to access new capital, especially debt, and negative changes in these ratings may result in more
stringent covenants and higher interest rates under the terms of any new debt. Our credit ratings could be downgraded
or rating agencies could issue adverse commentaries in the future, which could have a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations, financial condition and liquidity. In particular, a weakening of our financial condition,
including a significant increase in our leverage or decrease in our profitability or cash flows, could adversely affect
our ability to obtain necessary funds, result in a credit rating downgrade or change in outlook, or otherwise increase
our cost of borrowing.

Cyber security risks could result in disruptions in business operations and adverse operating results.

We rely on information technology and computer control systems in many aspects of our business, including internal
and external communications, the management of our accounting, financial and supply chain functions and plant
operations. Business and supply chain disruptions, plant and utility outages and information technology system and
network disruptions due to cyber attacks could seriously harm our operations and materially adversely affect our
operating results. Cyber security risks include attacks on information technology and infrastructure by hackers,
damage or loss of information due to viruses, the unintended disclosure of confidential information, the misuse or loss
of control over computer control systems, and breaches due to employee error. Our exposure to cyber security risks
includes exposure through third parties on whose systems we place significant reliance for the conduct of our
business. We have implemented security procedures and measures in order to protect our systems and information
from being vulnerable to cyber attacks. We believe these measures and procedures are appropriate. However, we may
not have the resources or technical sophistication to anticipate, prevent, or recover from rapidly evolving types of
cyber attacks. Compromises to our information and control systems could have severe financial and other business
implications.

Adverse weather conditions may decrease demand for our fertilizer products, increase the cost of natural gas or
materially disrupt our operations.

Weather conditions that delay or disrupt field work during the planting and growing seasons may cause agricultural
customers to use different forms of nitrogen fertilizer, which may adversely affect demand for the forms that we sell
or may impede farmers from applying our fertilizers until the following growing season, resulting in lower demand for
our products.

Adverse weather conditions following harvest may delay or eliminate opportunities to apply fertilizer in the fall.
Weather can also have an adverse effect on crop yields, which could lower the income of growers and impair their
ability to purchase fertilizer from our customers. Our quarterly financial results can vary significantly from one year to
the next due to weather-related shifts in planting schedules and purchasing patterns.

Weather conditions or, in certain cases, weather forecasts, also can affect the price of natural gas, the principal raw
material used to make our nitrogen fertilizer products. Colder than normal winters and warmer than normal summers
increase the demand for natural gas for power generation and for residential and industrial use, which can increase the
cost and/or decrease the availability of natural gas. In addition, adverse weather events such as very low temperatures
leading to well freeze-offs or hurricanes affecting the Gulf of Mexico coastal states can impact the supply of natural
gas and cause prices to rise.

133



81

Edgar Filing: CF Industries Holdings, Inc. - Form 10-Q

134



Edgar Filing: CF Industries Holdings, Inc. - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents

We may not be able to complete our capacity expansion project in Port Neal, Iowa, on schedule as planned, on budget
or at all due to a number of factors, many of which are beyond our control.

On November 1, 2012, we announced that we would construct new ammonia, urea, and UAN plants at our complex in
Donaldsonville, Louisiana, and new ammonia and urea plants at our complex in Port Neal, Iowa. In Donaldsonville,
the new granular urea plant came on line in the fourth quarter of 2015, the new UAN plant came on line in the first
quarter of 2016, and the new ammonia plant recently was placed in service in October 2016. The Port Neal portion of
these multi-billion dollar projects is scheduled to come on line in late 2016.

The final completion and start-up of the new plants at Port Neal are subject to a number of risks, any of which could
prevent us from completing the project on schedule as planned and on cost forecast, include performance of third
parties, inability to comply with permit terms and conditions, adverse weather, defects in materials and workmanship,
labor and raw material shortages, transportation constraints, engineering and construction change orders, errors in the
design, construction or start-up, and other unforeseen difficulties.

The Port Neal capacity expansion project is dependent on the availability and performance of the engineering firms,
construction firms, equipment suppliers, transportation providers and other vendors necessary to finish commissioning
and starting-up the new units on a timely basis. If any of the third parties fails to perform as we expect, our ability to
meet our expansion goals would be affected.

Our ability to use our tax net operating losses and certain other tax assets to offset taxable income could be negatively
impacted if there is a change in our ownership.

We estimate that we will generate a federal tax net operating loss in excess of $2 billion in 2016, arising primarily
from accelerated federal tax depreciation and federal bonus depreciation on our capital projects. In addition, we will
generate significant state income tax loss carryforwards and credit carryforwards as a result the state tax depreciation
and loss carryforwards, as well as foreign tax credit carryforwards. Further, we project that we will generate
additional federal tax loss carryforwards in 2017 primarily arising from accelerated federal tax depreciation on our
capital projects. Our ability to use our tax net operating losses, tax credits and certain other tax assets (the Tax
Benefits) to offset taxable income could be substantially limited if we experienced an “ownership change” as defined
under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code and related Internal Revenue Service pronouncements. In general, an
ownership change would occur if the Company’s “5-percent shareholders,” as defined under Section 382, collectively
increase their ownership in the Company by more than 50 percentage points during the relevant testing period.
Additionally, various states have similar limitations on the use of state net operating losses following an ownership
change.

If an ownership change occurs, our ability to use our Tax Benefits to reduce taxable income is generally limited to an
annual amount equal to (1) the fair market value of our stock immediately prior to the ownership change multiplied by
the long-term tax-exempt interest rate plus (2) built-in gains on certain assets held prior to the ownership change that
are recognized during the five-year period following the ownership change.

On September 6, 2016, our Board of Directors (the Board) adopted a tax benefits preservation plan (the Plan)
designed to preserve our ability to utilize our Tax Benefits. Although the Plan is intended to reduce the likelihood of
an ownership change that could adversely affect us, there is no assurance that the restrictions on transferability in the
Plan will prevent all transfers that could result in such an ownership change.

In addition, we intend to file a claim to carry back current year federal tax losses to prior income tax years and receive
a refund of federal taxes paid in those prior years. We currently estimate that the amount of this refund will be
approximately $760 million and expect to receive it in the third quarter of 2017. The majority of the refund relates to
bonus depreciation on the Donaldsonville expansion project and certain current year operating losses and other
expenditures, but a portion of the refund is dependent on certain conditions, including the Port Neal, lowa expansion
project being placed in service for federal income tax purposes prior to December 31, 2016. To the extent the Port
Neal project is not placed in service prior to the end of 2016, the amount of the refund in 2017 will be reduced. If we
do not receive the refund as expected, our liquidity would be adversely affected.

We may not be successful in the expansion of our business.

We routinely consider possible expansions of our business, both within the United States and elsewhere. Major
investments in our business, including as a result of acquisitions, partnerships, joint ventures, business combination
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transactions or other major investments require significant managerial resources, the diversion of which from our
other activities may impair the operation of our business. We may be unable to identify or successfully compete for
certain acquisition targets, which may hinder or prevent us from acquiring a target or completing other transactions.
The risks of any expansion of our business

82

136



Edgar Filing: CF Industries Holdings, Inc. - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents

through investments, acquisitions, partnerships, joint ventures or business combination transactions are increased due
to the significant capital and other resources that we may have to commit to any such expansion, which may not be
recoverable if the expansion initiative to which they were devoted is ultimately not implemented. As a result of these
and other factors, including general economic risk, we may not be able to realize our projected returns from any future
acquisitions, partnerships, joint ventures, business combination transactions or other major investments. Among the
risks associated with the pursuit and consummation of acquisitions, partnerships, joint ventures or other major
investments or business combination transactions are those involving:

difficulties in integrating the parties’ operations, systems, technologies, products and personnel;

tncurrence of significant transaction-related expenses;

potential integration or restructuring costs;

potential impairment charges related to the goodwill, intangible assets or other assets to which any such transaction
relates, in the event that the economic benefits of such transaction prove to be less than anticipated;

other unanticipated costs associated with such transactions;

our ability to achieve operating and financial efficiencies, synergies and cost savings;

our ability to obtain the desired financial or strategic benefits from any such transaction;

the parties’ ability to retain key business relationships, including relationships with employees, customers, partners and
suppliers;

potential loss of key personnel;

entry into markets or involvement with products with which we have limited current or prior experience or in which
competitors may have stronger positions;

assumption of contingent liabilities, including litigation;

exposure to unanticipated liabilities;

differences in the parties’ internal control environments, which may require significant time and resources to resolve in
conformity with applicable legal and accounting standards;

tncreased scope, geographic diversity and complexity of our operations;

the tax effects of any such transaction; and

the potential for costly and time-consuming litigation, including stockholder lawsuits.

International acquisitions, partnerships, joint ventures, business combination or investments and other international
expansions of our business involve additional risks and uncertainties, including:

the impact of particular economic, tax, currency, political, legal and regulatory risks associated with specific
countries;

challenges caused by distance and by language and cultural differences;

difficulties and costs of complying with a wide variety of complex laws, treaties and regulations;

unexpected changes in regulatory environments;

political and economic instability, including the possibility for civil unrest;

nationalization of properties by foreign governments;

tax rates that may exceed those in the United States, and earnings that may be subject to withholding requirements;
the imposition of tariffs, exchange controls or other restrictions; and

the impact of currency exchange rate fluctuations.

If we finance acquisitions, partnerships, joint ventures, business combination transactions or other major investments
by issuing equity or convertible or other debt securities or loans, our existing stockholders may be diluted or we could
face constraints under the terms of, and as a result of the repayment and debt-service obligations under, the additional
indebtedness. A business combination transaction between us and another company could result in our stockholders
receiving cash or shares of another entity on terms that such stockholders may not consider desirable. Moreover, the
regulatory approvals associated with a business combination may result in divestitures or other changes to our
business, the effects of which are difficult to predict.

We are subject to numerous environmental, health and safety laws, regulations and permitting requirements, as well as
potential environmental liabilities, which may require us to make substantial expenditures.
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We are subject to numerous environmental, health and safety laws and regulations in the United States, Canada, the
United Kingdom and the Republic of Trinidad and Tobago, including laws and regulations relating to the generation
and handling of hazardous substances and wastes; the cleanup of hazardous substance releases; the discharge of
regulated substances to air or water; and the demolition of existing plant sites upon permanent closure. In the United
States, these laws include the Clean Air Act, the Clean Water Act, the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, the
Comprehensive
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Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act (CERCLA), the Toxic Substances Control Act and various
other federal, state and local laws.

As a fertilizer company working with chemicals and other hazardous substances, our business is inherently subject to
spills, discharges or other releases of hazardous substances into the environment. Certain environmental laws,
including CERCLA, impose joint and several liability, without regard to fault, for cleanup costs on persons who have
disposed of or released hazardous substances into the environment. Given the nature of our business, we have
incurred, are incurring currently, and are likely to incur periodically in the future, liabilities under CERCLA and other
environmental cleanup laws at our current facilities or facilities previously owned by us or other acquired businesses,
adjacent or nearby third-party facilities or offsite disposal locations. The costs associated with future cleanup activities
that we may be required to conduct or finance may be material. Additionally, we may become liable to third parties
for damages, including personal injury and property damage, resulting from the disposal or release of hazardous
substances into the environment.

Violations of environmental, health and safety laws can result in substantial penalties, court orders to install
pollution-control equipment, civil and criminal sanctions, permit revocations and facility shutdowns. Environmental,
health and safety laws change rapidly and have tended to become more stringent over time. As a result, we have not
always been and may not always be in compliance with all environmental, health and safety laws and regulations. We
may be subject to more stringent enforcement of existing or new environmental, health and safety laws in the future.
Additionally, future environmental, health and safety laws and regulations or reinterpretation of current laws and
regulations may require us to make substantial expenditures. We sell, among other products, diesel exhaust fluid
(DEF), which is subject to Environmental Protection Agency (the EPA) emissions standards that may become more
stringent in the future. Our costs to comply with, or any liabilities under, these laws and regulations could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

From time to time, our production of anhydrous ammonia has resulted in accidental releases that have temporarily
disrupted our manufacturing operations and resulted in liability for administrative penalties and claims for personal
injury. To date, our costs to resolve these liabilities have not been material. However, we could incur significant costs
if our liability coverage is not sufficient to pay for all or a large part of any judgments against us, or if our insurance
carrier refuses coverage for these losses.

We hold numerous environmental and other governmental permits and approvals authorizing operations at each of our
facilities. Expansion or modification of our operations is predicated upon securing necessary environmental or other
permits or approvals. A decision by a government agency to deny or delay issuing a new or renewed regulatory
material permit or approval, or to revoke or substantially modify an existing permit or approval, or a determination
that we have violated a law or permit as a result of a governmental inspection of our facilities could have a material
adverse effect on our ability to continue operations at our facilities and on our business, financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows. On October 1, 2015, the EPA released a final regulation lowering the national ambient air
quality standard for ozone. Ozone attainment designations are expected by October 2017, and this action is expected
to result in additional areas of the country being classified as being in nonattainment with the ozone standard and
subject to more stringent permitting requirements, which in turn could make it much more difficult and expensive to
obtain permits to construct new facilities or expand our existing operations.

Future regulatory restrictions on greenhouse gas emissions in the jurisdictions in which we operate could materially
adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

We are subject to greenhouse gas (GHG) regulations in the United Kingdom, Canada and the United States. In the
United States, our existing facilities currently are only subject to GHG emissions reporting obligations, although our
new and modified facilities are likely to be subject to GHG emissions standards included in their air permits. Our
facilities in the United Kingdom are subject to regulatory emissions trading systems, which generally require us to
hold or obtain emissions allowances to offset GHG emissions from those aspects of our operations that are subject to
regulation under this program. Our facility in Alberta, Canada is subject to a provincial regulation requiring reductions
in the facility’s net emissions intensity, which can be met by facility improvements, the purchase of emissions offsets
or performance credits, or contributions to a non-profit climate change fund established by Alberta. In June 2016,
Alberta promulgated the Climate Leadership Implementation Act, which will impose a wide-ranging carbon tax. The
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carbon tax will be set at $20 per ton (Canadian dollars) effective January 1, 2017, rise to $30 per ton (Canadian
dollars) effective January 1, 2018 and increase with the rate of inflation thereafter. Facilities such as ours that are
subject to the existing specified gas emitters regulation will continue to be subject to this regulation through 2017,
after which new product and sector-based performance standards (to be developed) will become effective. Our
Courtright, Ontario facility will be subject to Ontario’s GHG cap and trade program beginning in January 2017, which
regulation was finalized in May 2016. In addition, in October 2016, Canadian Prime Minister Justin Trudeau
announced that his government will introduce a plan to put a price on carbon pollution, which plan would serve as a
floor for the GHG emissions reduction
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requirements of the separate Canadian provinces and territories. The announced plan would impose a $10 per ton
(Canadian dollars) charge beginning in 2018, rising to $50 per ton by 2022.

There are substantial uncertainties as to the nature, stringency and timing of any future GHG regulations. On
December 12, 2015, 195 countries adopted by consensus a new international agreement known as the Paris
Agreement. The Paris Agreement is intended to provide a framework pursuant to which the parties to the agreement
will attempt to hold the increase in global average temperatures to below 2 °C above pre-industrial levels and to
pursue efforts to limit the temperature increase to 1.5 °C above pre-industrial levels. The Paris Agreement has been
ratified or accepted by the United States and Canada and will go into effect in November 2016. The United Kingdom
has indicated its intent to ratify the Paris Agreement by the end of 2016. The Paris Agreement could result in more
aggressive efforts to reduce GHG emissions in the jurisdictions in which we operate. More stringent GHG limitations,
if they are enacted, are likely to have a significant impact on us, because our production facilities emit GHGs such as
carbon dioxide and nitrous oxide and because natural gas, a fossil fuel, is a primary raw material used in our nitrogen
production process. Regulation of GHGs may require us to make changes in our operating activities that would
increase our operating costs, reduce our efficiency, limit our output, require us to make capital improvements to our
facilities, increase our costs for or limit the availability of energy, raw materials or transportation, or otherwise
materially adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. In addition, to the
extent that GHG restrictions are not imposed in countries where our competitors operate or are less stringent than
regulations that may be imposed in the United States, Canada or the United Kingdom, our competitors may have cost
or other competitive advantages over us.

Our operating results fluctuate due to seasonality. Our inability to predict future seasonal fertilizer demand accurately
could result in our having excess inventory, potentially at costs in excess of market value, or product shortages.

The fertilizer business is seasonal. The degree of seasonality of our business can change significantly from year to
year due to conditions in the agricultural industry and other factors. The strongest demand for our products occurs
during the spring planting season, with a second period of strong demand following the fall harvest. We and our
customers generally build inventories during the low demand periods of the year to ensure timely product availability
during the peak sales seasons. Seasonality is greatest for ammonia due to the short application season and the limited
ability of our customers and their customers to store significant quantities of this product. The seasonality of fertilizer
demand results in our sales volumes and net sales being the highest during the spring and our working capital
requirements being the highest just prior to the start of the spring planting season.

If seasonal demand is less than we expect, we may be left with excess inventory that will have to be stored (in which
case our results of operations will be negatively affected by any related increased storage costs) or liquidated (in
which case the selling price may be below our production, procurement and storage costs). The risks associated with
excess inventory and product shortages are exacerbated by the volatility of natural gas and nitrogen fertilizer prices
and the relatively brief periods during which farmers can apply nitrogen fertilizers. If prices for our products rapidly
decrease, we may be subject to inventory write-downs, adversely affecting our operating results. If seasonal demand is
greater than we expect, we may experience product shortages, and customers of ours may turn to our competitors for
products that they would otherwise have purchased from us.

A change in the volume of products that our customers purchase on a forward basis, or the percentage of our sales
volume that is sold to our customers on a forward basis, could increase our exposure to fluctuations in our profit
margins and materially adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

We offer our customers the opportunity to purchase products from us on a forward basis at prices and delivery dates
we propose. Under our forward sales programs, customers generally make an initial cash down payment at the time of
order and pay the remaining portion of the contract sales value in advance of the shipment date. Forward sales
improve our liquidity due to the cash payments received from customers in advance of shipment of the product and
allow us to improve our production scheduling and planning and the utilization of our manufacturing and distribution
assets.

Any cash payments received in advance from customers in connection with forward sales are reflected on our
consolidated balance sheets as a current liability until the related orders are shipped, which can take up to several
months.
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We believe the ability to purchase products on a forward basis is most appealing to our customers during periods of
generally increasing prices for nitrogen fertilizers. Our customers may be less willing or even unwilling to purchase
products on a forward basis during periods of generally decreasing or stable prices or during periods of relatively high
fertilizer prices due to the expectation of lower prices in the future or limited capital resources. In periods of rising
fertilizer prices, selling our nitrogen fertilizers on a forward basis may result in lower profit margins than if we had not
sold fertilizer on a forward basis. Conversely, in periods of declining fertilizer prices, selling our nitrogen fertilizers
on a forward basis may result in higher profit margins than if we had not sold fertilizer on a forward basis. In addition,
fixing the selling prices of our products, often months
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in advance of their ultimate delivery to customers, typically causes our reported selling prices and margins to differ
from spot market prices and margins available at the time of shipment.

Our business is subject to risks involving derivatives, including the risk that our hedging activities might not prevent
losses.

We often utilize natural gas derivatives to hedge our financial exposure to the price volatility of natural gas, the
principal raw material used in the production of nitrogen-based fertilizers. We have used fixed-price, physical
purchase and sales contracts, futures, financial swaps and option contracts traded in the over-the-counter markets or on
exchanges. In order to manage our exposure to changes in foreign currency exchange rates, from time to time, we may
use foreign currency derivatives, primarily forward exchange contracts.

Our use of derivatives can result in volatility in reported earnings due to the unrealized mark-to-market adjustments
that occur from changes in the value of the derivatives that do not qualify for, or to which we do not apply, hedge
accounting. To the extent that our derivative positions lose value, we may be required to post collateral with our
counterparties, adversely affecting our liquidity.

Hedging arrangements are imperfect and unhedged risks will always exist. In addition, our hedging activities may
themselves give rise to various risks that could adversely affect us. For example, we are exposed to counterparty credit
risk when our derivatives are in a net asset position. Additionally, the International Swaps and Derivative Association
master netting arrangements for most of our derivative instruments contain credit-risk-related contingent features,
such as cross default provisions and credit support requirements. In the event of certain defaults or a credit ratings
downgrade, our counterparty may request early termination and net settlement of certain derivative trades or may
require us to collateralize derivatives in a net liability position.

The counterparties to our derivatives are multi-national commercial banks, major financial institutions or large energy
companies. We monitor the derivative portfolio and credit quality of our counterparties and adjust the level of activity
we conduct with individual counterparties as necessary. We also manage the credit risk through the use of multiple
counterparties, credit limits, credit monitoring procedures, cash collateral requirements and master netting
arrangements. However, our liquidity could be negatively impacted by a counterparty default on settlement of one or
more of our derivative financial instruments or by the trigger of any cross default provisions or credit support
requirements.

We are reliant on a limited number of key facilities.

Our nitrogen fertilizer operations are concentrated in nine separate nitrogen complexes, the largest of which is the
Donaldsonville complex, which represented approximately 35% of our ammonia production capacity as of September
30, 2016, and will represent approximately 40% of our ammonia production capacity after the Donaldsonville and
Port Neal capacity expansion projects are fully operational. The suspension of operations at any of these complexes
could adversely affect our ability to produce our products and fulfill our commitments, and could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. In addition, our
Donaldsonville complex is located in an area of the United States that experiences a relatively high level of hurricane
activity and our other complexes are located in areas that experience severe weather. Such storms, depending on their
severity and location, have the potential not only to damage our facilities and disrupt our operations, but also to
adversely affect the shipping and distribution of our products and the supply and price of natural gas in the respective
regions. Moreover, our facilities may be subject to failure of equipment that may be difficult to replace and could
result in operational disruptions.

We are subject to risk associated with our strategic venture with CHS Inc.

We may not realize the full benefits from our strategic venture with CHS Inc. (CHS) that are expected. The realization
of the expected benefits of the CHS strategic venture depends on our ability to successfully operate and manage the
strategic venture, and on the market prices of the nitrogen fertilizer products that are the subject of our supply
agreement with CHS over the life of the agreement, among other factors. Additionally, any challenges related to the
CHS strategic venture could harm our relationships with our customers, employees or suppliers.

We are exposed to risks associated with our joint venture.

We have a 50% ownership interest in PLNL (which owns a facility in the Republic of Trinidad and Tobago). Our joint
venture partner shares a measure of control over the operations of our PLNL joint venture. As a result, our investment
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in our PLNL joint venture involves risks that are different from the risks involved in owning facilities and operations
independently. These risks include the possibility that our PLNL joint venture or our partner: have economic or
business interests or goals that are or become inconsistent with our economic or business interests or goals; are in a
position to take action contrary to (or have veto rights over) our instructions, requests, policies or objectives; subject
our PLNL joint venture to liabilities exceeding those
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contemplated; take actions that reduce our return on investment; or take actions that harm our reputation or restrict our
ability to run our business.

In addition, we may become involved in disputes with our PLNL joint venture partner, which could lead to impasses
or situations that could harm the joint venture, which could reduce our revenues or increase our costs.

Our PLNL joint venture operates an ammonia plant that relies on natural gas supplied by The National Gas Company
of Trinidad and Tobago Limited (NGC). The joint venture has experienced natural gas curtailments due to major
maintenance activities being conducted at upstream natural gas facilities and decreased gas exploration and
development activity in Trinidad which has reduced the ammonia production at PLNL. These curtailments have
continued into 2016 and we are unable to predict when the curtailments will cease to occur. NGC has communicated
to PLNL that it does not recognize the joint venture’s exercise of its option to renew its contract for natural gas for an
additional five-year term beyond its current termination date in September 2018, and that any NGC commitment to
supply gas beyond 2018 will need to be based on new agreements regarding volume and price. PLNL has initiated
arbitration proceedings against NGC and asserted claims in connection with NGC'’s failure to supply the contracted
quantities of natural gas, and its refusal to recognize the joint venture’s exercise of its option to extend the contract.
PLNL is seeking declaratory and injunctive relief, as well as damages for past and ongoing curtailments. Although the
joint venture believes its claims against NGC to be meritorious, it is not possible to predict the outcome of the
arbitration. The future availability of natural gas and the price of such gas are unclear at the present time.

In the fourth quarter of 2015, we recorded a $62 million impairment of our equity method investment in PLNL as we
determined the carrying value of our equity method investment in PLNL exceeded its fair value, primarily due to the
ongoing natural gas curtailments and the expectation that these curtailments will continue into the future. In addition,
failure to secure a long-term gas supply from NGC on a cost effective basis could adversely affect our ability to
produce ammonia at the joint venture which could result in further impairment to the value of the joint venture, and
could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.

Acts of terrorism and regulations to combat terrorism could negatively affect our business.

Like other companies with major industrial facilities, we may be targets of terrorist activities. Many of our plants and
facilities store significant quantities of ammonia and other materials that can be dangerous if mishandled. Any damage
to infrastructure facilities, such as electric generation, transmission and distribution facilities, or injury to employees,
who could be direct targets or indirect casualties of an act of terrorism, may affect our operations. Any disruption of
our ability to produce or distribute our products could result in a significant decrease in revenues and significant
additional costs to replace, repair or insure our assets, which could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Due to concerns related to terrorism or the potential use of certain fertilizers as explosives, we are subject to various
security laws and regulations. In the United States, these security laws include the Maritime Transportation Security
Act of 2002 and the Chemical Facilities Anti-Terrorism Standards regulation. In addition, President Obama issued
Executive Order 13650 Improving Chemical Facility Safety and Security to improve chemical facility safety in
coordination with owners and operators. Governmental entities could implement new or impose more stringent
regulations affecting the security of our plants, terminals and warehouses or the transportation and use of fertilizers.
These regulations could result in higher operating costs or limitations on the sale of our products and could result in
significant unanticipated costs, lower revenues and reduced profit margins. We manufacture and sell certain nitrogen
fertilizers that can be used as explosives. It is possible that governmental entities in the United States or elsewhere
could impose additional limitations on the use, sale or distribution of nitrogen fertilizers, thereby limiting our ability to
manufacture or sell those products, or that illicit use of our products could result in liability for us.

We are subject to risks associated with international operations.

Our international business operations are subject to numerous risks and uncertainties, including difficulties and costs
associated with complying with a wide variety of complex laws, treaties and regulations; unexpected changes in
regulatory environments; currency fluctuations; tax rates that may exceed those in the United States; earnings that
may be subject to withholding requirements; and the imposition of tariffs, exchange controls or other restrictions.
Our principal reporting currency is the U.S. dollar and our business operations and investments outside the United
States increase our risk related to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates. The main currencies to which we
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are exposed, besides the U.S. dollar, are the Canadian dollar, the British pound and the euro. These exposures may
change over time as business practices evolve and economic conditions change, including, for example, in response to
sudden global economic conditions resulting from measures like the referendum in the United Kingdom in June 2016,
which resulted in a vote in favor of exiting the European Union (Brexit). We may selectively reduce some foreign
currency exchange rate risk by, among other
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things, requiring contracted purchases of our products to be settled in, or indexed to, the U.S. dollar or a currency
freely convertible into U.S. dollars, or hedging through foreign currency derivatives. These efforts, however, may not
be effective and could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and
cash flows.

We are subject to anti-corruption laws and regulations and economic sanctions programs in various jurisdictions,
including the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977, the United Kingdom Bribery Act of 2010, and economic
sanctions programs administered by the United Nations, the European Union and the Office of Foreign Assets Control
of the U.S. Department of the Treasury, and regulations set forth under the Comprehensive Iran Accountability
Divestment Act. As a result of doing business internationally, we are exposed to a risk of violating anti-corruption
laws and sanctions regulations applicable in those countries where we, our partners or agents operate. Violations of
anti-corruption and sanctions laws and regulations are punishable by civil penalties, including fines, denial of export
privileges, injunctions, asset seizures, debarment from government contracts (and termination of existing contracts)
and revocations or restrictions of licenses, as well as criminal fines and imprisonment. The violation of applicable
laws by our employees, consultants, agents or partners could subject us to penalties and could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

We are subject to antitrust and competition laws in various countries throughout the world. We cannot predict how
these laws or their interpretation, administration and enforcement will change over time. Changes in antitrust laws
globally, or in their interpretation, administration or enforcement, may limit our existing or future operations and
growth.

Deterioration of global market and economic conditions could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

A slowdown of, or persistent weakness in, economic activity caused by a deterioration of global market and economic
conditions could adversely affect our business in the following ways, among others: conditions in the credit markets
could affect the ability of our customers and their customers to obtain sufficient credit to support their operations; the
failure of our customers to fulfill their purchase obligations could result in increases in bad debts and impact our
working capital; and the failure of certain key suppliers could increase our exposure to disruptions in supply or to
financial losses. We also may experience declining demand and falling prices for some of our products due to our
customers’ reluctance to replenish inventories. Changes in global economic conditions can arise suddenly and the full
impact of such conditions can remain uncertain. For example, increased uncertainty in the wake of Brexit has resulted
in increased volatility in the global financial markets and the impact of Brexit on the global economy in 2016 and
beyond remains uncertain. The overall impact of changes in global economic conditions on us is difficult to predict,
and our business could be materially adversely impacted.

In addition, conditions in the international market for nitrogen fertilizers significantly influence our operating results.
The international market for fertilizers is influenced by such factors as currency exchange rates, including the relative
value of the U.S. dollar and its impact upon the cost of importing of nitrogen fertilizers into the United States, foreign
agricultural policies, the existence of, or changes in, import or foreign currency exchange barriers in certain foreign
markets and the laws and policies of the markets in which we operate that affect foreign trade and investment.
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ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS.

The following table sets forth stock repurchases for each of the three months of the quarter ended September 30, 2016.
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Maximum
Number (or
Total Approximate
Total Average Number of Dollar
Number. . Shares (or  Value) of
Price .
of Paid Units) Sha.lres (or
Period Shares per Purchased  Units) that
(or Share % Part of  May Yet Be
Units) Publicly Purchased
Purchas%?r . Announced Under the
(M nit) Plans or Plans or
Programs® Programs
(in
thousands)®
July 1, 2016 - July 31, 2016 2,680 $2533 — $ 100,000
August 1, 2016 - August 31, 2016 17,242 22.35 — 100,000
September 1, 2016 - September 30, 2016 — — — 100,000
Total 19,928 $22.75 —

(1) Represents shares withheld to pay for employee tax obligations upon the vesting of restricted stock awards.

Represents the authorized share repurchase program announced on August 6, 2014 that allows

@ management to repurchase common stock for a total expenditure of up to $1.0 billion through
December 31, 2016 (the 2014 Program). This program is discussed in Note 15—Stockholders' Equity, in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements included in Item 1 of this report.

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS.
A list of exhibits filed with this report on Form 10-Q (or incorporated by reference to exhibits previously filed or
furnished) is provided in the Exhibit Index on page 91 of this report.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.
CF Industries Holdings, Inc.

Date: November 3, 2016 By:/s/ W. ANTHONY WILL

W. Anthony Will

President and Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)
Date: November 3, 2016 By:/s/ DENNIS P. KELLEHER

Dennis P. Kelleher

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer)
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EXHIBIT INDEX
EXhiBift:scription
No.
Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2
3.1 to CF Industries Holdings, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on September 7, 2016, File No.
001-32597)
Tax Benefits Preservation Plan, dated as of September 6, 2016, between CF Industries Holdings, Inc. and
4.1 Computershare Trust Company, N.A. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to CF Industries Holdings, Inc.’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on September 7, 2016, File No. 001-32597)
Specimen common stock certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to CF Industries Holdings, Inc.’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on September 7, 2016, File No. 001-32597)
Second Amendment, dated as of September 7, 2016, to the Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of September 24,
2015, among CF Industries Holdings, Inc., CF Industries, Inc. and the noteholders party thereto (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to CF Industries Holdings, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on
September 9, 2016, File No. 001-32597)
Amendment No. 2 to the Third Amended and Restated Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as of July 29, 2016,
among CF Industries Holdings, Inc., CF Industries, Inc., the lenders party thereto, the issuing banks party thereto,
10.1and Morgan Stanley Senior Funding, Inc., as Administrative Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
CF Industries Holdings, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on August 4, 2016, File No.
001-32597)
Amendment to the CF Industries Holdings, Inc. 2009 Equity and Incentive Plan, dated as of July 21, 2016
10.2 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to CF Industries Holdings, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed
with the SEC on August 4, 2016, File No. 001-32597)
Amendment to the CF Industries Holdings, Inc. 2014 Equity and Incentive Plan, dated as of July 21, 2016
10.3 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to CF Industries Holdings, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed
with the SEC on August 4, 2016, File No. 001-32597)
Form of Equity Award Amendment Letter Agreement, dated as of July 21, 2016 (incorporated by reference to
10.4 Exhibit 10.5 to CF Industries Holdings, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on August 4,
2016, File No. 001-32597)
Amendment No. 3 to the Third Amended and Restated Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as of October 31,
2016, by and among CF Industries Holdings, Inc., CF Industries, Inc., Morgan Stanley Senior Funding, Inc., as
administrative agent under the Existing Revolving Credit Agreement (as defined therein), the issuing banks under
10.5the Existing Revolving Credit Agreement signatory thereto, and the lenders under the Existing Revolving Credit
Agreement signatory thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CF Industries Holdings, Inc.’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on November 3, 2016, File No. 001-32597)

4.2

43

31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
1Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
" Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
2Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
““Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
The following financial information from CF Industries Holdings, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 2016, formatted in XBRL (eXtensible Business Reporting Language):
101 (1) Consolidated Statements of Operations, (2) Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income,
(3) Consolidated Balance Sheets, (4) Consolidated Statements of Equity, (5) Consolidated Statements of Cash
Flows, and (6) the Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements
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